
 

September 03, 2022 
 
 
To, 
Corporate Relationship Department    
BSE Limited, 
1st Floor, New Trading Ring, Rotunda Building, 
PhirozeJeejeebhoi Towers, 
Dalal Street, Fort, 
Mumbai - 400 001 
 
Scrip Code : 531842 
 
Sub.: Submission of 27thAnnual Report for the Financial Year 2021-22 of the Company as 
per Regulation 34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 

 
Dear Sir/ Madam, 
 
The 27th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 30th September, 2022. In 
this regard, attached is the 27th Annual Report of the Company for Financial Year 2021-22, as 
per Regulation 34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015. 
 

The same is for your records. 
 

Kindly take a note of the same. 
 

Thanking you, 
Yours faithfully, 
 
For Lahoti Overseas Limited  
 
 
 
Umesh Lahoti 
Managing Director 
DIN: 00361216 
 
 
Encl: As above 
 





LAHOTI OVERSEAS LIMITED
PERFORMANCE REVIEW 

46,258

64,658 

40,029 

47,736 

90,066 

0 20,000 40,000 60,000 80,000 1,00,000

2017-18

2018-19

2019-20

2020-21

2021-22

Gross Income  (` in Lakhs)

649

2,144 

821 

1,089 

3,607 

0 500 1,000 1,500 2,000 2,500 3,000 3,500 4,000

2017-18

2018-19

2019-20

2020-21

2021-22

PBT (` in Lakhs)

386

1,618 

371 

843 

2,497 

0 500 1000 1500 2000 2500 3000

2017-18

2018-19

2019-20

2020-21

2021-22

Net Profit ̀  in Lakhs

11,139

12,699 

12,730 

13,669 

16,051 

0 5,000 10,000 15,000 20,000

2017-18

2018-19

2019-20

2020-21

2021-22

Networth (` in Lakhs)

0.20

0.30

0.30

0.40

0.40

0.00 0.10 0.20 0.30 0.40 0.50

2017-18

2018-19

2019-20

2020-21

2021-22

Dividend Per Share (`)

1.26

5.54

1.85

2.76

8.08

0 2 4 6 8 10

2017-18

2018-19

2019-20

2020-21

2021-22

Earning Per Share



27TH ANNUAL REPORT
OF

LAHOTI OVERSEAS LIMITED
2021-2022



 Annual Report 2021-22    1

LAHOTI OVERSEAS LIMITED
CIN : L74999MH1995PLC087643

Contents							       Page No.

Corporate information		  02

Directors’ Report								        04

Annexures to Director’s Report							       12

Management Discussion & Analysis Report					     22

Report on Corporate Governance						      26		

Auditors Certificate on Corporate Governance					     45	

Standalone Financial Statements

Auditors Report 								        46

Balance Sheet									         56

Statement of Profit & Loss Account						      57

Cash Flow Statement								        59	

Notes to Financial Statements							       61	

Consolidated Financial Statements

Auditors Report 								        103

Balance Sheet									         110	

Statement of Profit & Loss Account						      111	

Cash Flow Statement								        113

Notes to Financial Statements							       115



 2      Annual Report 2021-22   

LAHOTI OVERSEAS LIMITED
CIN : L74999MH1995PLC087643

Corporate Information
CIN: L74999MH1995PLC087643
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Ujwal Rambilas Lahoti 	 (DIN 00360785)	 -	 Executive Chairman
Mr. Umesh Rambilas Lahoti	(DIN 00361216)	 -	 Managing Director
Mr. Aadhitiya Ujwal Lahoti	 (DIN 01501504)	 -	 Whole Time Director		
Mr. Prakash Ramchandra Bang (DIN 00088837)	-	 Non-Executive Independent Director
Mr. Prem Sardarilal Malik	 (DIN 00023051)	 -	 Non-Executive Independent Director
Ms. Meghna Vijay Panchal	 (DIN 07082835)	 -	 Non-Executive Independent Director / Woman Director

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Mr. Umesh Rambilas Lahoti	-  Managing Director
Mr. Ujwal Lahoti                    -  Executive Director    
Mr. Aadhitiya Lahoti              -  Executive Director           
Mr. Pradeep Bachhuka	 -  Chief Financial Officer
Ms. Akshita Jhawar	 -  Company Secretary

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

Kothari H. & Associates
208, P. J. Towers, Dalal Street, Fort, 
Mumbai - 400 001. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

N. G. Thakrar & Co
803 Atrium- II
Behind Courtyard Marriot Hotel,
Andheri Kurla Road, Andheri (E)
Mumbai 400093

INTERNAL AUDITORS

LSM & Co.
516, Summit Business Bay, Chakala,
Near WEH Metro Station & PVR,
Behind gurunanak Petrol Pump,
 Andheri (E) Mumbai 400093

BANKERS

DBS Bank Limited
YES Bank Limited
HDFC Bank Limited
RBL Limited
Shinhan Bank
Federal Bank

REGISTERED OFFICE

307, Arun Chambers,
Tardeo Road,Mumbai - 400 034.
Tel.: +91-22-4050 0100 I Fax: +91-22-4050 0150
e-mail: investor@lahotioverseas.com
Web: www.lahotioverseas.in
CIN: L74999MH1995PLC087643

LISTED IN STOCK EXCHANGES

Bombay Stock Exchange, Mumbai



 Annual Report 2021-22    3

LAHOTI OVERSEAS LIMITED
CIN : L74999MH1995PLC087643

REGISTRAR & TRANSFER AGENTS

LINK INTIME INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
C-101, 247 Park, 
L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli (West), 
Mumbai – 400 083
Tel No          : +91 22 49186270  Fax: +91 22 49186060
E-mail id      :rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in
Website       :www.linkintime.co.in

DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHY

Mr. Ujwal Rambilas Lahoti -Executive Chairman

Mr. Ujwal RambilasLahoti has done his graduation in Commerce from Pune University and has more than 38 years 
of experience in the business of yarn and cloth trading and exports. He handles the trading division of the Company 
which includes cloth trading, share trading, Leasing and Bill Discounting and is responsible for overall operations 
of the company. 

Mr. Umesh Rambilas Lahoti- Managing Director

Mr. Umesh Rambilas Lahoti did his graduation in Commerce from Shivaji University, Solapur. After completing 
his graduation, he joined the family business of wholesale cloth trading. He has more than 35 years of experience in 
the business of yarn and clothing trading and further has experience in the field of construction, textile, spinning 
and exports of cotton yarns. Presently, He is looking after day to day operations and management of the company. 

Mr. Aadhitiya Ujwal Lahoti- Whole Time Director/ Joint Executive Director

Mr. Aadhitiya Ujwal Lahoti, did his B.Com& FMBA andhas experience of 17 years in Marketing in textile Industries 
and also business development. His knowledge about modern business environment and management system will 
help in the growth and performance the Company.

Mr. Prakash Ramchandra Bang-Independent Director

Mr. Prakash Ramchandra Banghas Over 50 years of practical experience in India and abroad across a range of 
products and services. He was instrumental in building and executing creative and marketing strategies for various 
brands including Hallmark Cards, Videocon, Indian Express, Kinetic Engineering, BPL Mobile, roomsXML.com, 
Bangoes.com, YoGoYo.com, Vama, Men's Avenue, Lahoti Overseas and many others. Mr. Prakash Bang is a regular 
speaker at many management institutes and professional forums. He is the author of the critically acclaimed book, 
'YOUR ENTERPRISE ISN'T DEAD.YET’.

Mr. Prem Sardarilal Malik-Independent Director

Mr. Prem Sardarilal Malik has vast experience of over 57 years in textile and clothing industries at top Management. 
He is the past chairman of Past Chairman of Cotton Textile Export Promotion Council and Ex-CEO of Mafatlal 
Industries Limited.

Ms. Meghna Vijay Panchal-Woman Independent Director
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF 

LAHOTI OVERSEAS LIMITED

Your Company’s Directors take pleasure in presenting 
the Twenty Seventh Annual Report along with Audited 
Financial Statements of your Company and its

(₹ in lakhs)

Particulars

Standalone Consolidated
For the Financial Year 

Ended
For the Financial Year 

Ended
March 31, 

2022
 March 31, 

2021
March 31, 

2022
March 31, 

2021
Gross Income 90,066.13 47,735.92 90,081.98 47,756.56
Gross Profit before, Depreciation and Tax  3,925.82 1,397.41 3,941.29 1,417.87
Less: Depreciation 319.04 308.59 319.04 308.59
Profit Before Tax 3,606.78 1,088.82 3622.25 1,109.29
Provision for Tax
Current Tax 980.96 294.63 94.02 296.91
Deferred Tax 269.64 (10.17) 269.93 (10.17)
Profit after Tax before period items 2,356.18 804.36 2,368.30 822.54
Other Comprehensive Income (Net of Tax) 141.14 38.25 141.14 38.25
Total Income for Period Net of Tax 2497.32 842.62 2,509.44 860.79
Balance b/f from previous year 11,265.13 10,438.07 11,316.24 10,471.09
Amount available for appropriation 13,763.88 11,265.13 13,825.68 11,316.24
Less: Dividend Payout 116.69 - 116.69 -
Corporate Dividend Tax - - - -
Transferred to General Reserves - - - -
Reserves and surplus 15,466.85 13,084.79 15,528.09 13,135.89

subsidiaries for the Financial Year ended March 31, 
2022. 

FINANCIAL RESULTS:

The financial performance of the Company, for 
the year ended March 31, 2022 is summarized 
below:	

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS:

During the year under review your Company has 
reported a standalone total income from operation 
of Rs.89,197.43 Lakhs as compared to Rs. 47,008.02 
Lakhs for the previous year. Further, the net profit for 
the current year under review was Rs. 3,606.78 Lakhs 
as compared to Rs. 804.36 Lakhs in previous year.  

DIVIDEND:

Your Directors are pleased to declare a dividend @ 
20% (i.e. 0.40) per equity share on 2,91,71,500 Equity 

shares of Face Value of Rs. 2 each amounting to 
11,668,600 for the Financial Year 2021-22.

The Register of Members of the Company will remain 
closed from Saturday, September 24, 2022 to Friday, 
September 30, 2022 (both days inclusive) for annual 
closing.
GENERAL RESERVE 

The Company has not transferred any amount to the 
General Reserve during the financial year ended March 
31, 2022.
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The Board of Directors (‘the Board’) reviewed the 
affairs of the subsidiaries. In accordance with Section 
129(3) ofthe Companies Act, 2013, we have prepared 
consolidated financial statements of the Company and 
all its subsidiary, which form part of the Annual Report. 
Further, a statement containing the salient features 
of the financial statement of our subsidiary in the 
prescribed format AOC‑1 is appended as Annexure 1 to 
the Directors’Report. 

The Audited Consolidated Financial Statements (CFS) 
of your Company for the financial year ended March 31, 
2022, prepared in compliance with the provisions of Ind 
AS 27 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India (ICAI) and notified by the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs (MCA), Government of India also form part of 
this Annual Report. 

Details of the Subsidiaries are given in the Extract of 
Annual Return in Form No. MGT - 9 as on March 31, 
2022 and the same is annexed as Annexure - 5 to this 
Board’s Report

The Annual Reports of the Subsidiary will be made 
available for inspection by any Member of the Company 
at the Registered Office of your Company at 307, Arun 
Chambers, Tardeo Road, Mumbai – 400 034 between 
11:00 A.M. to 1:00 P.M. on any working day upto the date 
of ensuing AGM. The Annual Reports of the aforesaid 
Subsidiary for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 
shall be provided to any Member of the Company 
upon receipt of written request. Members may also 
send an advance request at the e-mail id – investor@
lahotioverseas.com for an electronic inspection of the 
aforesaid documents.

The Annual Reports along with the Audited Financial 
Statements of the Subsidiary of your Company are 
also available on the website of the Company at www.
lahotioverseas.in

No Independent Director on the Board of the Company 
is required to be inducted on the Board of its subsidiary 
as the subsidiary is not a material subsidiary Company as 
defined in the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Audit Committee 
of the Company reviews the financial statements of the 
unlisted subsidiary company. The minutes of the Board 
meetings of unlisted subsidiary company are regularly 
placed at the Board meetings of the Company.

INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION 
FUND

During the year, the unclaimed dividend amount of Rs. 
119,250.40 pertaining to the dividend for the financial 
year ended March 31, 2014 were transferred to the 
Investor Education & Protection Fund in compliance 
with the provisions of Sections 124 and 125 of the 
Companies Act, 2013

In compliance with these provisions read with the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority 
(Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, 
your Company also transferred 7,350 Equity shares to 
the Demat Account of the IEPF Authority, in respect of 
which dividend had remained unpaid/unclaimed for a 
consecutive period of 7 years.

NATURE OF BUSINESS AND CHANGES THEREIN:

The Company is engaged in the business of Merchant 
Exports of Cotton textiles and to specialize in the export 
of quality Cotton Yarns and fabrics. Lahoti's range today 
covers a wide variety of Cotton Yarns including carded 
& combed ring spun yarns of coarse& fine counts, ply 
yarns, special yarns and grey knitted and woven fabrics. 

The Company is also engaged in the business of setting 
up of Power projects and to generate, supply, distribute, 
transmit and transform electric or other sources of 
power.

During the year under review, there has been no change 
in the nature of business of the Company.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS 
AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION BETWEEN 
THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND DATE 
OF REPORT:

There have been no material changes or commitments, 
affecting the financial position of the Company between 
the end of the financial year to which the financial 
statements relate and the date of report.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANY:

The Company have 1(one) Wholly Owned Subsidiary:

1.	 G-Varadan Limited.

During the year under review, no company became or 
ceased to be a subsidiary, joint venture or associate of 
the Company.
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the Board, the Board of Directors of the Company have 
been constituted in compliance with the said Sections. 

Further at the time of appointment of an Independent 
Director, the Company issues a formal letter of 
appointment detailing their role and function in the 
Company, the format of the letter of appointment 
whereof is available on the website of the Company 
at:http://lahotioverseas.in/PDFs/terms-and-conditions-
of-appointment-of-independent-directors.pdf

As on the date of this report, the Company’s Board 
consists of the following Independent Directors:

1. Mr. Prakash Ramchandra Bang

2. Mr. Prem Sardarilal Malik

3. Ms. Meghna Panchal

As per Section 152 and other applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with applicable Articles 
of the Articles of Association of the Company, none 
of the Director of the Company is liable to retire by 
rotation and is eligible for re-appointment. 

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

Mr. Prakash Ramchandra Bang, Mr. Prem Sardarilal 
Malik and Ms. Meghna Vijay Panchal are the 
Independent Directors on the Board of the Company. 
The Company has received the declaration from all the 
Independent Directors confirming that they meet the 
criteria as set out in the provisions of Section 149(6) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant provisions of 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. 

In compliance with Rule 6 of Companies (Appointment 
and Qualification of Directors) Rules,

2014, all the Independent Directors (“IDD”) of the 
Company have registered themselves with the India 
Institute of Corporate Affairs (IICA), Manesar, to include 
their names in the databank of Independent Directors 
within the statutory timeline. They have also confirmed 
that they will appear for the online proficiency test 
within a period of one/two year, wherever applicable.

Further, there has been no change in the circumstances 
affecting their status as IDDs of the Company.

DEPOSIT:

During the year under review, your Company did 
not accept any deposits in terms of Section 73 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 
(Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014. No amounts were 
outstanding which were classified as ‘Deposits’ under 
the applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 as on 
the date of Balance Sheet and hence, the requirement 
for furnishing of details of deposits which are not in 
compliance with the Chapter V of the Companies Act, 
2013 is not applicable.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR 
ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 
Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 
2014 specifies the requirement for approval of the 
Board and/or the Members, as and when applicable 
in related party transactions in relation to contracts/
arrangements.

During the year under review the Company has not 
entered into related party transactions as per the 
provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 
2013. Thus disclosure in Form AOC-2 is not required. 
Further there are no materially significant related party 
transactions during the year under review made by the 
Company with Promoters, Key Managerial Personnel 
or other designated persons which may have a potential 
conflict with the interest of the Company. 

The Company has formulated a related party 
transactions policy and the same is displayed on the 
website of the company viz. http://lahotioverseas.in/
PDFs/policies/related-party-transactions-policy.pdf

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND 
INVESTMENTS:

Loans, guarantees and investments covered under 
Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 form part of 
the notes to the Financial Statements provided in this 
Annual Report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

As per the requirements of Section 149, 152 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and such other applicable 
provisions of the Act and as per provisions of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 which defines the composition of 
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Name of the Director Designation in the 
Committee

Mr. Prakash Ramchandra Bang 
(Independent Director)

Chairperson

Ms. Meghna Vijay Panchal
(Independent Director)

Member

Mr. Prem Sardarilal Malik
(Independent Director)

Member

Kindly refer to the section on Corporate Governance 
under the head, ‘Audit Committee’ for matters relating to 
constitution, meetings and functions of the Committee.

2.	 Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee

Name of the Director Designation in 
the Committee

Ms. Meghna Vijay Panchal
(Non-Executive Independent Director)

Chairperson

Mr. Umesh Rambilas Lahoti
(Managing Director)

Member

Mr. Ujwal Rambilas Lahoti
(Executive Director)

Member

Kindly refer to the section on Corporate Governance 
under the head, ‘Stakeholders Relationship Committee’ 
for matters relating to constitution, meetings and 
functions of the Committee.

3.	 Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Name of the Director Designation in the 
Committee

Ms. Meghna Vijay Panchal
(Independent Director)

Chairperson

Mr. Prakash Ramchandra Bang 
(Independent Director)

Member

Mr. Prem Sardarilal Malik
(Independent Director)

Member

Kindly refer section on Corporate Governance, under 
the head, ‘Nomination & Remuneration Committee’ for 
matters relating to constitution, meetings,functions of 
the Committee and the remuneration policy formulated 
by this Committee.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL 
PERSONNEL

Mr. Umesh Lahoti, Managing Director, Mr. Ujwal 
Lahoti, Executive Director, Mr. Aadhitya Lahoti, 
Executive Director Mr. Pradeep Bachhuka, Chief 
Financial Officer and Ms. Akshita Jhawar, Company 
Secretary & Compliance Officer are the Key Managerial 
Personnel of the Company, in terms of Section 2(51) 
read with Section 203(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Further Mr. Aadhitiya Lahoti, Executive Director of 
the Company is liable to retire by rotation and eligible 
for re-appointment, offers himself for re-appointment, 
the Board recommend the said re-appointment to the 
Members of the Company in the ensuing AGM.

Further, the tenure of Mr. Aadhitiya Lahoti as a Whole- 
Time Director is expiring as on August 31, 2022. The 
Board in their meeting held on August 02, 2022 has re-
appointed him for the further period of 5 (Five) Years 
subject to the approval of the members. Accordingly, 
the resolution for re-appointment of Mr. Aadhitiya 
Lahoti, is being part of the Notice of the ensuing AGM.   

A) Formal Annual Evaluation 

In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with Rules issued thereunder and SEBI (Listing 
Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 
2015, the Board of Directors on recommendation of 
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee have 
evaluated the effectiveness of the Board/ Director(s) for 
the financial year 2021-2022.

COMMITTEES OF BOARD:

The Board has 4 Committees: Audit Committee, 
Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee, Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee and the Corporate 
Social Responsibility Committee. A detailed note on the 
functions of the Board and Committee are provided in 
the Corporate Governance Report. The Composition of 
the Committees are as follows:

1.	 Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises of the following 
members:
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3.	 The Company shall not appoint or continue the 
employment of any person as Whole-time Director 
who has attained the age of seventy years. Provided 
that the term of the person holding this position 
may be extended beyond the age of seventy years 
with the approval of shareholders by passing 
a special resolution based on the explanatory 
statement annexed to the notice for such motion 
indicating the justification for extension of 
appointment beyond seventy years.

The Nomination and Remuneration Policy has 
been posted on the website of the Companyhttp://
lahotioverseas.in/PDFs/policies/nomination-and-
remuneration-committee-policy.pdf

ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE BOARD:

Pursuant to applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board had 
adopted a formal mechanism for evaluating its own 
performance and as well as that of its Committees and 
individual Directors, including the Chairperson of the 
Board.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL 

The Company has in place adequate internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statement. During 
the year no reportable material weakness in the design 
or operations were observed.

INTERNAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING (ICFR)

The Company has in place adequate internal financial 
controls commensurate with the size, scale and 
complexity of its operations. During the year such 
controls were tested and no reportable material 
weakness in the design or operations were observed. The 
Company has policies and procedures for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of 
its assets,the prevention and detection of frauds and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR):

Your Company has constituted a CSR Committee 
comprising of Mr. Ujwal Rambilas Lahoti as Chairperson, 
Mr. Umesh Rambilas Lahoti & Mr. Prakash Ramachandra 

4.	 Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Name of the Director Designation in the 
Committee

Mr. Ujwal Rambilas Lahoti
(Executive Director)

Chairperson

Mr. Prakash Ramchandra Bang 
(Independent Director)

Member

Mr. Umesh Rambilas Lahoti
(Managing Director)

Member

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS AND VARIOUS COMMITTEE:

During the year, Five Board Meetings were convened 
and held, the details of number of meetings of the Board 
and various Committee during the Financial Year 2021-
2022 forms part of the Corporate Governance Report.

In Compliance with Section 178 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the relevant provisions of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 
2015, the Board constituted the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee comprising of Three (3) 
Non-Executive Independent Directors of the Company 
and further the Board in consultation with the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee formulated 
the Nomination and Remuneration Policy.

The Remuneration policy of the Company comprises 
inter alia the aims and objectives, principles of 
remuneration, guidelines for remuneration to Executive 
and Non-Executive Directors and Key Managerial 
Personnel and criteria for identification of the Board 
Members and appointment of Senior Management.

The Criteria set out identification of the Board members 
are given hereunder:

1.	 The Committee shall identify and ascertain the 
integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of 
the person for appointment as Director, KMP or at 
Senior Management level and recommend to the 
Board his / her appointment. 

2.	 A person should possess adequate qualification, 
expertise and experience for the position he / she 
is considered for appointment. The Committee 
has discretion to decide whether qualification, 
expertise and experience possessed by a person is 
sufficient / satisfactory for the concerned position. 
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records in accordance with the provisions of this Act 
for safeguarding the assets of the company and for 
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a 
going concern basis; 

(e) The directors had laid down internal financial 
controls to be followed by the Company and that 
such internal financial controls are adequate and were 
operating effectively; and

(f) The directors had devised proper systems to ensure 
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws 
and that such systems were adequate and operating 
effectively.

AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT:

In accordance with Section 139(1) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014, M/s. N.G. Thakrar and Co., Chartered 
Accountants, Mumbai (Registration No.110907W) has 
been appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company 
by the members in their meeting held on December 28, 
2020 for the period of 2 (two) years till the  conclusion 
of the 27th Annual General Meeting of the Company. 
Hence the term of M/s. N.G. Thakrar and Co., Chartered 
Accountants, Mumbai (Registration No.110907W) is 
expiring in the ensuing AGM.

The Board at their meeting held on August 02, 2022 has 
recommended the appointment of P C Ghadiali and 
Co. LLP, Chartered Accountant, Firm’s  Registration 
No. 103132W, as a statutory Auditor of the Company 
in place of M/S N.G. Thakra & Co., Chartered 
Accountants, Mumbai (Registration No.110907W). the 
Company has received the confirmation letter from the 
Auditors to the effect that their appointment, if made, 
within the prescribed limits of the Companies Act, 
2013 and that they are not disqualified for appointment 
within the meaning of the said Act. As required under 
SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulation, 2015, the auditors has also confirmed that 
they hold a valid certificate issued by the Peer Review 
Board of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
(ICAI).

Pursuant to the provision of section 139(1) of the said Act 
the Board recommends their appointment as  Statutory 
Auditors of the Company for a period of 5 (five) Years i.e. 
from the conclusion of 27th Annual General Meeting till 
the conclusion of 32nd Annual General Meeting.

Bang as its members. The Committee is responsible for 
formulating and monitoring the CSR policy of the Company. 

CSR activities, as per the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013, may be undertaken by the Company through 
a registered trust or a registered society. 

The CSR policy as adopted by the Company can be 
viewed on the website of the Company at:  http://
lahotioverseas.in/PDFs/policies/corporate-social-
responsibility-policy.pdf.

The Annual report on the CSR activities undertaken by 
the Company is appended to this report as Annexure -2.

VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER:

As per the provisions of Section 177(9) and 177(10) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant provisions of 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 the Company has adopted a 
Whistle Blower Policy to report genuine concerns or 
grievances and to deal with the instances of fraud and 
mismanagement. 

The Whistle Blower Policy has been posted on the 
website of the Company http://lahotioverseas.in/PDFs/
policies/whistle-blower-policy.pdf

During the year under review, there were no complaints/ 
concerns that arose.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Pursuant to sub-section (5) of Section 134 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and to the best of their knowledge 
and belief and according to the information and 
explanations obtained /received from the operating 
management, your Directors make the following 
statement and confirm that-

(a) in the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the 
applicable accounting standards had been followed 
along with proper explanation relating to material 
departures;

(b) the directors had selected such accounting policies 
and applied them consistently and made judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a 
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company 
at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss 
of the company for that period;

(c) The directors had taken proper and sufficient 
care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
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DISCLOSURE OF REMUNERATION PAID TO 
DIRECTOR AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONAL:

The table containing the names and other particulars of 
employees in accordance with the provisions of Section 
197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5(1) 
of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is appended as 
Annexure 4 to the Board's report.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS:

There are no significant and material orders passed by 
the regulators orcourts or tribunals impacting the going 
concern status and Company'soperations in future.

RISK MANAGEMENT:

Risk management  is the identification, assessment, 
and prioritization of  risks  followed by coordinated 
and economical application of resources to minimize, 
monitor, and control the probability and/or impact 
of unfortunate events  or to maximize the realization 
of opportunities. Risk management’s objective is to 
assure uncertainty does not deflect the endeavor from 
the business goals.

The Company has laid down procedures to inform the 
members of the Board about the risk assessment and 
minimization procedures. The Company has framed 
the risk assessment and minimization procedure 
which is periodically reviewed by the Board. The risk 
management policy is displayed on the website of the 
Company viz.http://lahotioverseas.in/PDFs/policies/
risk-management-policy.pdf

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
REPORT

As per the provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the 
Management Discussion and Analysis of the financial 
condition and results of consolidated operations of 
the Company under review, is annexed and forms an 
integral part of the Annual Report.

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

The Report on Corporate Governance for the year under 
review together with the certificate from the Auditor of 
the Company regarding compliance of the conditions 
of Corporate Governance, as stipulated in the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 forms part of the Annual Report.

Being the Statutory Auditors for the Financial Year 
2021- 2022, M/s. N.G. Thakrar and Co., Chartered 
Accountants, has audited the Books of accounts.

The Reports of the Statutory Auditors, N.G. Thakrar 
and Co., Chartered Accountants on the Standalone and 
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company 
for the financial year 2021-22 form part of this 
Annual Report. The statutory auditors have submitted 
a unmodified opinion on the audit of Financial 
Statements for the financial year 2021-22 and there is no 
qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer 
given by the Auditors in their Report and therefore 
the same does not call for any further comments/
explanation from the Directors.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR:

Pursuant to provisions of section 204 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and The Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, 
Your Company has appointed Kothari H. & Associates, 
a firm of Practicing Company Secretaries as a Secretarial 
Auditor of the Company, for conducing secretarial audit 
of Company for the Financial Year 2021 – 22.

The report in respect of the Secretarial Audit carried 
out by Kothari H. & associates Company Secretaries 
in Form MR-3 for the FY 2021-22 forms part to this 
report as Annexure 3. The said report does not contain 
any adverse observation or qualification requiring 
explanation or comments from the Board under Section 
134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013.

EQUITY SHARES WITH DIFFERENTIAL RIGHTS: 

The Company has not issued any equity shares with 
differential rights / sweat equity shares/ employee stock 
options or not made any provision of its own shares by 
employees or by trustees for the benefit of employees 
during the Financial Year 2021-2022

The Company has not made any purchase or provision 
of its own shares by employees or by trustees for the 
benefit of employees during the Financial Year 2021-
2022.

LISTING:

At present the Company’s Equity Shares are listed at BSE 
Limited and the Company has paid Listing Fees to the 
above Stock Exchanges for the year 2021-22.
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PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF 
WOMEN AT WORKPLACE:

The Company has in place the “Policy on Prevention of 
Sexual Harassment at the Workplace” in line with the 
requirements of The Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 
2013. During the year under review, no complaints were 
received by theCommittee for Redressal.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Company’s Directors wish to express their grateful 
appreciation for co-operation and support received 
from customers, financial institutions,Banks, regulatory 
authorities, customers, vendors and members and the 
society at large.

Deep sense of appreciation is also recorded for the 
dedicated efforts and contribution of the employees at 
all levels, as without their focus, commitment and hard 
work, the Company’s consistent growth would not have 
been possible, despite the challenging environment.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-			      Sd/-
Ujwal Rambilas Lahoti               Umesh Rambilas Lahoti
(Executive Chairman)                      (Managing Director)
(DIN 00360785)                                        (DIN 00361216)           
                                                                                                                    
Place: Mumbai 
Date: August 02, 2022

CERTIFICATE FROM PCS UNDER SCHEDULE V 
(C) (10) (I) OF SEBI (LODR)

The Certificate from the practicing Company secretary 
as per Schedule V (C) (10) (i) of SEBI (LODR) 
certifying that none of the directors on the board of the 
company have been debarred or disqualified from being 
appointed or continuing as directors of companies by 
the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such 
statutory authority is annexed to this Director’s Report 
as Annexure-5

EXTRACTS OF ANNUAL RETURN:

The Annual Return in Form MGT-7 for the financial 
year ended, 31st March, 2022, is available on the website 
of the Company at lahotioverseas.in

ENERGY CONSERVATION MEASURES, 
TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND R&D 
EFFORTS AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS 
AND OUTGO

Your Company is not engaged in any manufacturing 
activity and thus its operations are not energy intensive. 
However adequate measures are always taken to ensure 
optimum utilization and maximum possible saving of 
energy. The Company has installed energy conservative 
equipment’s like LED (Light Emitting Diode) lights 
instead of CFL (Compact Fluorescent Lamp).

The Company has maintained a technology friendly 
environment for its employees to work in. Your Company 
uses latest technology and equipment’s. However, since 
the Company is not engaged in any manufacturing, the 
information in connection with technology absorption 
is NIL.

During the period under review the Company has 
earned Foreign Exchange of Rs. 80,308.25 Lakhs and 
incurred the Foreign Exchange outgo of Rs. 577.25 
Lakhs

COMPLIANCE  WITH  SECRETARIAL  STANDARDS: 

During the year under review, the Company has duly 
complied with the applicable provisions of the Secretarial 
Standards on Meetings of the Board of Directors (SS-1) 
and General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India (ICSI). 
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ANNEXURES TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

ANNEXURE -1
Form AOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries                      
      (Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Details
Name of the subsidiary  G Varadan Limited
Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from 
the holding company’s reporting period March 31, 2022

Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the 
relevant Financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries NA

Share capital 5,00,000 (5000 Equity Shares of Rs. 
100/- each)

Reserves & surplus 66.24
Total assets 69.72
Total Liabilities 69.72
Investments 60.67
Turnover NIL
Profit before taxation 15.47
Provision for taxation 3.06
Profit after taxation 12.12
Proposed Dividend NIL
% of shareholding 100% (Wholly owned Subsidiary)

Details of New Subsidiary/ Joint ventures/Associate Companies.

Sr. No Name of Company Subsidiary / Joint ventures/ 
Associate Company 

Date of becoming of Subsidiary / 
Joint ventures/ Associate Company.

NIL

Details of the Company who ceased to be its Subsidiary/ Joint ventures/Associate Companies.

Sr. No Name of Company Subsidiary / Joint ventures/ 
Associate Company 

Date of cession of Subsidiary / Joint 
ventures/ Associate Company.

NIL

                                                                              		  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

						      Sd/-		         Sd/-
						      Ujwal R. Lahoti            Umesh R. Lahoti
                                                                            		  Executive Chairman    Managing Director
                                                                           		  DIN No: 00360785      DIN No: 00361216

						      Sd/-		           Sd/-
Place: Mumbai                                                     		  Pradeep Bacchuka          Akshita Jhawar
Date: August 02, 2022                                   		  Chief Financial Officer   Company Secretary
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ANNEXURE -2

REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY FOR FY 2021 -22

1.	 A brief outline on CSR policy of the Company:

The Company shall decide to undertake any of the CSR activities/ projects as enumerated in Schedule VII of the 
Companies Act, 2013 or such other CSR activities/ projects as may be notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
from time to time.

2.	 Composition of the CSR Committee:

Name of Director Status at Committee Nature of Directorship

Ujwal Lahoti Chairman Executive Director

Umesh Lahoti Member Managing Director

Prakash Bang Member Independent Director

3.	 Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board 
are disclosed on the website of the company:

The Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR Projects approved by the Board is available on 
the website of the Company at the following linkshttp://www.lahotioverseas.in/investor-relations.asp

4.	 The details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of 
the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report) : 
NOT APPLICABLE

5.	 Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies 
(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial 
year, if any: NIL

6.	 Average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5): Rs. 1230 Lakhs

7.	 (a) Two percent of the average net profit of the Company as per Section 135 (5) :Rs.24.60 Lakhs

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the previous financial years : NIL

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: NIL

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year: Rs. 79.60 Lakhs including the unspent amount of previous years.

8.	 (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount 
Spent for the Fi-
nancial Year. (Rs. 
in Lakhs)

Amount Unspent (in Rs.): 18.00 Lakhs
Total Amount transferred to
Unspent CSR Account as per
section 135(6)

Amount transferred to any fund specified under 
Schedule VII as per second proviso to section 
135(5)

7.00 Amount in 
Lakhs Date of transfer Name of the 

Fund Amount Date of transfer

 18.00 30/04/2022 - - -

Total Amount spent till March 31, 2022 is Rs. 7.00 Lakhs and balance amount of Rs. 18.00 Lakhs were transferred 
to Unspent CSR Account for the Financial Year 2021-22  opened with HDFC Bank as per section 135(6).
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•	 Unspent Amount lying in the Unspent CSR Account will be spend within a period of three years towards the 
ongoing project.

(b) Details of CSR Amount spent against ongoing projects for the Financial Year: 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7)

SI.
No

Name of 
the Project 
or Activity 
identified

Item from the list 
of activities
In Schedule VII to 
the Act.

Local
area
(Yes/No).

Location of the project. Project
duration.

Amount
allocated 
for the 
project
(Rs. in 
Lakhs.)

State District

1.
Shikshan 
Mandal 
Project 

Education No Maha-
rashtra Karad 3 Years 78.00

(8) (9) (10) (11)

Amount 
spent in the 
current
financial 
Year (in Rs.in 
Lakhs).

Amount
transferred to 
Unspent CSR 
Account for the
project as per
Section 135(6) 
(Rs.in Lakhs).

Mode of
Implementa-
tion -
Direct
(Yes/No).

Mode of Implementation -
Through Implementing
Agency

	 Name
CSR 
Registration
number.

0 .00            18.00 No Shikshan 
Mandal CSR00006914

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)

SI.
No

Name of 
the Project 
or Activity 
identified

Item from the 
list of activities
In Schedule 
VII to the Act.

Local
area
(Yes/
No).

Location of the 
project.

Amount 
spent for 
the Project 
(in Lakhs).

Mode of
Implementa-
tion - Direct
(Yes/No).

Mode of Implementation 
- Through Implementing
Agency

State District Name
CSR 
registration
number

CITI-
CDRA’s 
Corpus 
Fund for 
Cotton 
Develop-
ment and 
Extension 
Activities

Education Yes

Ma-
ha-
rash-
tra

Mumbai 7.00 No

Citi 
Cotton 
Develop-
ment and 
Research 
Associa-
tions

CSR00006775

TOTAL 7.00



 Annual Report 2021-22    15

LAHOTI OVERSEAS LIMITED
CIN : L74999MH1995PLC087643

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Not Applicable

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): Rs. 7 Lakhs

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any: Nil

Sl.
No.

Particular Amount 
(Rs.in Lakhs)

1. Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) 24.60
2. Total amount spent for the Financial Year 7.00 Lakhs
3. Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] Nil
4. Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the 

previous financial years, if any
Nil

5. Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] Nil

9.	 (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Nil

S.No Preceding 
Financial
Year.

Amount transferred
to Unspent CSR 
Account under 
section 135 (6) 
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Amount spent
in the 
reporting
Financial Year 
(Rs. in Lakhs).

Amount transferred to any fund 
specified under Schedule VII as 
per section 135(6), if any.

Amount remain-
ing to be spent 
in succeeding 
financial years. 
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Name of 
the Fund

Amount 
(Rs. In 
Lakhs).

Date of
transfer

 

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s): 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)
Sl.
No.

Project 
ID

Name
of the
Project

Financial 
Year
in which 
the proj-
ect was
com-
menced

Proj-
ect
dura-
tion

Total
amount
allocated
for the
project 
(Rs. in 
Lakhs)

Amount
spent on the 
project in the 
reporting
Financial Year
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Cumulative
amount 
spent at 
the end of 
reporting 
Financial 
Year.( Rs. in 
Lakhs)

Status of
the project -
Completed /
Ongoing.

1. Educa-
tion

Shik-
shan 
Mandal 
Project 

2021 3 Years 78.00 0.00 5.00 Ongoing

Total 78.00 0.00 5.00

10.	In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired 
through CSR spent in the financial year (Asset-wise details): Not Applicable

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s) – Not Applicable

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset - Not Applicable
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(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, 
their address etc. - Not Applicable

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the 
capital asset) - Not Applicable

11.	 Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 
135(5).Nil

 

For Lahoti Overseas Limited				  

Sd/-                                                                                                 Sd/-
Ujwal Rambilas Lahoti				    Umesh Rambilas Lahoti
(Chairman of CSR Committee)   			   (Managing Director)
DIN: 00360785					     DIN: 00361216
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iv.	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the 
rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent 
of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct 
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 

v.	 The Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under 
the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 
(‘SEBI Act’) viz.:-

a.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011;

b.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015.

c.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable to the company 
during the Audit Period)

d.	 The  Securities  and Exchange Board of India 
(Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee 
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; and the 
SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations 
2014; (Not applicable to the company during the 
Audit Period)

e.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue 
and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; 
(Not applicable to the company during the Audit 
Period)

f.	The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act 
and dealing with client; 

g.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009;         
(Not applicable to the company during the Audit 
Period) 

h.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; (Not 
applicable to the company during the Audit 
Period) and

i.	The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 and amended from time to time;

Annexure -3
FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON     

MARCH 31, 2022
[Pursuant tosection 204(1) of the Companies Act, 

2013 and Rule No.9 ofthe Companies (Appointment 
and RemunerationPersonnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
TheMembers,
Lahoti Overseas Limited

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance 
of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 
good corporate practices by Lahoti Overseas Limited 
(hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was 
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable 
basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, 
papers, minute  books, forms and returns filed and 
other records maintained by the Company and also 
the information provided by the Company, its officers, 
agents and authorized representatives during the 
conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in 
our opinion, the company has, during the audit period 
covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2022 
(‘Audit period’) complied with the statutory provisions 
listed hereunder and also that the company has proper 
Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place 
to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting 
made hereinafter:

•	 We have examined the books, papers, minute  books, 
forms and returns filed and other records maintained 
by Lahoti Overseas Limited for the financial year 
ended on  March 31, 2022 according to the provisions 
of :

i.	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules 	
	 made thereunder as amended from time to time;

ii.	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 	
	 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

iii.	The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and 	
	 Bye-laws framed thereunder;
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ii.	 Redemption / buy-back of securities.

iii.	Major decisions taken by the members in pursuance 
to section 180 of the Companies Act, 2013.

iv.	 Merger / amalgamation / reconstruction, etc.

v.	 Foreign technical collaborations.

For KOTHARI H. & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries

Sd/-
Hitesh Kothari
Membership No.6038 
Certificate of Practice No. 5502
UDIN: F006038D000761177

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 02, 2022

This report is to be read with our letter of even date 
which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral 
part of this report.

•	 We have relied on the representation made 
by the Company and its Officers for systems 
and mechanism formed by the Company 
for compliances under other Acts, Laws and 
Regulations as applicable specifically to the 
company. 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable 
clauses of the following:

i.	 Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India. 

During the period under review the company 
has complied with the provisions of the Act, 
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. 
mentionedabove.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly 
constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, 
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the 
Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 
were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system 
exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting 
and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee 
Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in 
the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or 
Committee of the Board, as the case may be.

We further report that there are adequate systems and 
processes in the company commensurate with the size 
and operations of the company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
guidelines.

We further report that the compliance by the Company 
of applicable financial laws, like direct and indirect tax 
laws, and Labour Law Compliances have been subject to 
review by statutory financial audit and other designated 
professionals.

We further report that during the audit period the 
Company has not passed any resolution for:

i.	 Public/ Right/ Preferential issue of shares/ 
debentures/sweat equity, etc.
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Annexure- A

To,
TheMembers
Lahoti Overseas Limited
Our report of even date is to be read alongwith this 
letter.

1.	 Maintenance of Secretarial record is the 
responsibility of the management of the company. 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
secretarial records based on our audit.

2.	 We have followed the audit practices and 
processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 
assurance about the correctness of the contents 
of the Secretarial records. The verification was 
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are 
reflected in secretarial records. We believe that 
the processes and practices, we followed provide 
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3.	 We have not verified the correctness and 
appropriateness of financial records and Books of 
Accounts of the company.

4.	 Wherever required, we have obtained the 
Management representation about the 
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and 
happening of events etc.

5.	 The compliance of the provisions of Corporate 
and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 
standards is the responsibility of management. 
Our examination was limited to the verification of 
procedures on test basis.

6.	 The Secretarial Audit report is neither an 
assurance as to the future viability of the company 
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which 
the management has conducted the affairs of the 
company.

For KOTHARI H. & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries

Sd/-
Hitesh Kothari
Membership No.6038 
Certificate of Practice No. 5502

UDIN : F006038D000761177

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 02, 2022
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ANNEXURE -4
REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ 

WITH RULE 5 OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL 
PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

i.	 The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary 
during the financial year 2021-2022, ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration 
of the employees of the Company for the financial year 2021-2022 and the comparison of remuneration of 
each Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) against the performance of the Company are as under:

S.No Name of Director/KMP 
and Designation

Remuneration 
of Director/ 

KMP for 
financial year 

2021-2022
 (₹ in lakhs)

% increase in 
Remuneration 

in the Financial 
year 2021-2022

Ratio of 
Remuneration of 

each Director/
to median 

remuneration of 
employees

Comparison of 
the Remuneration 
of KMP/Director 

against the 
performance of 
the Company

1. Mr. Umesh Lahoti – 
Managing Director 21.60 (0%) 5.81:1 Remuneration of 

KMP/Director in-
creased by 1.05% 
and profit before 

tax increased 
32.69%

2. Mr. Ujwal Lahoti – Whole 
time Director 25.80 (0%) 6.94:1

3. Mr. Aadhitiya Lahoti – 
Whole Time Director 12.00 (0%) 3.23:1

4. Mr. Pradeep Bachhuka – 
Chief Financial Officer 11.36 3.81% 3.05:1

5. Ms. Akshita Jhawar – 
Company Secretary 5.25 7.66% 1.41:1

Note: No other Director other than Managing Director and Whole Time Director received any remuneration 
other than sitting fees for the financial year 2021-2022.
ii.	 The Median remuneration of the employees during the financial year was Rs.3.71 Lacs
iii.	In the financial year 2021-2022, there was an increase of 1.58% in the median remuneration of the employees
iv.	 There were 41 permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on March 31, 2022
v.	 The Profit before tax of the Company for the financial year 2021-22 increased by 231.26% and the increase in 

median remuneration is 1.58%.The key parameters for the variable component of the remuneration availed 
by the Directors are considered by the Board of Directors based on the recommendations of the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee and as per the Remuneration policy for Directors and Senior Management. 

vi.	Affirmation that remuneration is as per Remuneration Policy of the Company:
It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid during the year under review is as per the Remuneration 
policy of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-		            Sd/-
Ujwal R. Lahoti               Umesh R. Lahoti
(Executive Chairman)  (Managing Director)
(DIN No: 00360785)     (DIN No: 00361216)

Place: Mumbai                                                               
Date: August 02, 2022
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ANNEXURE -5
CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10) (i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,
The Members of 
LAHOTI OVERSEAS LIMITED
307 ARUN CHAMBERS TARDEO ROAD MUMBAI 
Maharashtra – 400063

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of 
LAHOTI OVERSEAS LIMITED having  CIN  L74999MH1995PLC087643 and  having registered office at 307 
ARUN CHAMBERS TARDEO ROAD MUMBAI Maharashtra – 400063 produced  before  us  by  the Company  for 
the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3)  read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 
10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors 
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal   (www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations 
furnished to us by the Company & its officers,

We hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year 
ending on 31st March, 2022 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of 
companies  by  the  Securities  and  Exchange  Board  of  India,  Ministry  of  Corporate  Affairs, or any such other 
Statutory Authority.

Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Date of appointment in Company
1. Mr. PREM SARDARILAL MALIK 00023051 28/03/2012
2 Mr. PRAKASH RAMCHANDRA BANG 00088837 12/07/2001
3. Mr. UJWAL RAMBILAS LAHOTI 00360785 01/03/2012
4. Mr. UMESH LAHOTI 00361216 24/04/1995
5. Mr. AADHITIYA UJWAL LAHOTI 01501504 01/09/2007
6. Mrs. MEGHNA VIJAY PANCHAL 07082835 13/02/2015

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the 
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This 
certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with 
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Kothari H. & Associates
Company Secretaries

Sd/-
Hitesh Kothari
(Partner)
Membership No.: 6038  				    Place: Mumbai
CP No.: 5502					     Date:  August 02, 2022
UDIN: F006038D000761311
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Lahoti Overseas Limited has ventured into the 
Renewable Energy Sector by installation of Wind 
Power projects and Solar Power projects. However the 
falling trend in the power purchase prices are affecting 
adversely on the profit margins and growth prospects. 

Awards and Recognitions

•	 The Company has won the Gold, Silver & Bronze 
trophies consistently since 1997 from TEXPROCIL 
(Cotton Textile Export Promotion Council) for 
excellence in export of cotton yarn.

•	 The Company has won the prestigious “Niryat 
Shree” award from The Federation of Indian Export 
Organization (FIEO) for the year 2003-2004. The 
Company also won Silver plaque from Government 
of Maharashtra for the year 1995-96, 1996-97 and 
Gold Plaque for the year 2009-2010. 

•	 The Company has won the Business World 
International Business Award for Category – “Best 
Export House” for excellent performance in exports 
in the year 2010-11.

•	 The Company have received Second Award in 
Merchant Exporter Category and Third Award 
in Trading House Category from Government of 
Maharashtra for its export performance in the year 
2010-11. 

•	 Recently, the Company has been awarded with 
Gold Trophy Award for highest exports of Cotton 
Yarn (count 50s & below Category II) by Texprocil 
for the year 2021-22.

These awards recognised the efforts of the Company 
in the creation of path breaking trends and excellent 
export performance in Cotton Textile Industry. 

Opportunities and Threats

Textile Division
The future of Indian Cotton Textile Industry is 
highly depending on availability of raw material at a 
competitive price. With the introduction of Hybrids 
and BT Cotton, the cotton production in India is 
increasing every year. The government is making 
efforts to supply proper quality seeds at a reasonable 
price to the growers and it is expected that the supply 
of quality cotton will be comfortable.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

Industry Structure and Development

Textile division:

The Textile Industry in India is second largest employer 
after agriculture providing jobs to the various class of 
peoples and is one of the significant contributors to 
the Indian economy. During the year 2021-22, the 
Cotton Textile Industry in India has experienced 
an improvement on account of overall demands 
from Overseas markets.  Upward price trend in Raw 
Material and Textile products, has helped achieving 
better realizations for export. Overall Exports of 
Cotton Textiles increased from India.

However, demand dropped down in world market 
particularly from last month of the last quater of the 
financial year 2021-22. Main reasons are too much 
volatility in Raw Material (raw cotton) prices, lesser 
demand of final products due to inflation all around, 
war in the West, Covid showing back strongly in China.  
Overall Exports of Cotton Textile products affected 
badly, reflecting much lower volumes and profits for 
the exporters.

Revival is only expected once Raw Material prices 
comes back to reasonable level, enable whole Textile 
value chain to move on smoothly.

Lahoti Overseas Limited is mainly engaged in the 
export trading of various kinds of Cotton Yarns, Grey 
Cotton Fabrics and allied Textile products.  Company 
has strong presence in Overseas markets in these 
products. Company enjoys good reputation in the 
Global markets by way of its competitiveness and 
efficient services.

Power Projects Division:

Government of India has taken several measures to 
encourage Renewable Energy Sector in India. Many 
State Governments and Government undertakings 
also have come out with the Reverse Bidding System 
to fulfil their obligations for Renewable Energy and 
combined with this sector has become the most talked 
about sector attracting huge investments and has the 
potential for huge growth in future.
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The long term objective of the Company is to remain 
strong player in the cotton textiles export market with 
strong emphasis on product and market development, 
value added yarns, customer services and Technology 
Up gradation. Your Company is also continuously 
improving its operational efficiency, and cost control 
which alone can improve the bottom line in future 
in highly competitive environment. Further, your 
Company is hopeful to get advantage of the overall 
good times likely to come for the Indian Cotton Textile 
Industry and will do all out efforts to secure the bigger 
share of the increasing market in future.

A stable outlook on cotton and synthetic textiles 
would result from favourable policy environment, 
improvements in demand-supply position, continued 
stability in input costs and consequent improvement 
in margins/liquidity. However, the good monsoon and 
pick up in Indian economy due to various measures 
taken by the Government would unleash demand 
in the long run and offset any slowdown in exports. 
Further, the hope of revival of Chinese economy will 
also bring the positive growth for this sector. 

By encashing the rich experience gained by  the 
Company in the Cotton Textile sector, the company 
has plans to increase its efforts of marketing and to 
open up foreign offices in order to better serve its 
customers. The emphasis will also be on more exports 
of value added items such as dyed yarns, specialty 
yarns and grey and dyed fabrics.

Power Projects Division:

The overall outlook of the Renewable Energy sector in 
India has been positive. The supportive steps taken by 
Government of India and almost all State Governments 
in India have given a big boost to this sector. The 
reduction in capital cost of the project particularly in 
Solar Power have made this sector viable and due to the 
improvement in technology, this sector will become 
more competitive and self-sufficient. India has huge 
potential for Wind and Solar Power as the availability 
of wind and sunlight are available in abundance in 
India with favorable weather conditions and India has 
the fifth largest installed  wind power  capacity in the 
world.

In the past, the Textile Industry did not develop in an 
organized manner and the policy favored fragmentation 
resulting in organized players suffering heavily because 
of the distorted fiscal structure. Fortunately, in the last 
few years, the Government has now provided level 
playing field to all the sectors of textile industry and 
therefore, large investments are coming in the textile 
industry. Government had given good incentives 
under Technology Upgradation Fund Scheme, Textile 
Park Scheme and also benefits to the processing sector, 
which will give boost to the textile industry. Further 
upon introduction of GST, will provide level playing 
field for all the segments of the industry and will be a 
positive factor for the growth of the industry.  

Power Projects Division:
Power Projects specifically the Renewable Energy 
projects are highly capital intensive. These projects are 
also dependent on natural resources like wind, water, 
sunlight etc. The requirement of good infrastructures 
such as connectivity of roads, viability of 
communication systems play key roles in such projects. 
Being highly capital intensive, the cost of production of 
energy is relatively higher in such projects.   However 
there is no consumption of Raw Materials and also 
due to the substantial reduction in the capital cost in 
recent times, these projects are now becoming viable. 
The floor price of REC have been revised downwards 
recently will help to increase the sale of REC, however 
the matter of allowing the vintage multiplier to the old 
investors in the sector is still to be resolved and the 
same is subjudised. 

Segment wise and Product wise performance
Revenue in Textile Division has shown an increased 
by Rs. 42,275.25 Lakhs when compared to last year. 
The Profits before interest and Tax of Textile Division 
shown an increase of Rs. 2,827.02 Lakhs when 
compared to last year profits.

Power Projects Division:
Revenue from Power Division decreased by Rs. 85.83 
Lakhs when compared to last year. However the Profits 
of Power division has shown decrease by Rs. 176.65 
lakhs.

Outlook

Textile Division
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•	 Risk of a cost increases for key input factors 
such as labour or modules, or rate decreases for 
electricity generated;

•	 Risk of unscheduled plant closure due to the lack 
of resources, equipment damages or component 
failures;

•	 Risk of reduction in sale price;

•	 Risk of components generating less electricity 
over time than expected;

•	 Risk of a change in policy that may affect the 
profitability of the project, for example changes 
in levels of tax credit or RPS targets. Also, this 
includes changes in policy as related to permitting 
and interconnection and implementation of such 
policy by Government;

•	 Risk of changes in electricity generation due to 
lack of sunshine or dust covering solar panels for 
long periods of time;

•	 Risk that all or parts of the solar park will be 
subject to sabotage, terrorism or theft and thus 
generate less electricity than planned;

•	 Risk of Natural Calamities.

Internal Control Systems and their adequacy

The Company has a proper adequate internal control 
system to ensure that all the assets are safe guarded and 
protected against the loss from unauthorized usage 
or disposition and that transactions are authorized, 
recorded and reported correctly.

The internal control is supplemented by an extensive 
internal audit, periodical review by the management 
and documented policies, guidelines and procedures. 
The internal control is designed to ensure that the 
financial and other records are reliable for preparing 
financial statements and other data and for maintaining 
accountability of assets.

Financial and Operational Performance

During the year under review your Company has 
reported a total income of Rs. 90,066.13 Lakhs out of 
which the sale realization has an increased by 90.70% 
at Rs. 88,885.81 Lakhs when compared to previous 
years proceeds of Rs. 46,610.56 Lakhs from the textile 

Risks and Concern

A. Brief risk factors for Textile projects 

•	 Our business shall dependent on the availability/
supply and cost of raw materials which we source 
from domestic suppliers. Any significant increase 
in the prices of these raw materials or decrease 
in the availability of the raw materials, could 
adversely affect our results of operations;

•	 Our business is subject to regulation by several 
authorities, which could have an adverse effect on 
our business and our results of operations;

•	 We are heavily dependent on our Promoters 
and the loss of their guidance and services 
may adversely affect our business or results of 
operations;

•	 Change in Government of India’s Economic 
Liberalization policies may hinder prices of our 
equity shares;

•	 Change in Tax laws in India (i.e. Goods & Service 
Tax & Income Tax) may increase tax liabilities of 
the company inversely affecting PAT;

•	 Slowdown in the Indian economy may inverse 
effect in our profit;

•	 Any Natural calamities, terrorist attack on India 
may hinder our profit;

•	 Change in economic regulations and laws may 
also effect the company adversely.

B. Brief risk factors for Power projects 

•	 Risk of property damage or liability stemming 
from errors during the building of new projects;

•	 Risk affecting the viability of the project developer, 
for example, risks related to key personnel, 
financial solidity and technical ability to execute 
on plans;

•	 Risk of environmental damage caused by the 
solar park including any liability following such 
damage;

•	 Risk of insufficient access to investment and 
operating capital;
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capable. We believe in fostering equal employment 
opportunities, where individuals are selected and 
treated on the basis of their job-relevant merits and are 
given equal opportunities within the organization

There were 41 permanent employees on the rolls of the 
Company as on 31st March, 2022.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors	

Sd/-			      Sd/-
Ujwal Rambilas Lahoti              Umesh Rambilas Lahoti      
(Executive Chairman)                         (Managing Director)
(DIN 00360785)                                             (DIN 00361216)

Place: Mumbai 
Date: August 02, 2022  

division and a decrease of  21.60% at Rs. 311.62 Lakhs 
when compared to previous year proceeds of Rs. 397.45 
Lakhs in the Power division.  

Further the non-operating income amounts to 
Rs.868.69 Lakhs which has increased by 19.40% 
Rs.727.51 Lakhs  as compared to the previous year .

Liquidity and Capital Resources                

Particulars 2021-2022
(Rs. in Lakhs)

2020-2021
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Cash and Cash 
Equivalents –

Beginning of the year 428.19 874.99
End of the year 2,135.15 428.19
Net Cash provided 
(used) by -

Operating activities 1,444.15 (1636.51)
Investment activities (591.74) (103.52)
Financial activities 854.55 1293.23

During the year, there has been a Cash intflow from 
Operating activity to the extent Rs.1,444.15 lakhs as 
against cash outflow of Rs.1,636.51 Lakhs during the 
corresponding previous year. Further during the year 
there is cash outflow of Rs.591.74 Lakhs on account 
of Investment activity as against outflow of Rs.103.52 
Lakhs during the previous year. During the year the 
inflow generated over finance activity is Rs.854.55 
Lakhs as compare to Rs.1293.23 Lakhs in the previous 
year.

Material Developments in Human Resources

The Company continues to lay emphasis on developing 
and facilitating optimum human performance. 
Performance management was the key word for the 
Company this year. Recruitment process has been 
strengthened to ensure higher competence levels.

Human Resources and Industrial Relations

Human Resource is the most vital factor to achieve the 
goals of any organization. To maintain its competitive 
edge in a highly dynamic industry, Company 
recognizes the importance of having a work force which 
is consumer-focused, performance-driven and future-
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Report on Corporate Governance

In accordance with Regulation 34 read with Schedule 
V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (SEBI LODR 
Regulations) and some of the best practices followed 
internationally on Corporate Governance System and 
processes at Lahoti Overseas Limited is as follows:

1. Our Corporate Governance Philosophy

The Company believes in abiding by the Code of 
Governance so as to be a responsible corporate 
citizen and to serve to the best interests of all the 
stakeholders, viz., the employees, shareholders, 
customers, vendors and the society at large. 
The Company seeks to achieve this goal by 
being transparent in its business dealings, by 
disclosing all relevant information in an easily 
understandable manner, and by being fair to all 
stakeholders, by ensuring that the organization is 
managed and monitored in a responsible manner 
for creating and sharing stakeholder’s value 
and the Company’s activities are managed by a 
professionally competent and independent Board 
of Directors. The performance of the Company is 
driven by integrity which is vital to gain the trust of 
the stakeholders.

Our Endeavour is to follow the spirit of good 
governance rather than the mere letter of the 
conditions specified by regulatory authorities. 

The Company has strived to adopt a corporate 
governance framework to align itself with the 
new guidelines of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
the new SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations,2015. The Company 
ensures timely disclosures and sharing of accurate 
information about financials and performance as 
well as leadership and governance of the Company.

The Corporate Governance philosophy of the 
Company rests on five basic tenets viz., Board’s 
accountability, value creation, strategic guidance, 
transparency and equitable treatment to all 
stakeholders.

2. Board of Directors (Board)

a.	 Board composition:

The Company maintains optimum number of Direc-
tors in compliance with the Companies Act, 2013, 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Require-
ments) Regulations, 2015 and in accordance with 
the best practices of Corporate Governance. The 
Board has the optimum combination of executive 
and non-executive/ Independent Directors thereby 
bringing objectivity and transparency in the Man-
agement and in dealings of the Company.

As on March 31, 2022, the Board consisted of Six 
Members of which 3 are Executive Directors and 3 
are Non-Executive Directors. All members of the 
Board are persons with considerable experience and 
expertise in Industry. 

The Chairman and Managing Director along with 
the Board of Directors provide leadership to the 
Board and to the Management in strategizing and 
realizing business objectives and are supported by 
the Executive Directors. The Independent Directors 
contribute by giving their valuable guidance and in-
puts with their independent judgment on the overall 
business strategies and performance. 

None of the Directors on the Board is a Member of 
more than 10 Committees and Chairman of more 
than 5 Committees (Committees being Audit Com-
mittee & Stakeholders Relationship Committees as 
per the provisions of the SEBI LODR Regulations), 
across all the companies in which he/she is Director. 
The necessary disclosures regarding committee po-
sitions have been made by all the Directors. None of 
the Directors holds office in more than 20 companies 
and in more than 10 public companies.



 Annual Report 2021-22    27

LAHOTI OVERSEAS LIMITED
CIN : L74999MH1995PLC087643

Name of the 
Director

Category-
(Executive/

Non-
Executive/

Independent)

No. of 
Outside 

Directorships 
held in 

Indian Public 
Limited 

Companies 
(including 

Lahoti 
Overseas 
Limited)

Number of Outside 
Committee positions 

held

Number of 
Board Meetings

Attended 
Last AGM

Member Chairman Held Attended

Mr. Umesh 
RambilasLahoti

Executive 7 4 0 5 5 Yes

Mr. Ujwal 
RambilasLahoti

Executive 6 4 0 5 5 Yes

Mr. Aadhitiya 
Ujwal   Lahoti

Executive 4 0 0 5 5 Yes

Mr. Prem Sardarilal 
Malik

Non- 
Executive & 
Independent

4 3 1 5 4 Yes

Mr. Prakash 
RamchandraBang

Non- 
Executive & 
Independent

5 1 3 5 5 Yes

Ms. MeghnaVijay 
Panchal

Non- 
Executive & 
Independent

3 1 2 5 5 Yes

* Only Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee of Indian Public Companies have been 
considered for committee positions. The above Directorships & Committee Positions are including Directorships 
& Committee Positions in your company. 

The number of directorships and the positions held on Board Committees by the directors are in conformity 
with the limits on the number of Directorships and Board Committee positions as laid down in the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the (SEBI LODR) Regulations on  March 31, 2022.

Certificates have also been obtained from the Independent Directors confirming their position as Independent 
Directors on the Board of the Company in accordance with Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with 
the relevant provisions of (SEBILODR)Regulations.

The Disclosures about the Category of the Directors along with their directorship & Committee Membership are 
given below as on March 31, 2022: 



   28    Annual Report 2021-22

LAHOTI OVERSEAS LIMITED
CIN : L74999MH1995PLC087643

Name of the other listed entities where directors of the Company are Directors and category of Directorship as 
on March 31, 2022:

S.No. Name of the Directors Name of listed entitles in which the 
concerned Director is a Director

Category of Directorship 

1. Ujwal R. Lahoti Hind Commerce Limited Non-Executive Director

Bhalchandram Clothing Limited Executive Director

2. Umesh R. Lahoti Hind Commerce Limited Managing Director

Bhalchandram Clothing Limited Executive Director

3. Aadhitiya U. Lahoti Bhalchandram Clothing Limited Non-Executive Director

4 Prem S. Malik INDO Count Industries Limited Non-Executive Independent Director

5. Prakash R. Bang Hind Commerce Limited Non-Executive Independent Director

Bhalchandram Clothing Limited Non-Executive Independent Director

6. Meghna V. Panchal Hind Commerce Limited Non-Executive Independent Director

Bhalchandram Clothing Limited Non-Executive Independent Director

Key Board qualifications, expertise and attributes

The Board of Directors of the Company recognizes that qualified members who bring in the required skills, com-
petence and expertise that allow them to make effective contribution to the Board and its Committees.

The table below summarizes the key qualifications, skills, and attributes which are taken into consideration while 
nominating candidates to serve on the Board:

Sr. 
No.

Name of Director Knowledge 
on Company’s 
businesses, 
policies 
and culture 
knowledge of 
the industry

Corporate 
Governance
Experience 
with a major 
organisation 
that 
demonstrates
rigorous 
governance
Standards.

Business 
Strategy, Sales 
& Marketing, 
Corporate 
Governance, 
Forex 
Management, 
Administration, 
Decision 
Making,

Financial
Proficiency in 
financial
accounting and 
reporting,
corporate 
finance and 
internal
controls.

Technical / 
Professional 
skills

1. Mr. Ujwal Lahoti ✓ - ✓ ✓ ✓

2. Mr. Umesh Lahoti ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓

3. Mr. Aadhitiya Lahoti ✓ - ✓ ✓ ✓

4. Mr. Prem S. Malik ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓

5. Mr. Prakash R. Bang ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓

6. Mrs. Meghna V. 
Panchal

✓ - ✓ ✓ ✓
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Board Meetings held and attendance:

The Board meets at least once in each quarter inter 
alia to review the quarterly results. In addition, the 
Board also meets whenever it is necessary. The Board 
periodically reviews compliance reports of all laws 
applicable to the Company. 

Sr. 
No.

Date of Meetings Venue and time of 
the meeting

Directors present Directors to whom 
Leave of absence was 
granted

Sr. 
No.

Date of Meetings Venue and time of 
the meeting

Directors present Directors to whom 
Leave of absence was 
granted

1. June 10, 2021 Venue: 
Through Video 
Conferencing

Time: 03.45.p.m.

1. Mr. Ujwal Rambilas Lahoti
2. Mr. Umesh Rambilas Lahoti
3. Mr Aadhitiya Lahoti
4.Mr. Prakash Ramchandra Bang
5. Ms. Meghna Vijay Panchal

2. June 30, 2021 Venue: 
Through Video 
Conferencing

Time: 03.45.p.m.

1. Mr. Ujwal Rambilas Lahoti
2. Mr. Umesh Rambilas Lahoti
3. Mr Aadhitiya Lahoti
4.Mr. Prakash Ramchandra Bang
5. Ms. Meghna Vijay Panchal

1. Mr. Prem Sardarilal 
Malik

3. August 13,2021 Venue: 
Through Video 
Conferencing

Time: 03.45.p.m.

1. Mr. Ujwal Rambilas Lahoti
2. Mr. Umesh Rambilas Lahoti
3. Mr Aadhitiya Lahoti
4.Mr. Prakash Ramchandra Bang
5. Mr. Prem Sardarilal Malik
6. Ms. MeghnaVijay Panchal

-

4. November 12, 
2021

Venue: 
Through Video 
Conferencing

Time: 03.45.p.m.

1. Mr. Ujwal Rambilas Lahoti
2. Mr. Umesh Rambilas Lahoti
3. Mr. Aadhitiya Ujwal Lahoti
4. Mr. Prem Sardarilal Malik
5. Mr. Prakash Bang
6. Ms. Meghna Vijay Panchal

-

5. February 14, 
2022

Venue: Through 
Video Conferenc-
ing

Time: 03.30.p.m.

1. Mr. Ujwal Rambilas Lahoti
2. Mr. Umesh Rambilas Lahoti
3. Mr. Aadhitiya Ujwal Lahoti
4.Mr. Prakash Ramchandra Bang
5. Mr. Prem Sardarilal Malik
6. Ms.Meghna Vijay Panchal

-

Steps are taken by the Company to rectify instances of 
non-compliances, if any.

The Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as “the 
Board”) met for Five (5) number of times during the 
Year under review:

The gap between two Board Meetings held during the year 2021-22 does not exceeds 120 days. Excluding the 
separate meeting of Independent Directors, in which non independent directors were not eligible to participate. 
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Resources/ Industrial Relations front like signing 
of wage agreement, implementation of Voluntary 
Retirement Scheme etc. 

•	 Sale of material nature of investments, subsidiaries, 
assets which is not in normal course of business.

•	 Quarterly details of foreign exchange exposures and 
the steps taken by management to limit the risks of 
adverse exchange rate movement, if material.

•	 Non-compliance of any regulatory, statutory or 
listing requirements and shareholders service such 
as non-payment of dividend, delay in share transfer 
etc.

Independent Directors:

As on the date of this report, the Company’s Board 
consists of the following Independent Directors:

i.	 Mr.Prakash Ramchandra Bang
ii.	 Mr. Prem Sardarilal Malik
iii.	Ms. Meghna Vijay Panchal

Relationship Between the Directors:

Mr. Umesh Lahoti and Mr. Ujwal Lahoti are brothers 
and Mr. Aadhitiya Lahoti is son of Mr. Ujwal Lahoti. 
Except for the aforementioned none of the directors are 
related to each other.

Number of shares and Convertible Instruments held 
by Non-Executive Directors:

None of the Non-Executive Directors hold any shares 
and/or Convertible Instruments of the company in their 
name.

Familiarization program for Directors

As per the provisions of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 
the Company provides training to the Independent 
Directors in the Board Meeting itself to familiarize 
them about the Industry’s specific issues to enable them 
to understand the business environment in which the 
Company Operates, their roles and responsibilities, 
Code of Conduct and other business ethics, nature and 
industry of the Company and the business model of the 
Company. 

Procedure of Board/ Committee Meeting 

The agenda papers with relevant explanatory notes and 
material documents relating to matters for perusal of 
the Board/ Committee are circulated in advance, so as 
to facilitate discussion and informed decision-making 
in the meeting.

The information placed / required to be placed before 
the board of directors inter alia, includes:

•	 Annual operating plans and budgets and any updates 

•	 Capital budgets and any updates 

•	 Quarterly results of the Company and its operating 
divisions or business segments 

•	 Minutes of meetings of Audit Committee and other 
Committees of the Board 

•	 The information on recruitment and remuneration 
of senior officers just below the board level, including 
appointment or removal of Chief Financial Officer 
and the Company Secretary

•	 Show cause, demand, prosecution notices and 
penalty notices, which are materially important 

•	 Fatal or serious accidents, dangerous occurrences, 
any material effluent or pollution problems 

•	 Any material default in financial obligations to and 
by the Company, or substantial non-payment for 
goods sold by the Company 

•	 Any issue, which involves possible public or product 
liability claims of substantial nature, including any 
judgment or order which, may have passed strictures 
on the conduct of the Company or taken an adverse 
view regarding another enterprise that can have 
negative implications on the Company.

•	 Details of any joint venture or collaboration 
agreement 

•	 Transactions that involve substantial payment 
towards goodwill, brand equity, or intellectual 
property. 

•	 Significant labour problems and their proposed 
solutions. Any significant development in Human 
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The Code is displayed on the website of the Company 
vizhttp://lahotioverseas.in/PDFs/policies/code-for-fair-
disclosure-of-upsi.pdf

OTHER COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of Mr. Prakash 
Ramachandra Bang, Chairman, Ms. Meghna Vijay 
Panchal and Mr. Prem Sardarilal Malik the members. 
The Committee held 4 (Four) meetings during the year. 
All the members of the Audit Committee are Non-
Executive and Independent Directors. All the members 
are financially literate and have accounting / related 
financial management expertise. 

The Audit Committee advises the Management on the 
areas where internal control system can be improved. 
The Company has appointed Lahoti Navneet and Co., 
Chartered Accountants as Internal Auditors to review 
and report on the internal control system. The report of 
the internal auditors is reviewed by the Audit Committee. 
The Internal Auditors submits their recommendations 
for the Audit Committee and provides their road map 
for future action. 

The terms of reference, role, function, responsibility and 
constitution of the Audit Committee is in accordance 
to the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of the SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations,2015 .

The Audit Committee functions according to its Charter 
that defines its composition, authority, responsibilities 
and reporting functions. The terms of reference of the 
Audit Committee, inter alia, includes the following 
function:   

•	 Overseeing the Company’s financial reporting 
process and the disclosure of its financial information 
to ensure that the Financial Statement is correct, 
sufficient and credible;

•	 Recommending to the Board of Directors, the 
appointment, re-appointment, terms of appointment 
and, if required, the replacement or removal of the 
statutory auditor and the fixation of audit fees;

•	 Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any 
other services rendered by the statutory auditors

The Company acknowledges the importance of 
continuous education and training of the Directors to 
enable effective discharge of their responsibility. 

http://www.lahotioverseas.in/policies.asp

Code of Conduct:

Code of Conduct for the Board Members and Senior 
Management of the Company

The Company has adopted Code of Conduct for 
the Board Members and Senior Management of 
the Company which is applicable to the Board of 
Directors including Independent Directors and Senior 
Management Personnel as defined in the Code. The 
Code requires Directors and Employees to act honestly, 
fairly, ethically and with integrity, conduct themselves 
in professional, courteous and respectful manner. 
The Code is displayed on the website of the Company 
vizhttp://lahotioverseas.in/PDFs/policies/code-of-
conduct.pdf

All Board members and senior management have 
confirmed compliance with the Code for the year 
ended March 31, 2022. The Annual Report contains 
a declaration to this effect signed by the Managing 
Director.

Code of Conduct for Insider Trading

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for 
Prevention of Insider Trading, 2015 in accordance with 
the requirements of Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 
2015, as amended from time to time. 

The Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer for 
monitoring adherence to the said Regulations. The Code 
is displayed on the website of the Company vizhttp://
lahotioverseas.in/PDFs/policies/code-of-conduct-
policy-for-prevention-of-insider-trading.pdf

The Company has adopted the Code of practices and 
procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price 
Sensitive Information (UPSI) in compliance with 
Regulation 8(1) and other applicable provisions of the 
SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 
and the SEBI Circular No. CIR/ISD/01/2015 dated 11th 
May, 2015. 
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coverage and frequency of internal audit;

•	 Discussion with internal auditors any significant 
findings and follow up there on;

•	 Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations 
by the internal auditors into matters where there is 
suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal 
control systems of a material nature and reporting 
the matter to the Board of Directors;

•	 Discussing with statutory auditors before the audit 
commences, about the nature and scope of audit as 
well as have post-audit discussion to ascertain any 
area of concern

•	 To look into the reasons for substantial defaults 
in payments to depositors, debenture holders, 
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared 
dividends) and creditors;

•	 To review the functioning of the whistle blowing 
mechanism;

•	 Approval of appointment of the chief financial officer 
(i.e. the whole time finance director or any other 
person heading the finance function or discharging 
that function) after assessing, amongst others, the 
qualifications, experience and background of the 
candidate;

•	 Review & monitor the auditor’s independence and 
performance and effectiveness of audit process;

•	 Approval or any subsequent modification of 
transactions of the company with related parties;

•	 Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans & investments;

•	 Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company;

•	 Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk 
management systems;

•	 Examination of the financial statement and the 
auditor’s report thereon;

•	 Monitoring the end use of funds raised through 
public offers and related matters;

•	 Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in 
the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.

•	 Reviewing with the management the Annual 
Financial Statements before submission to the Board 
of Directors for approval, with particular reference 
to:

a.	 Matters required to be included in the director’s 
responsibility statement to be included in the 
Board of Directors’ report in terms of clause (c) 
of sub-section 3 of section 134 of the Companies 
Act, 2013;

b.	 Changes, if any, in accounting policies and 
practices and reasons for the same;

c.	 Major accounting entries involving estimates 
based on the exercise of judgment by 
management; 

d.	 Significant adjustments made in the Financial 
Statements arising out of audit findings;

e.	 Compliance with listing and other legal 
requirements relating to financial statements;

f.		 Disclosure of any Related Party Transactions;

g.	 Qualifications in the draft audit report;

•	 Reviewing with the management the quarterly 
financial statements before submission to the Board 
of Directors for approval;

•	 Reviewing, with the management, the statement of 
uses / application of funds raised through an issue 
(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), 
the statement of funds utilized for purposes other 
than those stated in the offer document/prospectus/ 
notice and the report submitted by the monitoring 
agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of 
a public or rights issue, and making appropriate 
recommendations to the Board to take up steps in 
this matter.

•	 Reviewing with the management the performance of 
statutory and internal auditors and the adequacy of 
internal control systems

•	 Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, 
if any, including the structure of the internal audit 
department, staffing and seniority of the official 
heading the department, reporting structure 
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•	 To lay down criteria and terms and conditions with 
regard to identifying persons who are qualified to 
become Directors (Executive and Non-Executive) 
and persons who may be appointed in Senior 
Management and Key Managerial positions and to 
determine their remuneration. 

•	 To determine remuneration based on the Company’s 
size and financial position and trends and practices 
on remuneration prevailing in peer companies. 

•	 To formulate criteria for evaluation and carry out 
evaluation of the performance of Directors, as well as 
Key Managerial, Independent Directors and Senior 
Management Personnel. 

•	 To provide them reward linked directly to their 
effort, performance, dedication and achievement 
relating to the Company’s operations. 

•	 To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure 
long term sustainability of talented managerial 
persons and create competitive advantage.

•	 To ensure no violation, by an employee of any 
applicable laws in India or overseas, including:

a.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992; or

b.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Prohibition of Fraudulent and Unfair Trade 
Practices relating to the Securities Market) 
Regulations, 1995.

•	 To formulate detailed terms and conditions of 
employee stock option schemes including details 
pertaining to quantum of options to be granted, 
conditions for lapsing of vested options, exercise 
period, adjustments for corporate actions and 
procedure for cashless exercise and perform such 
other functions as are required to be performed by 
the Remuneration Committee under the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock 
Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase 
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999, as amended (“ESOP 
Guidelines”), in particular, those stated in Clause 5 
of the ESOP Guidelines; as and when required.

•	 To investigate any activity within its terms of 
reference;

•	 To have full access to information contained in the 
records of the Company;

•	 To seek information from any employee;

•	 To obtain outside legal or other professional advice; 
and

•	 To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant 
expertise, if it considers necessary.

a.	 Composition and Audit Committee 
Meetings	

There were 5 (five) meetings of the Audit Committee 
held during the year ended  March 31, 2022, i.e. on June 
10, 2021, June 30, 2021, August 13, 2021,  November 
12, 2021, and February 14, 2022. Necessary quorum was 
present at all the meetings. 

Name of Committee 
Members

Category No. of Meetings 
attended

Mr. Prakash 
Ramachandra Bang

Chairman 5

Mr. Prem Sardarilal 
Malik

Member 4

Ms. Meghna Vijay 
Panchal

Member 5

The meetings of the Audit Committee are usually 
attended by the Managing Director, Chief Financial 
Officer, the Company Secretary and a representative 
of the Internal Auditors and Statutory Auditors. The 
Business Operation Heads are invited to the Meetings, 
as and when required. The Company Secretary acts as 
the secretary to the Committee.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

In Compliance with Section 178 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations the Board constituted the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee comprising of Three (3) 
Non-Executive Independent Directors of the Company 
with the following role and function:
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•	 To devise a policy on Board diversity

•	 To Identifying persons who are qualified to 
become directors and who may be appointed in 
senior management in accordance with the criteria 
laid down, and recommend to the Board their 
appointment and removal. 

•	 To develop a succession plan for the Board and to 
regularly review the plan.

a.	 Composition and Meetings of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee 

Name of 
Committee 
Members

Category No. of 
Meetings 
Conducted

No. of 
Meetings 
attended

Mr. Meghna 
Vijay Panchal

Chairperson 1 1

Mr. Prakash 
Ramchandra 
Bang

Independent 
Director 

1 1

Mr. Prem 
Sardarila 
Malik

Independent 
Director 

1 1

The Committee met once during the financial year 
on November 12, 2021 wherein the matters of 
Appointment & Re-appointment of Key Managerial 
Personnel of the company were discussed, approved 
and recommended by the Committee to the Board. 
The meeting was conducted with full quorum.

b.	 Remuneration Policy:

In compliance with the provisions of Section 178 of 
the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors in 
consultation with the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee has formulated the Nomination and 
Remuneration Policy. The Policy has been divided into 
three parts: Part – A covers the matters to be dealt with 
and recommended by the Committee to the Board, 
Part – B covers the appointment and nomination and 
Part – C covers remuneration and perquisites etc.

Briefly the formulated policy comprises of the 
following:

i.	 Appointment criteria and qualification - setting up 
of criteria and positive attributes and independence 
for identification and selection of directors, KMP 
and Senior Management positions

ii.	 Recommendation to the Board on appointment 
and removal of Directors, KMP and Senior 
Management Personnel

iii.	Specifying the term and tenure of the Director

iv.	 Procedure and criteria for evaluation of 
Performance of every Director

v.	 Removal and Retirement of Directors

vi.	Remuneration Structure of Whole-time Director, 
KMP and Senior Management Personnel

vii.	Remuneration structure of Non- Executive / 
Independent Director

The Nomination and Remuneration Policy has 
been posted on the website of the Companyhttp://
lahotioverseas.in/PDFs/policies/nomination-and-
remuneration-committee-policy.pdf

c.	 Remuneration of Directors:

All Executive Directors receive salary, allowances, 
perquisites and commission while Non-Executive 
Independent Directors receive sitting fees for 
attending Board and Committee meetings. Payment 
of remuneration to the Chairman & Managing 
Director and the Executive Directors is governed by 
an Agreement entered into between the Company and 
the Managerial Personnel, the terms and conditions of 
which have been duly approved by the Board and the 
shareholders of the Company. 
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Salary paid to the Executive Directors including Commission is as follows:
(Rs. in Lakhs)

•	 Allotment of shares, approval of transfer or 
transmission of shares, debentures or any other 
securities;

•	 Issue of duplicate certificates and new certificates on 
split/consolidation/renewal;

•	 Non-receipt of declared dividends, balance sheets of 
the Company; and

•	 Carrying out any other function as prescribed in the 
Listing Regulation.

a.	 Composition and Meetings of Stakeholder’s 
Relationship Committee 

The Committee met four (4) times in the during the 
Financial Year 2021-22 i.e. on June 30, 2021, August 
13, 2021, November 12, 2021 and February 14, 2022. 
Necessary quorum was present at all the meetings. 

The composition of the Committee is as mentioned be-
low:

Name of the 
Director

Position Category

Ms. Meghna 
Vijay Panchal

Chairperson Non-Executive 
Director

Mr. Umesh 
RambilasLahoti

Member Executive 
Director

Mr. Ujwal 
Rambilas 
Lahoti

Member Executive 
Director

Particulars Name of the Executive Director
Mr. Ujwal R Lahoti Mr. Umesh R Lahoti Mr. Aadhitiya Ujwal Lahoti

Gross Salary 21.60 21.60 24.00
Commission and Perquisites 4.20 NIL NIL
Date of Agreement April 01, 2019 August 13, 2020 September 01, 2017
No. of Years 5 years 5 years 5 years
Period of Agreement Up to March 31, 2024 Up to August 12, 2025 Up to August 31, 2022
Notice Period 3 months 3 months 3 months
Stock Options Nil Nil Nil

Details of Sitting Fees paid to the Independent 
Directors for 2021-22

Name of the Director Sitting Fees (in Rs.)
Mr. Prem S Malik 30,000.00
Mr. Prakash R Bang 41,250.00
Ms. Meghna S Panchal 42,750.00

Note:

•	 None of the Directors received any loans or 
advances from the Company during the year.

•	 No remuneration other than the sitting fees for 
attending Board & Committee Meetings was paid 
to the Independent Directors.

Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee

In compliance with the provisions of Section 178 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 of 
the SEBI (LODR) Regulations the Stakeholder’s 
Relationship Committee consists of two executive 
directors of the company and a non-executive director 
being the Chairperson of the committee. The role of 
the Committee includes to consider and resolve the 
grievances of all stakeholders of the Company. 

The terms of reference of Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee inter alia includes the following:

•	 Redressal of Shareholders’, debenture holders’ 
and other security holders’ investors complaints 
including complaints related to transfer of shares;



   36    Annual Report 2021-22

LAHOTI OVERSEAS LIMITED
CIN : L74999MH1995PLC087643

No queries/ complaints were received by the Company 
from shareholders. There were no pending letters/ 
complaints. The status of Shareholders’ complaints 
received upto March 31, 2022 is as stated below:

No. of Complaints received during the 12 
(twelve) months period ended March 31, 
2021

0

No. of Complaints resolved as on March 31, 
2022

NA

No of Complaints pending as on March 31, 
2022

0

No. of pending share transfers as on  March 
31, 2022

0

No request for transfer or dematerialization of shares 
was pending as on 31st March, 2022.

Name, Designation and Address of the Compliance 
Officer:

Ms. Akshita Jhawar
Company Secretary& Compliance Officer
Lahoti Overseas Limited
307, Arun Chambers, Tardeo Road,		
Mumbai – 400 034.
Tel No.: +91-22-4050 0100 I 
Fax No.: +91-22-4050 0150
E-mail: investor@lahotioverseas.com

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The terms of reference of the Corporate Social 
Responsibility (CSR) Committee inter alia includes 
the following:

•	 To formulate and recommend to the Board, a 
Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (Policy) 

indicating activities to be undertaken by the 
company in Compliance with the provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013;

•	 To recommend the amount of expenditure to be 
incurred on the CSR activities;

•	 To monitor the implementation of the framework 
of the CSR Policy;

•	 To collaborate with other companies for 
undertaking projects or programs or CSR 
activities in such a manner that the Committees 
of respective companies are in a position to 
report separately on such projects or programs in 
accordance with CSR rules.

•	 The CSR initiatives / activities of the Company 
will be identified and initiated by the CSR 
Committee

The CSR Committee may delegate its responsibility 
to any senior or key managerial person as and when 
deemed fit

•	 The CSR activities shall be undertaken within 
India

The attendance at the meeting held is as follows: 

Name of Committee Members Category No. of Meetings 
Conducted

No. of Meetings 
attended

Ms. Meghna Vijay Panchal Chairman of the Committee & 
Independent Director

4 4

Mr. Umesh Rambilas Lahoti Executive Director/ Managing 
Director

4 4

Mr. Ujwal Rambilas Lahoti Executive Director 4 4
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b.	 Details of the Special Resolutions passed in the 
previous three AGM

1.	 At the EGM held on 29thApril, 2019 - 06
2.	 At the AGM held on 28th September, 2019–NIL
3.	 At the AGM held on 28thDecember, 2020–02
4.	 At the AGM held on 28th September, 2021–Nil

c.	 Details of the Special Resolutions passed through 
Postal Ballot- NIL

d.	 E-Voting

	 In accordance with the law, a poll (electronically) 
was conducted on all the resolutions of the Notice, all 
the members were given on option to vote through 
electronic means using the NSDL platform. 

Note: During the year under review, the Company has 
not passed any special resolution through postal ballot. 
At present there are no proposal for passing any Special 
Resolution by postal ballot.

a.	 Composition and Meetings of the members of CSR Committee

The Committee met two times in a financial year 2021-22 i.e. on November 12, 2021 and February 14, 2022. 
Composition of CSR Committee and details of attendance of the members at the Meeting during the year is as under:

Name of the Director Position Category No. of Meetings 
Conducted

No. of Meetings 
attended

Mr. Ujwal Rambilas Lahoti Member Executive Director 2 2
Mr. Prakash Ramchandra Bang Chairman Independent Director 2 2
Mr. Umesh Rambilas Lahoti Member Managing Director 2 2

Details on General Body Meetings

a.	 Date, Time and Venue for the last three Annual General Meetings& Extra Ordinary 

Meeting held
Financial years Dates AGM/EGM Time Venues

2018-2019 29/04/2019 EGM 10.00 A.M 307, Arun Chambers, Tardeo, Mumbai – 400 034.
2018-2019 28/09/2019 AGM 10.30 A.M. 307, Arun Chambers, Tardeo, Mumbai – 400 034.
2019-2020 28/12/2020 AGM 3.00 P.M. Through Video Conferencing
2020-21 28/09/2021 AGM 3.00 P.M. Through Video Conferencing

Subsidiary Company

The Company does not have any material non-listed 
Indian subsidiary as defined under in the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015. 

The Company’s Audit Committee reviews the 
consolidated financial statements of the Company 
as well as the financial statements of the subsidiary, 
including the investments made by the subsidiary, if any. 

The Company has formulated a policy for determining 
material subsidiaries and the policy is disclosed on the 
website of the company viz. http://lahotioverseas.in/
PDFs/policies/material-subsidiary-policy.pdf

9.	 Disclosures
Materially significant Related Party Transaction
The Register of Contracts containing the transactions 
in which Directors are interested is placed before the 
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Board regularly for its approval in compliance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable 
provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulation, 2015. 

During the year under review the Company has not 
entered into related party transactions as per the 
provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 
2013. Thus disclosure in Form AOC-2 is not required. 
Further there are no materially significant related party 
transactions during the year under review made by the 
Company with Promoters, Key Managerial Personnel 
or other designated persons which may have a potential 
conflict with the interest of the Company. Suitable 
disclosure as required under AS-18 has been mentioned 
in the Notes to Accounts. 

The Company has formulated a related party 
transactions policy and the same is displayed on the 
website of the company viz. http://lahotioverseas.in/
PDFs/policies/related-party-transactions-policy.pdf

Statutory Compliance, Penalties and Strictures

The Company has complied with the requirements of 
the Stock Exchanges / SEBI / and Statutory Authority 
on all matters related to capital markets during the 
last three years. No penalties or strictures have been 
imposed on the companies by these authorities.

Whistle Blower Mechanism

The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy, to 
provide a formal mechanism to the Directors and employees 
to report their concerns about unethical behavior, actual 
or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code or 
ethics. The Policy provides for adequate safeguards against 
victimization of employees who avail of the mechanism 
and also provides for direct access to the Chairman of the 
Audit Committee. It is affirmed that no personnel of the 
Company has been denied access to the Audit Committee. 
The policy is displayed on the website of the Company viz. 
http://lahotioverseas.in/PDFs/policies/whistle-blower-
policy.pdf

Disclosure of Accounting Treatment

The Company has followed the Accounting Standards 
laid down by the Companies (Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2006 in the preparation of its Financial Statements.

Disclosure by listed entity and its subsidiary of ‘Loans 
and advances in the nature of loans to firms/ companies 
in which director are interested by name and amount:

Particulars Amount
Loans and advances by Lahoti 
overseas Limited to firms/ companies 
in which director are interested

NIL

Disclosure on risk management

The Company has laid down procedures to inform the 
members of the Board about the risk assessment and 
minimization procedures. A risk management committee 
consisting of senior executives of the Company periodically 
reviews these procedures to ensure that executives’ 
management controls risk through means of a properly 
defined framework. A senior independent director is 
associated with the committee. The Company has framed 
the risk assessment and minimization procedure which is 
periodically reviewed by the Board. The risk management 
policy is displayed on the website of the Company viz. http://
lahotioverseas.in/PDFs/policies/risk-management-policy.
pdf

Compliance with Corporate Governance Requirements as 
specified in the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulation, 2015

The Company has adhered to all the mandatory and non-
mandatory requirements of the Corporate Governance as 
specified under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulation, 2015. 

A Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms 
part of the Annual Report and includes discussions on 
various matters specified under the applicable provisions 
of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulation, 2015.

Prevention of Insider Trading

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct policy 
for Prevention of Insider trading with a view to regulate 
the trading of securities by the Directors and Designated 
Employees of the Company. The Code requires pre-
clearance for dealing in the Company’s Shares and prohibits 
the purchase of Company shares by the Directors and 
Designated employees while in possession of Unpublished 
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price sensitive information in relation to the Company 
and during the period when the trading window is closed. 
All Board of Directors and designated employees have 
confirmed compliance with the code.

CEO / CFO Certification

The Managing Director of the Company has been certified 
to the Board in accordance with Regulation 33 read with 
Schedule IV of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulation, 2015 pertaining to CEO/CFO 
Certification for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2022.

Means of Communication

Website: The Company’s website contains a separate 
dedicated section “Investors” where information sought 
by shareholders is available. The Annual Report of the 
Company, Policies and Quarterly Reports of the Company, 
apart from the details about the Company, Board of Directors 
and Management, are also available on the website in a user 
friendly and downloadable form at http:// lahotioverseas.in/
investor-relations.asp.

Quarterly Result: The Unaudited quarterly and half yearly 
Financial Results are announced within 45 days of the 
closure of the relevant quarter and the Audited Annual 
Results are announced within 60 days from the closure of the 
Financial Year as per the requirements of Regulation 33 of 
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulation, 2015. The approved results are forthwith sent to 
the Stock Exchanges where the Company’s shares are listed 
and also published in English & Vernacular newspapers. 

The Financial Results as per Regulation 47 of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 are published within 48 hours from the Board Meeting 
where they are approved in Financial Express (in English) 
and Lakshdeep (in Marathi). The results are also displayed 
on the website of the company (www. lahotioverseas.in).

The Financial Results are reported to the Stock Exchanges 
where the Company is listed i.e. BSE Limited through BSE 
Online Portal. 

Shareholding Pattern: The quarterly Shareholding Pattern 
and the Corporate Governance Report of the Company 
are filed with BSE Ltd. through BSE Online Portal. The 
Shareholding Pattern is also displayed on the Company’s 
website under the “Investor Relations” section. 

Annual Report: Annual Report containing Audited 
Standalone Accounts, Consolidated Financial Statements 
together with Board’s Report, Auditors Report and other 
important information are circulated to members entitled 
thereto. The Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
(MDA) Report forms part of the Annual Report and is 
displayed on the Company’s website www. lahotioverseas.
in &BSE Corporate Compliance & Listing Centre (the 
‘Listing Centre’): BSE’s Listing Centre is a web-based 
application designed for corporate. All periodical 
compliance filings like Shareholding Pattern, Corporate 
Governance Report, among others are also filed 
electronically on the Listing Centre. 

SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES): The investor 
complaints are processed in a centralized web-based 
complaints redress system. The salient features of this 
system are: Centralized database of all complaints, online 
upload of Action Taken Reports (ATRs) by concerned 
companies and online viewing by investors of actions 
taken on the complaint and its current status.

Compliance with Non- Mandatory Requirements

Shareholders Rights

The quarterly Financial Results including summary of 
significant events of relevant period of three months are 
published in newspaper.

Audit Qualification

Strategic decisions were taken during the year resulting in 
unqualified Financial Statements of the Company.

Auditor’s Remuneration:

The remuneration for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 
2022 is Rs. 3,00,000

Training of Board Members

For Orientation and to get familiar with the Company’s 
business operations, governance procedures and practices, 
detailed presentations are periodically made to the Board 
members on the business model of the Company, risk 
profile of the business parameters and their responsibilities 
as Directors.
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Auditors Certificate on Corporate Governance

The Auditors Certificate on compliance of Corporate Governance as per SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is forming part of this Report.

Review of Governance practices

We have in this report attempted to present the governance practices and principles being followed at Lahoti 
Overseas Limited as evolved over the years, and as best suited to the needs of our Business and stakeholders.

Our disclosures and governance practices are continually revisited, reviewed and revised to respond to the 
dynamic needs of our business and ensure that our standards are at par with the globally recognized practices of 
governance so as to meet theexpectations of our stakeholders.

General Shareholder Information

The Company is a Listed Public Limited Company registered with Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, 
Maharashtra having its registered office at 307, Arun Chambers, Tardeo Road, Mumbai – 400034 bearing                                                                              
CIN: L74999MH1995PLC087643.

Annual General Meeting
Day, Date & Time Friday, September 30, 2022 at 3.00 P.M.
Venue Through Video Conferencing
Financial year 2021-22
Book Closure Date Saturday, September 24, 2022 to Friday, September 30, 2022
Listed on Stock Exchanges Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE)

P. J. Tower, Dalal Street, Fort, Mumbai – 400 001.
Stock Code / Symbol BSE:  531842 / LAHOTIOV
Demat International Security Identification 
Number (ISIN)

In NSDL and CDSL for Equity Shares

INE515C01023

Share Transfer Agents and Share transfer system:

Lahoti Overseas Limited has appointed LINK INTIME INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED as Registrars and Transfer 
Agents (RTA) to handle the physical Share Transfer related work and for Electronic connectivity as per the di-
rectives of SEBI. The Company’s equity shares are traded in the Stock Exchanges compulsorily in Demat mode. 
The Stakeholders Relationship Committee meets periodically for dealing with matters concerning securities of 
the Company.
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For transfer of shares in physical form, the Company has introduced transfer cum Demat facility to avoid unnec-
essary mailing of Certificates. Certificates duly transferred are returned to those, who opt to receive certificates 
in physical form. 

There are no legal proceedings against the Company on any share transfer matter. 

Stock Data – Market price

Table below gives the monthly high and low prices and volumes of Lahoti Overseas Limited equity shares 
listed at BSE Limited for the year 2021-2022:

Months High Low No. of Shares 
traded

Number of 
Trades

Value of Shares 
traded (in Rs.)

April – 2021 14.40 12.70 71901 338 965109
May – 2021 21.80 13.05 1179173 3693 21748880
June – 2021 24.90 18.00 1116803 4338 24445928
July – 2021 32.85 22.25 1809516 7036 51216538
August – 2021 27.30 21.65 197315 1164 4896192
September – 2021 25.05 20.85 124705 924 2797217
October – 2021 26.55 21.00 413825 1046 9890969
November – 2021 26.55 22.50 403003 1592 10026568
December – 2021 30.70 23.70 600211 2412 16001938
January – 2022 36.85 26.30 1400626 5700 46219750
February – 2022 36.40 28.10 545982 2676 18155172
March – 2022 33.90 28.10 284244 1380 8708599

Performance of the Company vis-a vis Index (BSE Sensex,) During FY 2021-22
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Shareholding Pattern
Table below gives the pattern of shareholding by ownership and Share Class respectively:

a.	 Pattern of shareholding as on March 31, 2022

Category No. of Shares Held %age of Shareholding
Promoters’ Holding

1. Promoters - -
Indian Promoters 17446425 59.8064
Foreign Promoters - -

2. Persons acting in concert
Total A 17446425 59.8064

B.                                                     Non-Promoters’ Holding
3. Institutional Investors - -
a. Mutual Funds and UTI - -

b.
Banks, Financial Institutions, Insurance Companies 
(Central/State Govt. Institutions/Non-Government 
Institutions)

0 0

Sub-Total (i) 0 0
4. Non-Institutional Investors
a. Indian Public 4924762 16.8821
b. Hindu Undivided Family 220135 0.7546
c. Private Corporate Bodies 1482232 5.0810
d. NRIs/OCBs 802396 2.7507
e. Foreign Company 4219544 14.4646
f. Clearing Member 10410 0.0357
g. IEPF 65596 0.2249
h. Any Other (Trusts) - -

Sub-Total (ii) 11725075 40.4936
Total B: (i) + (ii) 11725075 40.4936
Grand Total: A + B 29171500 100.00

b.	 Distribution of shareholding on March 31, 2022

Shareholding of 
Shares

No. of 
Shareholders

% of total 
shareholders

No. of Ordinary 
Shares

% of Total 
Shareholding

Less than 500 3148 69.1412 550432 1.8869
501 –   1000 627 13.7711 555767 1.9052
1001 – 2000 326 7.1601 516052 1.7690
2001 – 3000 138 3.0310 364683 1.2501
3001 – 4000 60 1.3178 217934 0.7471
4001 – 5000 85 1.8669 407955 1.3985
5001 – 10000 96 2.1085 701167 2.4036
10001 - and above 73 1.6033 25857510 88.6396
Grand Total 4553 100 29171500 100
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Dematerialization of Shares as on March 31, 2022
Particulars No. of Equity Shares % to Share Capital
NSDL 18317141 62.79
CDSL 10656274 36.53
Physical 198085 0.68
TOTAL 29171500 100.00

Dematerialization
The Company’s equity shares are under compulsory Demat trading. The ISIN of the Scrip is INE515C01023. 
As on March 31, 2022, Dematerialized shares accounted for 28959415 number of shares, i.e. 99.27% of the total 
equity. The Company has appointed LINK INTIME INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED as RTA to handle the physical 
Share Transfer related work and for Electronic connectivity as detailed below: 

LINK INTIME (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
C-101, 247 Park, 
L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli (West), 
Mumbai – 400 083
Tel No          : +91 22 49186270  Fax: +91 22 49186060
E-mail id      :rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in
Website       :www.linkintime.co.in

Details of Public Funding Obtained in the Last 
Three Years
No capital has been raised from public in the last three 
years.

CORRESPONDENCE ADDRESS FOR INVESTOR
Contact person: Ms. Akshita Jhawar, Company 
Secretary

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Secretarial Department,			 
Lahoti Overseas Limited
307, Arun Chambers,Tardeo Road,		
Mumbai – 400 034.
Tel No.: +91-22-4050 0100 I Fax No.: +91-22-4050 
0150
E-mail: investor@lahotioverseas.com

DECLARATION BY THE MANAGING DIRECTOR

UNDER REGULATION 34 READ WITH SCHEDULE V OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND 
DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015

To
The Members of
LAHOTI OVERSEAS LIMITED

I, Umesh Lahoti, Managing Director of Lahoti Overseas Limited hereby declare that all the members of the 
Board of Directors and the senior management personnel have affirmed compliance with the Company's Code 
of Business Conduct and Ethics for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2022 as envisaged in SEBI (Listing Obli-
gations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

For Lahoti Overseas Limited

Sd/-

Umesh Rambilas Lahoti
Place: Mumbai                                                                                                                                       Managing Director
Date: August 02, 2022							                       (DIN 00361216)
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CERTIFICATION BY THE MANAGING DIRECTOR AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER ON 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY

We, Umesh Lahoti, Managing Director and Pradeep Bachhuka, Chief Financial Officer of Lahoti Overseas 
Limited certifythat:

a.	 We have reviewed financial statements and the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2022 and 
that to thebest of our knowledge and belief state that:

i.  these statements do not contain any materially untrue statements, or omit any material fact or contain 
statementsthat might be misleading;

ii. these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance with 
existingaccounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b.	 There are, to the best our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year 
which arefraudulent, illegal or violate of the Company's code of conduct.

c.	 We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls and that we have evaluated the 
effectivenessof the internal control systems of the Company and we have disclosed to the Auditors and the 
Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls, if any, of which we are aware 
and the steps we have taken orpropose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

d.	 We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee:

(i) significant changes, if any, in the internal control over financial reporting during the year;

(ii) significant changes, if any, in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in 
the notesto the financial statements; and

(iii) instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of 
themanagement or an employee having a significant role in the Company's internal control system.

For Lahoti Overseas Limited                               For Lahoti Overseas Limited

Sd/-					     Sd/-

Umesh Rambilas Lahoti                                        Pradeep Bachhuka
Managing Director                                                  Chief Financial Officer
(DIN: 00361216)

Place: Mumbai
Date:  August 02, 2022
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AUDITOR'S CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To,
The Members of,
LAHOTI OVERSEAS LIMITED

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Lahoti Overseas Ltd, for the year 
ended March 31, 2022, as stipulated in Regulation 27 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 of the Company for the period April 01, 2021 to March 31, 2022.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination 
was limited to procedures and implementations thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance 
of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the Financial 
Statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the 
Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above-mentioned SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as applicable.

As required by the Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, we have to state that 
as per the records maintained by the Company, there were no investor grievances remaining unattended/pending 
for more than 30 days.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the 
efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

N.G. Thakra
(Patner)
Membership No.:- 36213
Sd/-
N.G. Thakrar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.:- 110907W
UDIN: 22036213A0CFIN4326

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 02, 2022
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial 
Statements in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of 
the Act, our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section 
of our report. We are independent of the Company 
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by The 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together 
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 
audit of the standalone financial statements under the 
provisions of the Act, and the Rules thereunder, and 
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the Code 
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our opinion on the Standalone Financial 
Statements. 

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters (‘KAM’) are those matters that, in 
our professional judgment, were of most significance 
in our audit of the standalone financial statements 
for the financial year ended March 31, 2022. These 
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of 
the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in 
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide 
a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter 
below, our description of how our audit addressed the 
matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be 
the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of 
Lahoti Overseas Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial 
Statements 

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone 
Financial Statements of Lahoti Overseas Limited (“the 
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as 
at March 31, 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss 
including the statement of Other Comprehensive 
Income, the statement of changes in equity, Statement 
of Cash Flows for the year ended, and notes to the 
Standalone Financial Statements, including a summary 
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information (hereinafter referred to as the “standalone 
financial statement”). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
Standalone Financial Statements gives the information 
required by the Companies Act,2013, as amended (“the 
Act”) in the manner so required and gives a true and 
fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting 
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read 
with the companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the 
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, its 
profit including other comprehensive income,  changes 
in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that 
date.
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to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we 
have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required 
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard.

Responsibility of Management’s for the Standalone 
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible 
for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act, 
with respect to the preparation of these Standalone 
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view 
of the financial position, financial performance 
including other comprehensive income, cash flows 
and changes in equity of the Company in accordance 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, This responsibility also includes maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of 

Description of Key Audit Matter

Sr. 
No. The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

1. Revenue Recognition:

Solar Plant: The existing PPA between the 
Company and Jodhpur Vidyut Vitran Nigam 
Ltd. (Jodhpur Discom) for the Solar Power 
Plant at Pali District, Rajasthan expired on 
31/03/2019. The company approached Jodhpur 
Discom for the renewal of the PPA, however the 
application of the Company was rejected.

During the F.Y. 2021-22 the Solar Unit of the 
Company has generated 36,85,815 k/wh which 
has been supplied to the grid. Since the PPA is 
not renewed and it is uncertain at what rate per 
kilowatt will the Company receive the revenue, 
the conditions for recognising revenue as laid 
down in Ind AS 115 - “Revenue Recognition” are 
not fulfilled. Hence the Company has decided 
not to recognize any revenue from the said 
power plant for the financial year 2021- 22.

Our audit procedures included:

a.	 Assessing the appropriateness of the revenue 
recognition accounting policies, including those 
relating to discounts, rebates and incentives by 
comparing with applicable accounting standards.

b.	 Evaluated the design and implementation of 
the processes and internal controls relating 
to implementation of the revenue accounting 
standard;

c.	 Performing substantive testing by selecting 
samples of revenue transactions recorded during 
the year by verifying the underlying documents, 
which included sales invoices/contracts and 
shipping documents.

d.	 Evaluated the detailed analysis performed by 
management on revenue streams by selecting 
samples for the existing contracts with customers 
and considered revenue recognition policy in 
the current period in respect of those revenue 
streams;

Information Other than the Financial Statements and 
Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Annual Report, but does 
not include the Standalone Financial Statements and 
our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements 
does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone 
Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether 
such other information is materially inconsistent 
with the Standalone financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears 
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•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement 
of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant 
to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under 
Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible 
for expressing our opinion on whether the 
company has adequate internal financial controls 
with reference to standalone financial statements 
in place and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s 
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 
a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures in the standalone 
financial statements or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our    opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Company to cease to   continue as a going concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and 
content of the standalone financial statements, 

the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds 
and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation 
and presentation of the Standalone Financial Statement 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, 
management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, 
as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company 
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but 
to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for 
overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the Standalone Financial Statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic decisions of 
users taken on the basis of these Standalone Financial 
Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purposes of our audit.

b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as 
required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examination of 
those books. 

c)	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit 
and Loss including the Statement of other 
comprehensive income, the Cash Flow 
Statement and statement of changes in equity 
dealt with by this report are in agreement with 
the books of account;

d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone 
Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS            
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e)	 On the basis of the written representations 
received from the directors as on 31st March,    
2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, 
none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st 
March, 2022 from being appointed as a director 
in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to these 
Standalone Financial Statements and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer 
to our separate Report in “Annexure B” to this 
report,

g)	 With respect to the other matters to be included 
in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 
requirement of section 197(16) of the Act, as 
amended:

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the 
year ended March 31, 2022 has been paid / provided 
by the Company to its directors in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the 
Act;

h)	 With respect to the other matters to be included 

including the disclosures, and whether the 
standalone financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner 
that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with 
a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged 
with governance, we determine those matters that were 
of most significance in the audit of the Standalone 
Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 
31st, 2022 and are therefore the key audit matters. We 
describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless 
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the 
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated in 
our report because the adverse consequences of doing 
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) 
Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) 
of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 
A”, a statement on the matters specified in 
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report 
that:

a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information 
and explanations which to the best of our 
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in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014,  as amended in our opinion and to 
the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us:

i.	 The Company does not have any pending 
litigations which would impact its financial 
position;

ii.	 The Company has made provision, as required 
under the applicable law or accounting 
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, 
on long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts;

iii.	 There were no amounts which were required 
to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company

iv.	 (a) The Management has represented that, to 
the best of its knowledge   and belief, no funds 
(which are material either individually or in 
the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned 
or invested ( either from borrowed funds or 
share premium or any other sources or kind 
of funds) by the Company to or in any other 
person or entity, including foreign entity 
("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that 
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or 
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or 
entities identified in any manner whatsoever 
by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate 
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries

(b) The Management has represented, that, 
to the best of its knowledge  and belief,  no 
funds (which are material either individually 
or in the aggregate) have been received by the 
Company from any person or entity, including 
foreign entity ("Funding Parties"), with the 

understanding, whether recorded in writing 
or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, 
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding 
Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have 
been considered reasonable and appropriate 
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our 
notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of 
Rule 11 (e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, 
contain any material misstatement.

v.	 The dividend declared or paid during the year 
by the Company is in compliance with Section 
123 of the Act.

For N. G. THAKRAR & CO
   Chartered Accountants

	    Firm Registration Number: 110907W

Sd/-
N. G. THAKRAR

(Partner)                             
MEMBERSHIP NO.36213

UDIN : 22036213ANBOIX2991

Place: Mumbai                                                                                   
Dated: 27/05/2022
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ii.	

a.	 As explained to us by the management, inventories 
purchased by the Company are directly dispatched 
from the premises of the supplier to the place 
of export or the buyer’s premises. Due to the 
specialized nature of the business it is not possible 
to physically verify the inventories. The stock as on 
the balance sheet date is either in transit or at the 
premises of the supplier. 

b.	 During the F.Y. 2021-22 the company has been 
sanctioned working capital limits exceeding Rs. 
5 crore in aggregate, from banks or financial 
institutions on the basis hypothecation of stock and 
book debts. In this regards, subject to reconciliation 
statements prepared by the Company, provided in 
Note No. 32 of the Standalone Financial Statements, 
stock statements filed by the company with the 
banks and financial institutions are in agreement 
with the books of accounts of the Company.

iii.	 In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to any 
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or 
other parties as covered in the register maintained 
under Section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, para 3 
of the order is not applicable.

iv.	 In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the Company has 
complied with the provisions of section 185 and 
186 of the Act, with respect to loans, investments 
and guarantees made.

v.	 In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the Company has 
not accepted any deposit within the meaning of 
Section 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules framed 
thereunder. In the case of amounts which are 
deemed to be deposits the company has complied 
with the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of 
India and the provision of section 73 to 76 or any 
other provisions of the Companies Act and the 
rules made thereunder.

vi.	 The Central Government has not prescribed the 
maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) 
of the Act, for any of the services rendered by the 
Company.

Annexure - A to the Independent Auditor’s Report

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 of the 
Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Lahoti 
Overseas Limited on the Financial Statement for the 
year ended March 31st, 2022.

i.	 In respect of Company’s Property, Plant & 
Equipment:

a.	

(A)	 In our opinion, the Company has maintained 
proper records showing full particulars including 
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant 
and Equipment.

(B)	 According to the information and explanations 
give to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Company, the company does not 
own any intangible assets. Accordingly, para (i)(a)
(B) of the Order is not applicable.

b.	 As explained to us, physical verification of Property, 
Plant and Equipment is being conducted in a 
phased programme by the management designed 
to cover all the assets at reasonable intervals, which 
in our opinion is reasonable having regard to the 
size of the Company and the nature of assets. 
According to the information and explanations 
given to us no material discrepancies were noticed 
on such verification.

c.	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
the records of the Company, the title deeds of all 
immovable properties owned by the Company are 
held in the name of the Company. 

d.	 The Company was not required to revalue its 
Property, Plant and Equipment during the FY 
2021-22, Accordingly, para (i)(c) the Order is not 
applicable.

e.	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Company, no proceedings have 
been initiated or are pending against the company 
for holding any property under the Benami 
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules 
made thereunder, Accordingly, para (i)(e) to the 
Order is not applicable
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as at 31st March, 2022 outstanding for a period 
of more than six months from the date they 
become payable

b.	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us, the dues in respect of Sales Tax, 
Duty of Customs, Excise Duty, Service Tax and 
Goods and Service Tax is not pending. Dues 
in respect of Income Tax that have not been 
deposited with the appropriate authority on 
account of dispute and the forum where the 
disputes are pending are given below: 

vii.	

a.	 According to the records of the Company and 
the information and explanations given to 
us, the Company has generally been regularly 
depositing with the appropriate authorities 
undisputed statutory dues including Provident 
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income tax, 
Sales-Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value 
added Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Cess and any 
other statutory dues applicable to it. There are no 
undisputed statutory dues as referred to above 

Name of Statue Nature of Dues Amount 
(Rupees in Lakhs)

Period to which the amount 
relates (Previous years)

Forum where the 
dispute is pending

Income Tax Act
Income Tax 
(including 
Interest)

48.20 2012-13 CIT (Appeals)
171.62 2013-14 CIT (Appeals)
334.92 2016-17 CIT (Appeals)

7.36 2017-18 CIT (Appeals)

viii.	 Based on our audit procedures and according 
to the information and explanations given by 
the management, there are no such transactions 
which were earlier not recorded in the books 
of accounts and have been surrendered or 
disclosed as income during the year in the tax 
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 
(43 of 1961)

	ix.	
a.	 Based on our audit procedures and according to 

the information and explanations given by the 
management, the Company has not defaulted in 
repayment of loans from bank. Further as per 
the records of the Company, during the year 
there were no loans or borrowings from any 
financial institution, government or debenture 
holders.

b.	 Based on our audit procedures and according 
to the information and explanations given by 
the management the company has not been 
declared as a willful defaulter by any bank of 
financial institutions.

c.	 In our opinion and according to the information 
and the explanation given to us, the Company 
has not raised any term loans.

    d.	 Based on our audit procedures and according to 
the information and explanations given by the 
management, the short term funds raised by the 
company have not been used for its long term 
purposes.

e.	 Based on our audit procedures and according 
to the information and explanations given by 
the management, the company has not taken 
any funds from any entity or person on account 
of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, 
associates companies.

f.	 Based on our audit procedures and according 
to the information and explanations given by 
the management, the company has not raised 
any loans during the year on the pledge of 
securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures 
or associate companies.

x.	
a.	 Based on our audit procedures and according to 

the information and explanations given by the 
management, the company has not raised any 
money by way of initial public offer or further 
public offer (including debt instruments) 
during the year. Accordingly, para 3(x)(a) of the 
Order is not applicable.

b.	 Based on our audit procedures and according 
to the information and explanations given by 
the management, the company has not made 
any preferential allotment or private placement 
of shares or convertible debentures during the 
year. Hence para 3(x)(b) of the Order is not 
applicable.
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	xix.	According to the information and explanations 
given to us and on the basis of the financial 
ratios, ageing and expected dated of realization 
of financial assets and the payment of financial 
liabilities, other information accompanying the 
financial statements, our knowledge of the Board 
of Directors and the management plans, we are of 
the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as 
on the date of the audit report that the company is 
capable of meeting its liabilities existing as at the 
balance sheet date as and when they fall due within 
a period of 1 year from the balance sheet date. 

	xx.	
a.	 Accordingly to the information and explanation 

given to us and based on our examination 
of books of accounts and other documents, 
in respect of other than ongoing projects, an 
amount of ₹ 18 lakhs has been transferred 
towards the unspent amount to a fund as 
specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act 
on 30/04/2022 in compliance with the second 
provision to sub-section (5) of section 135 of 
the Act.

b.	 Accordingly to the information and explanation 
given to us and based on our examination of 
books of accounts and other documents, no 
amounts unspent under sub-section (5) of 
section 135 of the Act, pursuant to on-going 
projects, has been transferred to special account 
is compliance with the provisions of sub-section 
(6) of Section 135 of the Act.

	xxi.	Our opinions are drawn on the standalone financial 
statements of the Company and its state of affairs 
as at 31st March, 2022. Accordingly any reporting 
as required under para 3(xxi) of the Order is not 
applicable.

For and on behalf of
N. G. THAKRAR & CO.
(Firm Regn. no. 110907W)
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-
NATWAR G. THAKRAR
(Partner)
Membership No.: 036213

UDIN - 22036213ANBOIX2991

Date: 27/05/2022
Place: Mumbai

	xi.	 Based upon the audit procedures performed and to 
the best of our knowledge and belief and according 
to the information and explanations given to us no 
fraud on the company has been noticed or reported 
during the year. We have nothing to report in para 
3(xi) of the Order.

	xii.	 Based upon the audit procedures performed and to 
the best of our knowledge and belief and according 
to the information and explanations given to us the 
Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, 
para 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

	xiii.	According to the information and explanations 
given to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Company, transactions with the 
related parties are in compliance with sections 177 
and 188 of the Act where applicable and details 
of such transactions have been disclosed in the 
financial statements as required by the applicable 
Indian Accounting Standards.

	xiv.	
a.	 According to the information and explanations 

given to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Company, the company has an 
internal audit system which is commensurate 
with the size and nature of its business.

b.	 The report of the internal auditors of the period 
under consideration have been considered by 
us at the time of drawing an opinion on the 
financial statements of the Company.

	xv.	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Company, the Company has not 
entered into non-cash transactions with directors 
or persons connected with him. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

	xvi.	The Company is not required to be registered 
under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 
Act 1934. Accordingly, para 3(xvi) of the Order is 
not applicable.

	xvii.	According to the information and explanations 
given to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Company, the Company has not 
incurred any cash losses during the financial year 
and in the immediately preceding financial year.

	xviii.	According to the information and the explanations 
given to us and based on our examination of 
the records of the Company, there has been 
no resignation by the statutory auditor of the 
Company during the period under consideration. 
Accordingly, para 3(xviii) of the Order is not 
applicable.
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audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and 
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. 
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls over financial 
reporting was established and maintained and if such 
controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain 
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and 
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that 
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating 
the design and operating effectiveness of internal 
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting of the Company and its subsidiary 
companies, which are companies incorporated in India.  

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Reporting 

A company’s internal financial control over financial 
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting 
and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted 

Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditors’ Report 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under 
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated 
financial statements of the Company as of and for the 
year ended 31st March, 2022, we have audited the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting of Lahoti 
Overseas Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiary 
companies which are companies incorporated in India, 
as of that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial 
Controls 

The Board of Directors of the Company and 
its subsidiary companies, which are companies 
incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing 
and maintaining internal financial controls based on 
the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the respective Companies considering 
the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI”). These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that 
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of 
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information, as required under the Act. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting of 
the Company and its subsidiary companies, which 
are companies incorporated in India, based on our 
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incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an 
internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements as at 31st March, 2022, based on the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established 
by the respective companies considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. 

N. G. THAKRAR & CO.
(Firm Regn. no. 110907W)
Chartered Accountant

Sd/-
NATWAR G. THAKRAR
(Partner)
Membership No.: 036213

UDIN - 22036213ANBOIX2991

Date: 27/05/2022
Place: Mumbai

accounting principles. A company’s internal financial 
control over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that: 

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 
company; 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions 
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorisation of management and 
directors of the company; and 

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention 
or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management 
override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over 
financial reporting may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance 
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the Company 
and its subsidiary companies, which are companies 
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Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022
 (₹ in lakhs) 

Sr. 
No. Particulars  Note No. As at 

31/03/2022 
As at 

31/03/2021
ASSETS

1 Non-current assets
(a) Plant, property and equipment 2  1,309.86  1,451.18 
(b) Capital Work-In-Progress 3  11.03  - 
(c) Investment property 4  1,864.07  1,963.66 
(d) Financial assets
    (i) Investments 5  2,199.83  1,392.57 
    (ii) Trade receivables 6(a)  78.95  86.20 
    (iv) Other Financial Assets 8(a)  377.77  647.92 
(e) Non-Current tax asset (net) 9(a)  181.22  143.81 
(f) Deferred tax asset (net) 15  -  20.22 

 6,022.73  5,705.56 
2 Current assets

(a) Inventories 10  907.30  1,329.69 
(b) Financial assets
     (i) Trade receivables 6(b)  12,526.27  10,007.15 
     (ii) Cash and cash equivalents 11  2,135.15  428.19 
    (iii) Loans and Advances 7  3.98  3.41 
    (iv) Other Financial Assets 8(b)  1,630.97  1,789.81 
(c) Other Current assets 12  611.51  300.24 
(d) Current year Tax Assets 9(b)  883.18  329.39 

 18,698.36  14,187.88 
Total Assets  24,721.09  19,893.43 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 13  584.59  584.59 
(b) Other Equity 14  15,466.85  13,084.79 

 16,051.44  13,669.37 
1 Non-current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities
    (i) Long-term borrowings  -  - 
    (i) Trade payables 16(a)
-Total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises  -  - 
-Total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises  44.07  24.70 
(b) Other long-term liabilities 17  180.67  177.67 
(c) Long-term provisions 18  61.19  40.14 
(d) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 15  296.89  - 

 582.82  242.51 
2 Current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities
    (i) Short-term borrowings 19  6,164.88  5,008.13 
    (ii) Trade payables 16(b)
-Total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises  15.73  9.94 
-Total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises  359.49  573.93 
(b) Other current liabilities 20  516.62  62.51 
(c) Short-term provisions 21  49.16  32.41 
(d) Current Tax Liabilities 22  980.96  294.63 

 8,086.84  5,981.55 
Total Equity and Liabilities  24,721.09  19,893.43 

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements 1 to 53

As per our report attached of even date	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors	
								      
				    Sd/-                                      Sd/-
N. G. Thakrar & Co.			   Ujwal R. Lahoti	 Umesh R. Lahoti
Chartered Accountants			   Executive Chairman	 Managing Director
Firm Regn.No.: 110907W			  DIN No: 00360785	 DIN No: 00361216
								      
Sd/-				    Sd/-                                       Sd/-
Natwar G. Thakrar			   Pradeep Bacchuka	 Akshita Jhawar
(Partner)			                          Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary
Membership No.:- 036213				  
				  
Place: Mumbai			   Place: Mumbai	
Dated: 27/05/2022			   Dated: 27/05/2022	

Standalone Financial Statements
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022
 (₹ in lakhs) 

Particulars  Note No. As at 
31/03/2022

As at 
31/03/2021

I Revenue from operations 23  89,197.43  47,008.02 
II Other income 24  771.43  476.54 
III Unrealized Gain/(Loss) (net)  97.26  251.37 

Total revenue  90,066.13  47,735.92 
III Expenses:

Purchases of stock-in-trade 25  77,865.49  43,703.02 
Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade 26  422.39  -1,045.06 
Employee benefits expense 27  328.20  263.39 
Finance costs 28  520.81  247.61 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 3 and 5  319.04  308.59 
Other expenses 29  7,003.41  3,169.54 

Total expenses  86,459.34  46,647.10 

IV Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax  3,606.78  1,088.82 

V Profit Before tax  3,606.78  1,088.82 

VI Tax expense:
Current tax expense for current year  980.96  294.63 

 980.96  294.63 
Deferred tax  269.64  -10.17 

 1,250.60  284.46 

VII Profit for the year  2,356.18  804.36 

VIII Other Comprehensive Income
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 
   (a) Measurement of defined employee benefit plan  -10.57  -9.32 
   (b) Fair value changes relating to own credit risk  199.18  66.74 

 188.61  57.42 
(ii) Income Tax on items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  -47.47  -19.17 

IX Total  Income for the period, Net of Tax (VIII+IX)  2,497.32  842.62 

X Earnings Per Shares (for Continuing Operations)
(a) Basic  8.08  2.76 
(b) Diluted  8.08  2.76 

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements 1 to 53

As per our report attached of even date	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors	
								      
				    Sd/-                                      Sd/-
N. G. Thakrar & Co.			   Ujwal R. Lahoti	 Umesh R. Lahoti
Chartered Accountants			   Executive Chairman	 Managing Director
Firm Regn.No.: 110907W			  DIN No: 00360785	 DIN No: 00361216
								      
Sd/-				    Sd/-                                       Sd/-
Natwar G. Thakrar			   Pradeep Bacchuka	 Akshita Jhawar
(Partner)			                          Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary
Membership No.:- 036213				  
				  
Place: Mumbai			   Place: Mumbai	
Dated: 27/05/2022			   Dated: 27/05/2022

Standalone Financial Statements
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31,2022
(₹ in lakhs)

Particulars  For the Year Ended 
31/03/2022 

 For the Year Ended 
31/03/2021 

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit before Tax and prior period items  3,606.78  1,088.82 
Adjustements for:

Interest Paid  188.63  123.29 
Depreciation  319.04  308.59 
Profit on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment  -4.36  -1.67 
Rent Received  -200.87  -195.31 
Other Non-operating Income  -  -4.50 
Unrealised (Gain)/Loss  -97.26  -251.37 
Interest Received  -0.44  -3.03 
Dividend Received  -1.77  -1.27 

Net Profit from Operating Activities  3,809.76  1,063.55 

Movements in Working Capital
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories  422.39  -1,045.06 
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade & Other Receivable  -2,423.20  -359.76 
(Increase)/Decrease in Other current assets  -311.27  -7.28 
(Increase)/Decrease in Short term loans and advances  158.27  -591.90 
(Increase)/Decrease in Long Term Receiveables  563.56  -229.98 
Increase/(Decrease) Trade Payable, Current Liabilities  
& Provision  94.34  -351.98 

Increase/(Decrease) Other Long Term Liabilities & 
Long term provisions  13.48  -14.68 

Cash Generated from Operations  2,327.33  -1,537.09 
Taxes paid  -883.18  -329.39 

Net Cash Flow Before Extraordinary Items  1,444.15  -1,866.49 

Exceptional Items / Adjustments (Non-Operating 
Income)  -  - 

Cash Flow From Operating Activities After Extraordinary 
Items  1,444.15  -1,866.49 

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Property Plant and Equipment  -80.76  -75.15 
Additions to Capital Work in Progress  -11.03  - 
Sale of Prpoerty Plant and Equipment  6.99  2.00 
Purchase of Investment  -710.00  - 

Standalone Financial Statements
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31,2022
(₹ in lakhs)

Particulars  For the Year Ended 
31/03/2022 

 For the Year Ended 
31/03/2021 

Interest Received  0.44  3.03 
Dividend Received  1.77  1.27 
Rent Received  200.87  195.31 

Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities  -591.74  126.45 

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend Paid  -116.69  - 
Interest paid  -188.63  -123.29 
Increase/(Decrease) In Unsecured Loans  1,159.86  1,416.52 

Net Cash From Financing Activities  854.54  1,293.23 

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)  1,706.96  -446.80 

Cash and Cash Equivalents  (OPENING BALANCE)  428.19  874.99 

Cash and Cash Equivalents  (CLOSING BALANCE)  2,135.15  428.19 

 1,706.96  -446.80 
Notes:
			 
1	 The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in the Ind AS 7 on 

Cash Flow Statement.		
2	 Cash and cash equivalent at  the  end  of  year  represents  cash  and  bank  balances.		
3	 Previous year’s figures have been rearranged/regrouped, wherever necessary.		
			 
This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.			

As per our report attached of even date	                For and on behalf of the Board of Directors	
								      
				                      Sd/-                                             Sd/-
N. G. Thakrar & Co.			   Ujwal R. Lahoti                    	 Umesh R. Lahoti
Chartered Accountants			   Executive Chairman	 Managing Director
Firm Regn.No.: 110907W			   DIN No: 00360785	                    DIN No: 00361216
								      
Sd/-				                      Sd/-                                             Sd/-
Natwar G. Thakrar			                     Pradeep Bacchuka	                  Akshita Jhawar
(Partner)			                                       Chief Financial Officer            Company Secretary
Membership No.:- 036213				     
				  
Place: Mumbai		                            	 Place: Mumbai	
Dated: 27/05/2022		                            	 Dated: 27/05/2022

Standalone Financial Statements
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a.	 Useful lives of property, plant and equipment 
and intangible assets: 

The Company has estimated useful life of each class 
of assets based on the nature of assets, the estimated 
usage of the asset, the operating condition of the 
asset, past history of replacement, anticipated 
technological changes, etc. The Company reviews 
the useful life of property, plant and equipment 
and Intangible assets as at the end of each reporting 
period. This reassessment may result in change in 
depreciation expense in future periods. 

b.	 Impairment testing: 

Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets 
that are subject to amortization/depreciation are 
tested for impairment when events occur or changes 
in circumstances indicate that the recoverable 
amount of the cash generating unit is less than its 
carrying value. The recoverable amount of cash 
generating units is higher of value-in-use and fair 
value less cost to sell. The calculation involves use 
of significant estimates and assumptions which 
includes turnover and earnings multiples, growth 
rates and net margins used to calculate projected 
future cash flows, risk-adjusted discount rate, 
future economic and market conditions.

c.	 Fair value measurement of derivative and other 
financial instruments: 

The fair value of financial instruments that are not 
traded in an active market is determined by using 
valuation techniques. This involves significant 
judgments in selection of a method in making 
assumptions that are mainly based on market 
conditions existing at the Balance Sheet date and 
in identifying the most appropriate estimate of fair 
value when a wide range of fair value measurements 
are possible.

d.	 Litigation: 

From time-to-time, the Company is subject to legal 
proceedings the ultimate outcome of each being 
always subject to many uncertainties inherent in 
litigation. A provision for litigation is made when 
it is considered probable that a payment will be 
made and the amount of the loss can be reasonably 
estimated. Significant judgment is made when 

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial 
Statements

Corporate Information

The Company was formed in 1995 with the main object 
to undertake the business of merchant exports and 
trading activity of yarn and textiles. The Company is a 
public limited company incorporated in India and has 
its registered office at 307, Arun Chambers, Tardeo, 
Mumbai, Maharashtra, India. The company diversified 
its operations in generation of power through wind 
mills and solar panels.

1.	 Significant Accounting Policies

I.	 Basis of Preparation

a)	 The financial statements have been prepared in 
compliance with Indian Accounting Standards 
(Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] 
and other relevant provisions of the Act.

b)	 The financial statements have been prepared 
on the historical cost basis except for the 
following assets and liabilities which have been 
measured at fair value financial instruments 
measured at fair value through profit and loss

II.	 Critical accounting estimates and judgments:

The preparation of these financial statements in 
conformity with the recognition and measurement 
principles of Ind AS requires management to make 
judgments, estimates and assumptions, that affect 
the reported balances of assets and liabilities, 
disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as at the 
date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of income and expenses for the years 
presented. Actual results may differ from these 
estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions 
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognized in the period 
in which the estimates are revised and in any future 
periods affected. In particular, information about 
significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and 
critical judgments in applying accounting policies 
that have the most significant effect on the amounts 
recognized in the financial statements pertain to:
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carrying amount of property, plant and equipment 
and is recognised in profit or loss.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the 
cost of assets (other than freehold land and Capital 
work-in-progress) less their residual values on 
written down value method over their useful lives 
as indicated in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 
2013. Depreciation methods, useful lives and 
residual values are reviewed at the end of each 
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in 
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Asset Category	 No. of 
Years

Buildings 60

Plant and machinery –
Wind Power Generation
Solar Power Generation
Computers and Computer Peripherals

22
22
3

Furniture and fixtures 10
Office Equipment 5
Vehicles 6

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected 
to continue with the carrying value of all of its 
property, plant and equipment (‘PPE’) recognized 
as of April 01, 2014 i.e. transition date, measured as 
per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value 
as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

VI.	 Income Taxes:

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred 
tax. It is recognized in profit and loss except to the 
extent that it relates to items recognized directly in 
equity or in OCI.

a.	 Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or 
receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year 
and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable 
in respect of previous years. It is measured using 
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the 
reporting date. Management periodically evaluates 
positions taken in tax returns with respect to 

evaluating, among other factors, the probability 
of unfavorable outcome and the ability to make 
a reasonable estimate of the amount of potential 
loss. Litigation provisions are reviewed at each 
accounting period and revisions made for the 
changes in facts and circumstances.

e.	 Defined benefit plans: 

The cost of the defined benefit plans and the 
present value of the defined benefit obligation are 
based on actuarial valuation using the projected 
unit credit method. An actuarial valuation involves 
making various assumptions that may differ from 
actual developments in the future. These include 
the determination of the discount rate, future 
salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the 
complexities involved in the valuation and its long 
term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly 
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All 
assumptions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet 
date.

III.	 Borrowing Costs: 

Borrowing costs are recognized in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss in the year in which they are 
incurred.

IV.	 Inventories:

Finished Goods: At lower of cost and net realizable 
value.

V.	 Property, Plant and Equipment:

Items of property, plant and equipment are stated in 
balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation 
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

When parts of an item of property, plant and 
equipment have different useful lives, they are 
accounted for as separate items (major components) 
of property, plant and equipment. 

An item of property, plant and equipment is de-
recognised upon disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected to arise from 
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss 
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of 
property, plant and equipment is determined as 
the difference between the sales proceeds and the 

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
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the amount of consideration to which it will be 
entitled in exchange for rendering the promised 
services to a customer. The amount of consideration 
can vary because of discounts, rebates, refunds, 
credits, price concessions, incentives, performance 
bonuses, or other similar items. The promised 
consideration can also vary if an entitlement to the 
consideration is contingent on the occurrence or 
non-occurrence of a future event.

Income from operations:

The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 – Revenue 
from Contract with Customers with effect from 1st 
April, 2018.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the 
consideration received or receivable. Revenue from 
export sale of goods is recognized; on the date of 
Bill of Lading/Airway Bill and significant risks 
and rewards in respect of ownership of products 
are transferred by the Company after the Bill of 
Lading/Airway Bill is accepted by the buyer against 
the payment of consideration or bank acceptance 
for making the payment within specified period 
of credit, the entity retains neither continuing 
managerial involvement to the degree usually 
associated with ownership nor effective control 
over the goods sold and no significant uncertainty 
exist regarding the amount of consideration that 
will be derived from the sale of goods as well as 
regarding its ultimate collection. 

Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of variable 
consideration on account of various Discounts, 
Rebates, incentives offered by the Company as a 
part of the contract.

a.	 Export Sales:

The company accounts for its Export Sales, 
consistently on the basis of date of Bill of Lading 
/ Airway Bill. This applies to all export sales made 
on Cost Insurance and Freight (CIF), Free on 
Board (FOB), Cost & Freight (C & F), and Cash 
against Delivery of Documents (CADD) basis.

b.	 Local Sales:

The company accounts for its local sales at the fair 
value of the consideration received or receivable. 

situations in which applicable tax regulation is 
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions 
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected 
to be paid to the tax authorities. Current tax assets 
and liabilities are offset only if:

i.	 there is a legally enforceable right to set off 
current tax assets against current tax liabilities 
and when they relate to income taxes levied by 
the same taxation authority; and

ii.	 There is intention either to settle on a net basis, 
or to realize the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously.

b.	 Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that 
it is regarded as probable that deductible temporary 
differences can be realized. The Company estimates 
deferred tax assets and liabilities based on current 
tax laws and rates and in certain cases, business 
plans, including management’s expectations 
regarding the manner and timing of recovery 
of the related assets. Changes in these estimates 
may affect the amount of deferred tax liabilities 
or the valuation of deferred tax assets and thereby 
the tax charge in the Statement of Profit or Loss. 
Provision for tax liabilities require judgments on 
the interpretation of tax legislation, developments 
in case law and the potential outcomes of tax audits 
and appeals which may be subject to significant 
uncertainty. Therefore the actual results may vary 
from expectations resulting in adjustments to 
provisions, the valuation of deferred tax assets, 
cash tax settlements and therefore the tax charge in 
the Statement of Profit or Loss.

VII.	 Revenue recognition:

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is 
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the 
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured 
and there exists reasonable certainty of its recovery. 
Revenue is measured based on the consideration 
specified in the contract with a customers. Revenue 
from contracts with customers is recognised when 
services are provided and it is highly probable that 
a significant reversal of revenue is not expected to 
occur. If the consideration promised in a contract 
includes a variable amount, the company estimates 

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
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VIII.	Financial instruments:

A financial instrument is any contract that gives 
rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

a.	 Financial assets:

Classification

The Company shall classify financial assets as 
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair 
value through other comprehensive income 
(FVOCI) or fair value through profit and loss 
(FVTPL) on the basis of its business model for 
managing the financial assets and the contractual 
cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair 
value, in the case of financial assets not recorded 
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction 
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of 
the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial 
assets that require delivery of assets within a time 
frame established by regulation or convention 
in the market place (regular way trades) are 
recognised on the trade date.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, 
financial assets are classified in four categories:

•	 Debt instruments at amortised cost

•	 Debt instruments at fair value through other 
comprehensive income

•	 Debt instruments and equity instruments at fair 
value through profit or loss

•	 Equity instruments measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive income

•	 Other Investments (government bonds)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised 
cost if both the following conditions are met;

c.	 Income from Sale of Power Generation:

Income from sale of power is recognized on 
the basis of the meter reading taken as per the 
Electric Board Authorities (EBA) based on the 
Power Purchase Agreements (PPA).

d.	 Interest income:

Interest income from a financial asset is 
recognised when it is probable that the economic 
benefits will flow to the Company and the 
amount of income can be measured reliably. 
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by 
reference to the principal amount outstanding 
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which 
is the rate that discounts estimated future cash 
receipts through the expected life of the financial 
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial 
recognition.

e.	 Dividend:

Dividend income from investment is recognised 
when the right to receive payment has been 
established,

Provided that it is probable that the economic 
benefits will flow to the Company and the amount 
of income can be measured reliably.

f.	 Rental Income/Lease Income:

Rent/Lease Income is recognized as and when 
they accrue on the basis of Rent/Lease Agreement 
entered into by the company and the leasee.  

g.	 Export Incentives:

i)	 Duty Drawback:

Export benefits under duty entitlement passbook 
and duty drawback are accounted on accrual 
basis to the extent considered receivable.

ii)	 RODTEP:

Revenue on sale of RODTEP licenses are 
recognized as and when the company identifies a 
buyer of these licenses in the open market and is 
able to sell them.

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
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Debt instrument at fair value through profit or 
loss

Fair value through profit or loss is a residual 
category for debt instruments. Any debt 
instrument, which does not meet the criteria 
for categorization as at amortised cost or as fair 
value through other comprehensive income, is 
classified as at fair value through profit or loss.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate 
a debt instrument, which otherwise meets 
amortised cost or fair value through other 
comprehensive income criteria, as at fair value 
through profit or loss. However, such election is 
allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates 
a measurement or recognition inconsistency 
(referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). 

Equity instruments

All equity instruments in scope of Ind AS 109 
are measured at fair value. Equity instruments 
which are held for trading are classified as at 
fair value through profit or loss. For all other 
equity instruments, the Company may make 
an irrevocable election to present subsequent 
changes in the fair value in other comprehensive 
income. The Company makes such election 
on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The 
classification is made on initial recognition and 
is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity 
instrument as at fair value through other 
comprehensive income, then all fair value 
changes on the instrument, including foreign 
exchange gain or loss and excluding dividends, 
are recognised in the other comprehensive 
income. There is no recycling of the amounts 
from OCI to profit or loss, even on sale of 
investment. However, the Company may transfer 
the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the fair value 
through profit or loss category are measured at 
fair value with all changes recognized in the profit 
or loss.

The asset is held within a business model 
whose objective is to hold assets for collecting 
contractual cash flows, and

Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified 
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding

After initial measurement, such financial 
assets are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest rate method. 
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into 
account any discount or premium on acquisition 
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the 
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate 
amortization is included in Other Income in the 
profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment 
are recognised in the profit or loss.

Debt instrument at fair value through other 
comprehensive income 

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured as at fair value 
through other comprehensive income if both of 
the following criteria are met:

a)	 The objective of the business model is achieved 
both by collecting contractual cash flows and 
selling the financial assets, and

b)	 The contractual terms of the instrument give 
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments included within the fair value 
through other comprehensive income category 
are measured initially as well as at each reporting 
date at fair value. Fair value movements are 
recognized in the other comprehensive income. 
However, the Company recognizes interest 
income, impairment losses & reversals and 
foreign exchange gain or loss in the profit or 
loss. On de-recognition of the asset, cumulative 
gain or loss previously recognised in other 
comprehensive income is reclassified from the 
equity to profit or loss. Interest earned whilst 
holding fair value through other comprehensive 
income debt instrument is reported as interest 
income using the EIR method.

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
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Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading 
and are not designated as at fair value through 
profit or loss are measured at amortised cost at 
the end of subsequent accounting periods. The 
carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost are 
determined based on the effective interest rate 
method. Interest expense that is not capitalized 
as part of costs of an asset is included in the 
'Finance costs' line item in profit or loss.

De recognition of financial instruments

The Company derecognizes a financial asset 
when the contractual rights to the cash flows 
from the financial asset expire or it transfers 
the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for 
de recognition under Ind AS 109. A financial 
liability (or a part of a financial liability) is 
derecognized from the Company’s Balance 
Sheet when the obligation specified in the 
contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

IX.	 Cash and cash equivalents:

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of 
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash 
on hand and balance with Bank.

X.	 Earnings per Share:

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing 
the net profit after tax by the weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding during the 
period. Diluted earnings per share is computed 
by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted 
average number of equity shares as above and also 
the weighted average number of equity shares upon 
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

XI.	 Cash Flow Statements: 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, 
whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the 
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any 
deferrals or accruals of past or future operating 
cash receipts or payments and item of income or 
expenses associated with investing or financing 
cash flows. The cash flow from operating, investing 
and financing activities of Company is segregated.

a.	 Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the 
Company are classified as either financial 
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the 
substance of the contractual arrangements and 
the definitions of a financial liability and an 
equity instrument.

Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that 
evidences a residual interest in the assets of 
an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. 
Equity instruments issued by the Company 
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of 
direct issue costs.

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially 
at fair value and, in the case of loans and 
borrowings and payables, net of directly 
attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

All financial liabilities are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method or at fair value through profit 
or loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit 
or loss 

Financial liabilities are classified as at fair value 
through profit or loss when the financial liability 
is either contingent consideration recognised 
by the Company as an acquirer in a business 
combination to which Ind AS 103 applies or 
is held for trading or is designated upon initial 
recognition as at fair value through profit or 
loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held 
for trading if they are incurred principally for 
the purpose of repurchasing in the near term 
or on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio 
of identified financial instruments that the 
Company manages together and has a recent 
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking. 

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at 
amortised cost

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
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Risk management framework

The Company’s board of directors has overall 
responsibility for the establishment and oversight 
of the Company’s risk management framework. 
The board of directors is responsible for developing 
and monitoring the Company’s risk management 
policies.

Risk management policies and systems are reviewed 
regularly to reflect changes in market conditions 
and Company’s activities. The Company, through 
its training and management standards and 
procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and 
constructive control environment in which all 
employees understand their roles and obligations.

i.	 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the 
Company if a customer or counterparty to a 
financial instrument fails to meet its contractual 
obligations, and arises principally from the 
Company’s receivables from customers and 
investments in debt securities, cash and cash 
equivalents, mutual funds, bonds etc.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents 
the maximum credit exposure.

Cash and cash equivalents

Credit risk from balances with banks is managed 
by the Company’s treasury department in 
accordance with the company’s policy. Investment 
of surplus funds are made in mainly in mutual 
funds & fixed deposits with good returns and 
within approved credit ratings.

ii.	 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will 
not be able to meet its financial obligations as 
they become due. The Company manages its 
liquidity risk by ensuring, as far as possible, 
that it will always have sufficient liquidity to 
meet its liabilities when due, under both normal 
and stressed conditions, without incurring 
unacceptable losses or risk to the Company’s 
reputation.

XII.	 Employees benefits:  

i.	 Short term employee benefits are recognized as 
an expense at the undiscounted amount in the 
Profit and loss account of the year in which the 
related service is rendered.  These benefits include 
compensated absences such as paid annual leave 
and performance incentives. 

ii.	 Post-employment and other long term employee 
benefits are recognized as an expense in the Profit 
and Loss account for the year in which the employee 
has rendered services.  The expense is recognized at 
the present value of the amount payable determined 
using actuarial valuation techniques. Actuarial 
gains and losses are recognized in full in Profit and 
Loss account for the period in which they occur.

Liability towards Gratuity is being discharged 
regularly in accordance with the terms of 
employment with the employees.

iii.	 Provident Fund scheme: The Company makes 
specified monthly contributions towards Employee 
Provident Fund to Employees' Provident Fund 
Organization. Interest is credited to respective 
employees on regular basis as per the interest 
rate notified by government on time to time by 
Employee Provident Fund to Employees' Provident 
Fund Organization.

XIII.	Impairment of Assets:

An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying 
cost of the asset exceeds its recoverable value.  
An impairment loss is charged to the Statement 
of Profit and Loss in the year in which an asset 
is identified as impaired. The impairment loss 
recognized in a prior accounting period is reversed 
if there has been a change in the estimate of the 
recoverable amount.

XIV.	Financial risk management:

The Company has exposure to the following risks 
arising from financial instruments:

•	 Credit risk ;

•	 Liquidity risk ; and

•	 Market risk

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
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iv.	 Recent Accounting pronouncements:

Standards issued but not yet effective;

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies 
new standard or amendments to the existing 
standards. There are no such notifications which 
would have been applicable from April 1, 2021.

iii.	 Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, 
fair values or future cash flows that may result 
from adverse changes in market rates and prices 
(such as interest rates) or in the price of market 
risk-sensitive instruments as a result of such 
adverse changes in market rates and prices. 
Market risk is attributable to all market risk-
sensitive financial instruments and all short term 
and long-term debt. The Company is exposed to 
market risk primarily related interest rate risk and 
the market value of its investments.

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
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Note 5 : Non-current investments
 (₹ in lakhs)

Particulars As at 31 March, 2022 As at 31 March, 2021
Face 

Value No of Units Cost Fair 
Value

Face 
Value

No of 
Units Cost Fair 

Value
A. In Subsidiaries

Investment in fully paid 
up Equity Shares of 
Subsidiaries

G. Varadan Limited  100.00  5,000.00  47.60  47.60  100  5,000  47.60  47.60 
Total  -  -  47.60  47.60  -  -  47.60  47.60 

B Investment in Equity 
Instruments
Quoted
Emami Limited  1.00  7,200.00  0.84  32.24  1  7,200  0.84  35.11 
Emami Realty Limited  2.00  733.00  0.01  0.44  2  733  0.01  0.29 
Jet Airways Limited  10.00  356.00  1.95  0.29  10  356  1.95  0.33 
TCS Limited  1.00  2,296.00  2.44  85.84  1  2,296  2.44  72.96 
Punjab National Bank  10.00  19,715.00  4.61  6.91  10  19,715  4.61  7.23 
Union Bank Limited  10.00  2,900.00  0.46  1.12  10  2,900  0.46  0.99 
L.G.Balkrishna Limited  10.00  400.00  0.02  2.15  10  400  0.02  1.22 
Bank of India  10.00  900.00  0.41  0.41  10  900  0.41  0.61 
Cadila Health Care 
Limited  5.00  7,500.00  1.24  26.15  5  7,500  1.24  33.06 

FCS Software Limited  1.00  14,820.00  0.37  0.58  1  14,820  0.37  0.10 
GSPL Limited  10.00  2,253.00  0.61  5.85  10  2,253  0.61  6.16 
Reliance Industries 
Limited  10.00  692.00  1.67  18.23  10  692  1.67  13.86 

LGB Forge Limited  1.00  1,000.00  0.02  0.11  1  1,000  0.02  0.04 
Zydus Wellness Limited  10.00  320.00  0.01  4.80  10  320  0.01  6.31 

Total  -  -  14.65  185.13  -  -  14.65  178.27 

C Investment in Mutual 
Funds
Aditya Birla Sun Life 
Medium Term Plan - 
Growth - Regular Plan

 0.00  827,289.52  150.00  218.52  8.27  20.41  150.00  199.65 

HDFC Corporate Debt 
Opportunities Fund  0.00  

5,310,015.63  815.00  1,033.79  71.63  13.56  622.27  966.84 

ICICI Prudential Credit 
Risk Fund - Growth  0.00  

1,996,027.71  500.00  502.50  -  -  -  - 

HDFC Credit Risk Debt 
Fund - Growth Option  0.00  

1,089,400.13  210.00  212.09  -  -  -  - 

Total  -  -  1,675.00  1,966.90  -  -  772.27  1,166.50 

D Investment in 
Governement Securities

National Saving 
Certificate  -  -  0.20  0.20  -  -  0.20  0.20 

Total  -  -  0.20  0.20  -  -  0.20  0.20 
Total (A+B)  -  -  1,737.45  2,199.83  -  -  834.72  1,392.57 

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
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Note 
No. Particulars  As at 

31/03/2022 
 As at 

31/03/2021 

6 Trade receivables
(Refer Note No. 36)

(a) Non-Current
Trade Receiveables (Considered Good)

i. Secured  -  - 
ii. Unsecured

- From Related Parties  -  - 
- From Others  78.95  86.20 

iii. Trade Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk  -  - 
iv. Trade Receivables – Credit Impaired  -  - 

Sub-Total (a)  78.95  86.20 
(b) Current

i. Secured  -  - 
ii.  Unsecured

- From Related Parties  -  - 
- From Others  12,526.27  10,007.15 

iii. Trade Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk  -  - 
iv. Trade Receivables – Credit Impaired  -  - 

Sub-Total (b)  12,526.27  10,007.15 
Total  12,605.22  10,093.35 

7 Loans and Advances
(a) Current

Loans and advances to employees 
Unsecured, considered good  3.98  3.41 

Total  3.98  3.41 

8 Other Financial Assets

(a) Non - Current
i. Security deposits 

Unsecured, considered good  53.93  57.33 
ii. Advance to Suppliers  23.84  23.84 
iii. Advance for Capital Expenditures  300.00  566.75 
iv. Other Advances  -  - 

Sub-Total (a)  377.77  647.92 
(b) Current
i. Balances with government authorities 

-  Indirect Tax authorities
Goods and Service Tax (Net)  298.45  488.09 
Value Added Tax  0.47  0.47 

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
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Note 
No. Particulars  As at 

31/03/2022 
 As at 

31/03/2021 
ii. Advance against expenses (Unsecured, considered good)  12.85  19.24 
iii. Advance to Suppliers for goods

Unsecured, considered good - Current  1,343.20  1,305.95 
Less : Provision for Doubtful Debts  -24.00  -24.00 
Net Balances  1,319.20  1,281.95 

iv. Inter-divison Balances  0.00  0.05 
Sub-Total (b)  1,630.97  1,789.81 

Total (a+b)  2,008.75  2,437.72 

9 Tax Assets/(Liabilities) (Net)
(a) Non-Current

Balances with Direct Tax Authorities  181.22  143.81 
(Net of Provision for Tax)

Sub-Total (a)  181.22  143.81 
(b) Current

Advance Tax/TDS/TCS Receivable  883.18  329.39 
(A.Y. 2022-23)

Sub-Total (b)  883.18  329.39 

Total (a+b)  1,064.40  473.21 
10 Inventories

(a) Stock-in-Transit  745.01  1,329.69 
(a) Work-in-Progress  162.28  - 

Total  907.30  1,329.69 

11 Cash and cash equivalents
(a) Cash on hand  14.07  14.12 

Sub-Total (a)  14.07  14.12 
(b) Balances with banks

- In current accounts  2,064.34  413.43 
- In earmarked accounts  56.74  0.64 

Sub-Total (b)  2,121.08  414.07 
Total  2,135.15  428.19 

12 Other current assets
i. Export Incentive Receivable  421.08  114.21 
ii. Prepaid Expenses  10.69  4.28 
iii. Foreign Currency Receivable  -  - 
iv. Others  -  181.74 

Total  431.77  300.24 

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
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Note No. 13 : Share capital

Particulars  As at 31 March, 2022  As at 31 March, 2021 
 No. of shares (₹ in lakhs)  No. of shares (₹ in lakhs)

(a) Authorised
Equity shares of ` 2 each with voting rights  30,000,000  600.00  30,000,000  600.00 

(b) Issued
Equity shares of ` 2 each with voting rights  29,171,500  583.43  29,171,500  583.43 

(c) Subscribed and fully paid up
Equity shares of ` 2 each with voting rights  29,171,500  583.43  29,171,500  583.43 

(d) Share Forfeiture Account  211,000  1.16  211,000  1.16 

Notes:-
(i) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the 
reporting year

Particulars  As at 31 March, 2022  As at 31 March, 2021 
 No. of shares (₹ in lakhs)  No. of shares (₹ in lakhs)

Equity shares with voting rights
Opening Balance  29,171,500  584.59  29,171,500  584.59 

Closing Balance  29,171,500  585  29,171,500  585 

(ii) Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:
Class of shares / Name of shareholder  As at 31 March, 2022  As at 31 March, 2021 

No. of Shares 
held

 % holding 
in that class 

of shares  

No. of Shares 
held

 % holding in that 
class of shares  

Equity shares with voting rights

Ujwal R Lahoti  5,345,000  18.32  5,345,000  18.32 
Umesh R Lahoti  4,484,000  15.37  4,484,000  15.37 
Jayashri U Lahoti  2,375,500  8.14  2,375,500  8.14 
Manjushri Umesh Lahoti  1,934,500  6.63  1,934,500  6.63 
Kirti Stock Brokers LLP  1,610,000  5.52  1,610,000  5.52 
Billion Way Garment Limited  4,240,800  14.54  4,240,800  14.54 

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
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(iii) Details of Shares held by Promoters of the Company

Shares held by the promoters as at 31/03/2022
% of Change 

during the yearPromoter Name No. of Shares 
held

% of Total 
Shares

Ujwal R Lahoti  5,345,000 18.32%  - 
Umesh R Lahoti  4,484,000 15.37%  - 
Jayashree U Lahoti  2,375,500 8.14%  - 
Manjushri Umesh Lahoti  1,934,500 6.63%  - 
Kirti Stockbrokers LLP  1,610,000 5.52%  - 
Hind Commerce Limited  707,500 2.43%  - 
Aadhitiya Ujwal Lahoti  340,500 1.17%  - 
Shashwat Umesh Lahoti  208,500 0.71%  - 
Ujwal R Lahoti HUF  188,500 0.65%  - 
Saurabh Umesh Lahoti  140,425 0.48%  - 
Amrithaa Sagar Makhija  65,000 0.22%  - 
R K Lahoti HUF  47,000 0.16%  - 

Total  17,446,425 60%  - 

Shares held by the promoters as at 31/03/2022 % of Change 
during the 

yearPromoter Name No of Shares 
held

% of Total 
Shares

Ujwal R Lahoti  5,345,000 18.32%  - 
Umesh R Lahoti  4,484,000 15.37%  - 
Jayashree U Lahoti  2,375,500 8.14%  - 
Manjushri Umesh Lahoti  1,934,500 6.63%  - 
Kirti Stockbrokers LLP  1,610,000 5.52%  - 
Hind Commerce Limited  707,500 2.43%  - 
Aadhitiya Ujwal Lahoti  340,500 1.17%  - 
Shashwat Umesh Lahoti  208,500 0.71%  - 
Ujwal R Lahoti HUF  188,500 0.65%  - 
Saurabh Umesh Lahoti  140,425 0.48%  - 
Amrithaa Sagar Makhija  65,000 0.22%  - 
R K Lahoti HUF  47,000 0.16%  - 
Total  17,446,425 60%  - 

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
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Note 
No. Particulars  As at 

31/03/2022 
 As at 

31/03/2021 

14 Other Equity

(a) Securities premium account
Opening balance  914.53  914.53 
Closing balance                                                                       914.53  914.53 

(b) General reserve
Opening balance  905.13  905.13 
Closing balance                                                                        905.13  905.13 

(c)  Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss 
Opening balance  11,265.13  10,438.07 
Add:

Profit for the year  2,497.32  842.62 
Earlier Year Depreciation written back  -  - 
Excess Provision for Income Tax  1.43  - 

Less:
Interim Dividend paid during the year
Dividend Paid  -116.69  - 
Short Provision for Income Tax  -  -15.56 
Provision for FBT written off

Closing balance                                                                        13,647.20  11,265.13 

Total  15,466.85  13,084.79 

15 Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities)

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liability
Opening Balance  20.22  29.22 
On difference between book balance and tax balance of Property, Plant 
and Equipments  -272.50  7.89 
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets/liabilities  2.86  2.28 
Tax difference on Other Comprehensive Income  -47.47  -19.17 

 Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability)  -296.89  20.22 

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
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Note 
No. Particulars  As at 

31/03/2022 
 As at 

31/03/2021 
16 Trade Payables

(Refer Note No. 37)
(a) Non-Current
i. Outstanding dues to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises

-For Goods  -  - 
-For Expenses and Services  -  - 

ii.
Outstanding dues to other than Micro Enterprises and Small 
Enterprises
(a) to related parties
(b) to others

- For Goods  2.38  2.38 
- For Expenses and Services  41.68  22.32 

Sub-Total (a)  44.07  24.70 

 (b) Current
i. Outstanding dues to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises

-For Goods  0.45  - 
-For Expenses and Services  15.28  9.94 

Sub-total (i)  15.73  9.94 

ii.
Outstanding dues to other than Micro Enterprises and Small 
Enterprises
(a) to related parties  -  - 
(b) to others

- For Goods  27.81  -0.00 
- For Expenses and Services  331.69  573.93 

Sub-total (ii)  359.49  573.93 
Sub-Total (b) (i+ii)  375.22  583.87 

Total (a+b)  419.29  608.57 
Notes:

i. There is no interest due or outstanding on dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises.

ii.
The above information regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has been determined 
to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the 
Company. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

17 Other long-term liabilities 
Others: 
(i) Payables on purchase of fixed assets
     Security deposits received  165.67  162.67 
(ii) Advance from Customers  15.00  15.00 

Total  180.67  177.67 

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
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Note 
No. Particulars  As at 

31/03/2022 
 As at 

31/03/2021 
18 Long-term Provisions 

Provision for employee benefits: 
(a) Provision for gratuity  61.19  40.14 

Total  61.19  40.14 

19 Short-term borrowings 

(i) From Banks - Secured [Note(i)]  5,766.91  4,603.01 
(ii) From Related Parties - Unsecured  82.97  1.23 
(ii) From Others - Unsecured  315.00  403.89 

Total  6,164.88  5,008.13 

(i) Break-up of secured short-term borrowings:
(a) P.C.F.C. :-
DBS Bank Ltd.  -  1,087.96 
YES Bank Ltd.  -  614.48 
HDFC Bank Ltd.  227.25  326.35 

(b) Pre Shipment :-
Packing Credit From Shinhan Bank Co. Ltd.  -  555.74 

(c) Post Shipment From:-  - 
DBS Bank Ltd.  -  258.58 
HDFC Bank Ltd.  380.32  1,132.74 
Shinhan Bank Co. Ltd.  2,003.04  - 
YES Bank Ltd.  430.00  627.16 
Federal Bank Ltd.  550.57  - 
RBL Bank Ltd.  512.31  - 
Woori Bank Ltd.  1,663.42  - 

Total  5,766.91  4,603.01 

Note:

The loans from DBS Bank Ltd., HDFC Bank Ltd.,  YES Bank Ltd., Federal Bank Ltd. RBL Bank Ltd. Woori 
Bank Ltd. are secured against Hypothecation of Stock and Book Debts of the Company with pari pasu clause.

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
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Note 
No. Particulars  As at 

31/03/2022 
 As at 

31/03/2021 

20 Other current liabilities

(a) Other payables 
i. Statutory remittances  30.36  15.96 
ii. Advances from customers  593.65  29.85 
iii. Other Current Liabilities  -  - 
(b) Creditor for Capital Expenditure  -  - 
(c) Foreign Currency Payable**  -107.39  16.70 

Total  516.62  62.51 
**Foreign Currency Payable consists of Unamortized premium on forward 
contracts.

21 Short-term provisions

(a) Provision for employee benefits
(i) Provision for Bonus  25.92  9.76 
(ii) Provision for Leave Salary  3.32  3.16 
(iii) Provision for Gratuity  19.92  19.49 

(b) Provision - Others:
(ii) Provision for proposed equity dividend  -  - 
(ii) Provision for tax on proposed dividends  -  - 
(iii) Provision for Doubtful Debts  -  - 
(iv) Provision for Income Tax Refund  -  - 
(v) Corporate dividend tax  -  - 
(vi) Short Provision for Tax  -  - 
(vii) Provision for Dividend Distribution Tax  -  - 

Total  49.16  32.41 

22 Tax Liabilities

(a) Current
(i) Provision for tax  980.96  294.63 

Total  980.96  294.63 

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
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Note 
No. Particulars  For the year 

ended 31/03/2022  
 For the year 

ended 31/03/2021 

23 Revenue from operations

(a) Operating Revenue [Note i]  86,965.93  46,180.65 
(b) Other operating revenues [Note ii]  2,231.51  827.37 

Total  89,197.43  47,008.02 
Note:

(i) Operating Revenue
-Generation of Power  311.62  397.45 
-Traded goods  86,654.30  45,783.19 

Total  86,965.93  46,180.65 

(ii) Other operating revenues comprise:
-Duty drawback  1,431.11  787.63 
-Export incentives (RODTEP)  800.40  - 
-Sale of MIES  -  39.74 

Total  2,231.51  827.37 

Disaggregation of Revenue
Revenue based on Geography

- Export  82,653.29  43,635.52 
- Domestic  1,858.10  2,254.22 

Total Revenue from Operations  84,511.39  45,889.74 

24 Other income

(a) Interest income  37.93  3.03 
(b) Dividend Income  1.77  1.27 
(c) Insurance Claim Received  17.39  - 
(d) Commission Received  0.20  - 
(e) Profit/(Loss) on sale of Property, Plant & Equipment  4.36  1.67 
(f) Gain on Exchange Rate Difference  507.18  302.36 
(g) Gain on Cancellation of Forward Contract  1.74  -30.89 
(h) Other Non-Operating Rental Income  200.87  195.31 
(j) Other Non Operating Income  -  3.79 

Total  771.43  476.54 

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
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Note 
No. Particulars  For the year 

ended 31/03/2022  
 For the year 

ended 31/03/2021 
Note :

(i) Interest income comprises:
Interest from Banks on Deposit  0.02  2.51 
Interest on loans and advances to Employees  0.42  0.51 
Interest on overdue trade receivables  37.49  - 

Total - Interest income  37.93  3.03 

(ii) Other non-operating income comprises:       
Other Insurance Claim received  -  3.05 
Miscellaneous income  -  0.74 

Total - Other Non Opoerating Income  -  3.79 

25 Purchase of traded goods

(a) Yarn, Cotton, fabric (net)  77,865.49  43,703.02 

Total  77,865.49  43,703.02 

26 Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade

(a) Inventories at the end of the year:
Stock-in-trade  745.01  1,329.69 
Work-in-progress  162.28  - 

(b) Inventories at the beginning of the year:
Stock-in-trade  1,329.69  284.63 

Net (increase) / decrease  422.39  -1,045.06 

27 Employee benefits expense

(a) Salaries and wages  303.70  249.91 
(b) Contributions to provident and other funds  21.49  11.65 
(c) Staff welfare expenses  3.02  1.82 

Total  328.20  263.39 

28 Finance costs

(a) Interest expense on Borrowing  188.63  123.29 
(b) Other finance costs  332.18  124.32 

Total  520.81  247.61 

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements



   82    Annual Report 2021-22

LAHOTI OVERSEAS LIMITED
CIN : L74999MH1995PLC087643

Note 
No. Particulars  For the year 

ended 31/03/2022  
 For the year 

ended 31/03/2021 
29 Other expenses

(a) Office  & Administrative expenses:
Auditor’s Fees [Note(i)]  4.74  3.65 
CSR Activities Expenses [Note(ii)]  68.00  5.00 
Donation  0.41  0.15 
Electricity Expenses  2.92  3.16 
Inspection Charges  5.43  2.48 
Insurance Premium  31.15  25.38 
Legal and Professional Charges  48.14  89.04 
Motor Car Expenses  11.93  12.48 
Office & General Expenses  309.14  459.56 
Postage and Telephone Charges  19.31  14.20 
Printing and Stationary  5.64  3.97 
Rent, Rates and Taxes  50.81  64.37 
Repairs & Maintenance  87.55  73.85 
Travelling & Conveyance  48.42  21.57 

Sub-Total (a)  693.60  778.88 
(b) Selling and Distribution expenses

Local Freight & other Shipment cost  886.30  641.83 
Ocean Freight  4,607.96  1,177.89 
Commission Expenses  793.08  562.87 
Sales Promotion Expenses  22.47  8.07 

Sub-Total (b)  6,309.81  2,390.67 

Total  7,003.41  3,169.54 
Note (i)

Payments to the auditors comprises of:
As Auditors - Statutory audit  3.25  3.00 
For Tax Audit  0.79  0.65 
For Certification & Consultancy Services  0.70  - 

Total  4.74  3.65 

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
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Note No. 30 : Key Financial Ratios:

Sr. No. Particulars Numerator Denominator  As at 
31/03/2022 

 As at 
31/03/2021 Variance

1 Current Ratio Current Assets Curent Liabilities  2.31  2.37 -3%

2 Debt Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholder’s Equity  0.38  0.37 5%

3 Debt Service Coverage 
Ratio (#)

Earnings available for 
debt service Debt Service  0.43  0.22 95%

4 Return on Equity Ratio 
($) Net Profit after Tax Average Sharehold-

er’s Equity 15.86% 6.07% 161%

5 Inventory Turnover 
Ratio (%)

Revenue from 
Operations (Net) Average Stock  85.99  58.24 48%

6 Net Capital Turnover 
Ratio (^)

Revenue from Opera-
tions (Net) Working Capital  8.41  5.73 47%

7 Net Profit Ratio (&) Net Profit Revenue 2.62% 1.69% 55%

8 Return on Capital Em-
ployed (*)

Net Profit Before 
Interest and tax Capital Employed 22.82% 8.71% 162%

9 Return on Investment Income from 
Investment

Average value of 
investments 6.85% 6.08% 13%

Notes:

(#)
Profit has increased but the debt has not increased proportionately as the debtors collection cycle during 
the year has reduced.

($)
Due to the favourable market conditions and the government incentives the Profit after taxes has in-
creased in a much higher 

proportion as compared to the increase in the sales.

(%) Increase in market demand has lead to an increase in stock holding position through out the year

(^)
Revenue Growth along with higher efficiency on working capital has resulted in an improvement in this 
ratio

(&) Increase in operations and favourable market conditions have lead to a favourable increase in this ratio.
(*) Sales have increased and the profits of the business are redeployed into the business. This has led to a 

favourable increase in this ratio

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
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Note No. 31 : Note on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR):
As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to 
spend at least 2% of its average net profit for the immediately preceding three financial years on corporate 
social responsibility (CSR) activities. The areas for CSR activities are eradication of hunger and malnutrition, 
promoting education, art and culture, healthcare, destitute care and rehabilitation, environment sustainability, 
disaster relief, COVID-19 relief and rural development projects. A CSR committee has been formed by the 
company as per the Act. The funds were primarily utilized through the year on these activities which are 
specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013:

(₹ in lakhs)

Sr. No. Particulars Year ended 
31/03/2022

Year ended 
31/03/2021

i. Amount required to be spent by the Company  24.60  24.02 
ii. Amount of Expenditure Incurred  7.00  5.00 
iii. Shortfall at the end of the year (*)  17.60  19.02 
iv. Total of previous years short fall (8)  -  96.24 
v. Reasons for shortfall No Projects were identified
vi. nature of CSR activities  Promotion of Education 

 Swacch Bharat Kosh 

vii.
details of related party transactions, e.g., contribution to a trust 
controlled by the company in relation to CSR expenditure as per 
relevant Accounting Standard,

 -  - 

viii.
where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by 
entering into a contractual obligation, the movements in the 
provision during the year shall be shown separately.

 -  - 

 Notes: 
 * The company has transferred the amount of shortfalls to a separate fund i.e. Unspent CSR Account 

as provided in Schedule VII of the Act, the details of which are provided hereunder:
(₹ in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended 
31/03/2022

Year ended 
31/03/2021

Shortfall for the year  17.60  19.02 
Shortfall of previous years  -  96.24 
Total Shortfalls  17.60  115.26 

Amount transferred to Swacch Bharat Kosh during F.Y. 2021-22  -  61.00 

Amount deposited in the Unspent CSR Account during F.Y. 2021-22  -  55.00 
Amount deposited in the Unspent CSR Account on 30/04/2022  18.00  - 
Shortfall / (Excess)  -0.40  -0.74 

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
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Note No. 32 : Note on Borrowings secured against current assets:
The loans from DBS Bank Ltd., HDFC Bank Ltd., Shinhan Bank Co. Ltd., YES Bank Ltd., Federal Bank Ltd. RBL 
Bank Ltd. are secured against Hypothecation of Stock and Book Debts of the Company with pari pasu clause. 
However the Company is required to file monthly stock statements with HDFC Bank Ltd. only.

The Summary of reconciliation and reasons for material discrepancies are as under
(₹ in lakhs)

Quarter Name of Bank
Particulars 
of securities 

provided

Amount as 
per books 

of accounts

Amount as 
reported in 

the quarterly 
return/state-

ment

Amount of 
difference

Reason for 
material 

discrapencies

June, 2021 HDFC Bank Ltd. Stock-in-Transit  1,136.54  974.05  162.49 

Note - 1September, 2021 HDFC Bank Ltd. Stock-in-Transit  1,905.97  742.65  1,163.32 
December, 2021 HDFC Bank Ltd. Stock-in-Transit  3,507.82  3,532.99  -25.17 
March, 2022 HDFC Bank Ltd. Stock-in-Transit  907.30  740.00  167.30 
June, 2021 HDFC Bank Ltd. Receivables  9,429.91  8,714.06  715.85 

Note - 2September, 2021 HDFC Bank Ltd. Receivables  13,014.44  12,408.55  605.89 
December, 2021 HDFC Bank Ltd. Receivables  16,554.99  15,881.42  673.57 
March, 2022 HDFC Bank Ltd. Receivables  12,605.22  11,944.18  661.04 

Note - 1 : Reconciliation of Stock Statements filed with Banks and Books of Accounts
(₹ in lakhs)

Particulars
For the quarter ended

June, 
2021

September, 
2021

December, 
2021

March, 
2022

Value of Inventories as per Books of accounts  1,136.54  1,905.97  3,507.82  907.30 
Less:
Value of Inventories not submitted to bank  211.99  1,170.13  354.74  - 
(not converted to sales/receiveables)
Revision in price after submission  -  20.61  -  - 
Inventories for Domestic Sales and  -  -  -  40.13 
Inventories lying with the Job Worker  -  -  -  162.97 

 211.99  1,190.74  354.74  203.10 
Add:
Value of Inventories converted to sales/receiveables 
before/at the end of the quarter  49.50  27.42  379.90  35.80 
Value of Inventories submitted to Banks  974.05  742.65  3,532.99  740.00 

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
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Note - 2 : Reconciliation of Receiveables Statements filed with Banks and Books of Accounts
(₹ in lakhs)

Particulars

For the quarter ended

June, 
2021

September, 
2021

December, 
2021

March, 
2022

Balance of Receiveables as per Books of accounts  9,429.91  13,014.44  16,554.99  12,605.22 
Less:
Value of domestic receiveables not submitted  962.42  482.27  696.75  463.06 
Value of receiveables pertaining to the power division  235.17  557.39  278.71  109.32 
Revaluation of Debtors  59.50  62.09  -159.84  88.66 

 1,257.08  1,101.75  815.62  661.04 
Add:
Invoices finalized after submission of statements
to the banks  541.23  495.86  142.05  - 
Balance of Receiveables submitted to the Banks  8,714.06  12,408.55  15,881.42  11,944.18 

Note No. 33A : Related Party Disclosure (with whom transactions exist):

Disclosure requirements as per Ind-AS-24 “Related Party Disclosure” and terms and conditions of transactions 
are as follows:

The sales & services provided and received from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that 
prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured, interest free and will 
be settled in cash. There have been no guarantees received or provided for any related party receivables or 
payables.

i. The Company has identified following parties for the purpose of Related Party Disclosure:
Subsidiary Companies: Holding (%)
G Varadan Limited  100.00 

Entities in which KMP / relatives of KMP have significant influence :
PSWare Information Pvt. Ltd.
Bauble Investment Pvt. Ltd.

Key Management Personnel (KMP):
Name Designation DIN
Mr. Umesh R. Lahoti Managing Director 361216
Mr. Ujwal R Lahoti    Executive Director 360785
Mr. Aadhitya Lahoti Whole Time Director 1501504
Miss. Akshita Jhawar Company Secretary -
Mr. Pradeep Bachhuka Chief Financial Officer -

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
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Relatives of KMP have significant influence
Name Relation
Mrs. Aanchal A. Lahoti Spouse of Director
Mr. Saurabh Lahoti Son of Director

ii. List of related party transactions during the year:
(₹in Lakhs)

Sr. 
No. Entity Relation Transaction type Year ended 

31/03/2022
Year ended 
31/03/2021

1 G Varadan Private Limited Subsidiary Rent Paid  9.60  9.60 

2 PSWare Information Private 
Limited

KMP/Relatives of 
KMP having signifi-
cant influence

Rent Paid  9.60  9.60 

3 Bauble Investment Private 
Limited

KMP/Relatives of 
KMP having signifi-
cant influence

Rent Paid  -  0.45 

4 Mr. Umesh Lahoti Managing Director Loan Taken  458.00  9.18 
5 Mr. Ujwal Lahoti Executive Director Loan Taken  659.00  - 
6 Mr. Umesh Lahoti Managing Director Loan Repaid  434.74  15.27 
7 Mr. Ujwal Lahoti Executive Director Loan Repaid  652.63  3.26 
8 Mr. Umesh Lahoti Managing Director Interest Paid  15.44  0.33 
9 Mr. Ujwal Lahoti Executive Director Interest Paid  36.67  0.31 

10 Mr. Umesh Lahoti Managing Director Managerial 
remuneration  21.60  21.60 

11 Mr. Ujwal Lahoti Executive Director Managerial remu-
neration  25.80  24.00 

12 Mr. Aadhitya Lahoti Director Managerial remu-
neration  24.00  12.00 

13 Mr.  Pradeep Bachhuka CFO Remuneration  12.86  9.78 
14 Miss. Akshita Jhawar Company Secretary Remuneration  6.51  4.58 
15 Mr. Umesh Lahoti Managing Director Loan Payable  39.01  0.32 
16 Mr. Ujwal Lahoti Executive Director Loan Payable  43.96  0.91 

17 Mr. Prem Malik Director Director Sitting Fees  0.30  0.27 

18 Mr. Prakash Bang Director Director Sitting Fees  0.41  0.28 

19 Mrs. Meghna Panchal Director Director Sitting Fees  0.43  0.32 
20 Mrs. Aanchal A. Lahoti Relative of Director Salary to Relative  3.20  2.79 
21 Mr. Saurabh Lahoti Relative of Director Salary to Relative  12.00  10.41 

* Parties identified by the Management and relied upon by the auditors.

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
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Note No. 34 : Disclosures forming part of the financial statements
Financial Instruments - Fair value and risk management
(a) Financial instruments by category
The following table presents the carrying amounts of each category of financial assets and liabilites as at 31st 
March, 2022.

 (₹ in lakhs) 

Particulars  FVTPL  Amortised 
Cost 

 Total carrying 
value 

Financial assets
(a) Investment in Equity Instrument  185.13  -  185.13 
(b) Investment in Mutual Fund  1,966.90  -  1,966.90 
(c) Investment in National Saving Certificate  0.20  -  0.20 
(d) Investment Property  -  1,864.07  1,864.07 
(e) Investment in Subsidiaries  47.60  -  47.60 

Total  2,199.83  1,864.07  4,063.90 
Financial liabilites
(a) Non Current 

Trade Payable  -  44.07  44.07 
(b) Current 

Trade Payable  -  375.22  375.22 
Total  -  419.29  419.29 

The following table presents the carrying amounts of each category of financial assets and liabilites as at 31st 
March, 2021.

 (₹ in lakhs) 

Particulars  FVTPL  Amortised 
Cost 

 Total carrying 
value 

Financial assets
(a) Investment in Equity Instrument  178.27  -  178.27 
(b) Investment in Mutual Fund  1,166.50  -  1,166.50 
(c) Investment in National Saving Certificate  0.20  -  0.20 
(d) Investment Property  -  1,963.66  1,963.66 
(e) Investment in Subsidiaries  47.60  -  47.60 

Total  1,392.57  1,963.66  3,356.23 
Financial liabilites
(a) Non Current 

Trade Payable  -  24.70  24.70 
(b) Current 

Trade Payable  -  583.87  583.87 
 Total  -  608.57  608.57 

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
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(b) Fair Value Hierarchy  (₹ in lakhs) 

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2022
Fair Value measurement using Profit & Loss

Total          (Level 1)                              (Level 2)             (Level 3)  

 Quoted prices in 
active market  

 Significant 
observable 

inputs  

 Significant unob-
servable inputs  

Assets measured at fair 
value:
Equity Investment  185.13  185.13  -  - 
Investment in Mutual Fund  1,966.90  1,966.90  -  - 
Investment in National 
Saving Certificate  0.20  -  -  0.20 

Investment in Subsidiaries  47.60  -  -  47.60 
Total  2,199.83  2,152.03  -  47.80 

 (₹ in lakhs) 
Particulars As at 31st March, 2021

Fair Value measurement using Profit & Loss
Total          (Level 1)                              (Level 2)             (Level 3)  

 Quoted prices in 
active market  

 Significant 
observable 

inputs  

 Significant unob-
servable inputs  

Assets measured at fair 
value:
Equity Investment  178.27  178.27  -  - 
Investment in Mutual Fund  1,166.50  1,166.50  -  - 
Investment in National 
Saving Certificate  0.20  -  -  0.20 

Investment in Subsidiaries  47.60  -  -  47.60 
Total  1,392.57  1,344.77  -  47.80 

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
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Note No. 35A : Segment Reporting
Segment wise disclosure information as per Ind-AS-108 on “Operating Segment” is as below:
A. General Information

1. Segments have been identified in line with the Ind-AS-108.

2. Business segment have been identified on the basis of nature of the products/services, the risk-return 
profile on individual basis.

3.
Company has disclosed Business Segment as the primary segment. The risk-return profile of the company’s 
business is determined predominantly by the nature of its products and services. Accordingly, business 
segments constitute the primary segment for disclosure of segment information.

4. Composition of Business Segment:

Name of segment Comprises of Revenue from operations (%)

Trading Division Export Sales 99.65
Power Division Power Generation 0.35

5. The Segment Revenue, Results, Assets and liabilities include the respective amounts identifiable and 
amounts allocated on reasonable basis.

6.
The Managing Director of the Company, Mr. Umesh Lahoti, acts as the Chief Operating Decision Maker 
(“CODM”) The CODM evaluates the Company’s performance and allocates resources based on an analysis 
of various performance indicators by operating segments.

B. Information about Major Customers

1.Revenues of approximately ₹ 44,306.12 lakhs (Previous year 31st March, 2021 – ₹ 4,384.45 lakhs) are 
derived from the following external customer:

Details of major area of operation:                                                                                                        (₹ in lakhs)

Sr. no. Country/Area/Region For the year ended 
31/03/2022

For the year ended 
31/03/2021

1 Bangladesh 28,264.44 4,384.45
2 Turkey 16,041.68  - 

TOTAL  44,306.12  4,384.45 

C. Segment Assets:                                                                                                                                            (₹ in lakhs)
Sr. No. Division As at 31/03/2022 As at 31/03/2021

1 Trading Division  19,755.83  15,955.36 
2 Power Division  -162.84  88.60 
3 Un-allocable  5,128.10  3,849.45 

TOTAL  24,721.09  19,893.41 

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
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Note No.35B : Segment Report

Primary Segments - Business Segments:
 (₹ in lakhs) 

Particulars

Trading Division Power Un-allocable Total

For the 
year ended 
31/03/2022

For the 
year ended 
31/03/2021

For the 
year ended 
31/03/2022

For the 
year ended 
31/03/2021

For the 
year ended 
31/03/2022

For the 
year ended 
31/03/2021

For the 
year ended 
31/03/2022

For the 
year ended 
31/03/2021

Gross Segment Revenue  88,885.81  46,610.56  311.62  397.45  -  -  89,197.43  47,008.02 
Less:- Intersegment Rev-
enue  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Net Segment Revenue  88,885.81  46,610.56  311.62  397.45  -  -  89,197.43  47,008.02 

Segment Results :  3,461.35  634.33  (202.45)  (25.80)  -  -  3,258.90  608.53 
(Profit / Loss Before Tax , 
Interest and  
Investment Income from 
each segment)
Add: Interest Income  -  -  -  -  37.93  3.03  37.93  3.03 
Add: Rental Income  -  -  -  -  200.87  195.31  200.87  195.31 
Add: Dividend Received  -  -  -  -  1.77  1.27  1.77  1.27 
Add: Other Income  623.77  526.62  623.77  526.62 
Add: Profit/(Loss) on sale 
of investments  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Add: Profit/(Loss) on 
sale of Plant, property & 
Equipement

 -  -  -  -  4.36  1.67  4.36  1.67 

Profit before Interest and 
Tax  -  -  -  -  4,127.59  1,336.43 

Less:- Interest  -  -  -  -  (520.81)  (247.61)  (520.81)  (247.61)
Profit  Before Tax   -  -  -  -  3,606.78  1,088.82 
Provision for Tax
Current Tax net off MAT 
credit  -  -  -  -  980.96  294.63 

Deferred  -  -  -  -  269.64  (10.17)
Profit After Tax   -  -  -  -  2,356.18  804.36 

 

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
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 (₹ in lakhs)

Particulars
Trading Power Un-allocable Total

As At 
31/03/2022

As At 
31/03/2021

As At 
31/03/2022

As At 
31/03/2021

As At 
31/03/2022

As At 
31/03/2021

As At 
31/03/2022

As At 
31/03/2021

a) Segment Assets
Property, Plant and 
Equipment  208.29  193.99  1,101.57  1,257.18  -  -  1,309.86  1,451.18 

Capital Work In Progress  11.03  -  -  -  -  -  11.03  - 
Investment Properties  -  -  -  -  1,864.07  1,963.66  1,864.07  1,963.66 
Investments  -  -  0.20  0.20  2,199.63  1,392.37  2,199.83  1,392.57 
Other Assets,Loans and 
Advances (Excluding Tax 
Assets)

 19,536.50  15,761.36  (1,264.61)  (1,168.79)  -  20.22  18,271.90  14,612.80 

Unallocable Assets (Tax 
Assets)  -  -  -  -  1,064.40  473.21  1,064.40  473.21 

Total Assets  19,755.83  15,955.36  (162.84)  88.60  5,128.10  3,849.45  24,721.09  19,893.41 
b) Segment Liabilities
Loan Funds  6,164.88  5,008.13  -  -  -  -  6,164.88  5,008.13 
Liabilities & Provisions 
(Excluding Tax Liabilities)  1,489.80  806.87  34.01  114.40  -  -  1,523.82  921.27 

Unallocable (Tax Liabil-
ities)  -  -  -  -  980.96  294.63  980.96  294.63 

Total Liabilities  7,654.68  5,815.00  34.01  114.40  980.96  -  8,669.65  6,224.04 
Net Segment Assets  12,101.15  10,140.36  (196.85)  (25.81)  4,147.14  3,849.45  16,051.44  13,669.37 

Particulars
Trading Wind Power Un-allocable Total 

As At 
31/03/2022

As At 
31/03/2021

As At 
31/03/2022

As At 
31/03/2021

As At 
31/03/2022

As At 
31/03/2021

As At 
31/03/2022

As At 
31/03/2021

Capital Expenditure  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Segment Depreciation  63.84  34.21  155.61  169.29  99.59  105.08  319.04  308.59 
Non - Cash Expenses other 
than Depreciation  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Segment Reporting : Segment identification, reportable segments
i) Primary/secondary segment reporting format:
The risk-return profile of the company’s business is determined predominantly by the nature of it’s products and 
services. Accordingly, business segments constitute the primary segment for disclosure of segment information .
ii) Segment Identification:
2. Business segment have been identified on the basis of nature of the products/services, the risk-return profile on 
individual basis.
iii) Reportable Segment:
Reportable segment has been indetified as per the criteria specified in Ind AS 108 “Operating Segment” issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

The previous year’s figures have been  reworked,  regrouped,  rearranged  and  reclassified  wherever  necessary. 
Amount and other disclosures for the preceding year are included as an integral part of the current year financial 
statements and are to be read in relation to the amounts and other disclosures relating to the current year.

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
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Note No. 36 : Trade Receiveables Ageing Schedule

With reference to the outstanding amount of trade receiveables as on the balance sheet date, the ageing 
schedule is as follows:

1. For the year ended 31st March, 2022.
(₹ in lakhs)

Outstanding for the following periods from the due date of 
payment

Sr. 
No. Particulars Less than 6 

months
6 months 
to 1 year

1 to 2 
years

2 to 3 
years

More than 
3 years Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receiveables-
(a) Considered Good  12,526.27  -  -  78.95  12,605.22 

(b) Which have significant increase in 
risk credit  -  -  -  -  - 

(c) Credit Impaired  -  -  -  -  - 
(ii) Disputed Trade receiveables-
(a) Considered Good  -  -  -  -  -  - 

(b) Which have significant increase in 
risk credit  -  -  -  -  -  - 

(c) Credit Impaired  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Total  12,526.27  -  -  -  78.95  12,605.22 

2. For the year ended 31st March, 2021.
(₹ in lakhs)

Outstanding for the following periods from the due date of 
payment

Sr. 
No. Particulars Less than 6 

months
6 months 
to 1 year

1 to 2 
years

2 to 3 
years

More than 
3 years Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receiveables-
(a) Considered Good  10,007.15  -  -  86.20  -  10,093.35 

(b) Which have significant increase in 
risk credit  -  -  -  -  -  - 

(c) Credit Impaired  -  -  -  -  -  - 
(ii) Disputed Trade receiveables-
(a) Considered Good  -  -  -  -  -  - 

(b) Which have significant increase in 
risk credit  -  -  -  -  -  - 

(c) Credit Impaired  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Total  10,007.15  -  -  86.20  -  10,093.35 

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
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Note No. 37 : Trade Payables Ageing Schedule

With reference to the outstanding amount of trade payables as on the balance sheet date, the ageing schedule is 
as follows:
1. For the year ended 31st March, 2022.

(₹ in lakhs)

Sr. 
No. Particulars

Outstanding for the following periods from the due date of 
payment

Less than 6 
months

6 months 
to 1 year

1 to 2 
years

2 to 3 
years

More than 
3 years Total

(i) Undisputed Trade Payables-

(a) MSME  15.73  -  -  -  -  15.73 
(b) Others  358.43  1.00  19.37  -  -  378.80 

(ii) Disputed Trade Payables-

(a) MSME  -  -  -  -  -  - 
(b) Others  -  0.06  5.87  -  18.83  24.76 

Total  374.16  1.06  25.24  -  18.83  419.29 

2. For the year ended 31st March, 2021.
(₹ in lakhs)

Sr. 
No. Particulars

Outstanding for the following periods from the due 
date of payment

Less than 6 
months

6 months 
to 1 year

1 to 2 
years

2 to 3 
years

More than 
3 years Total

(i) Undisputed Trade Payables-
(a) MSME  9.94  -  -  -  -  9.94 
(b) Others  573.93  -  -  -  -  573.93 

(ii) Disputed Trade Payables-
(a) MSME  -  -  -  -  -  - 
(b) Others  -  -  5.87  18.83  -  24.70 

Total  583.87  -  5.87  18.83  -  608.57 

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
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Note No. 38 : Employee Benifits
The disclosures required under Ind AS-19 “Employee Benefits” are given below:
Defined Contribution Plan
Contributions to Defined Contribution Plan recognized and charged off for the year are as under:

(₹ in Lakhs)
Particulars 31/3/2022 31/3/2021

Employer’s Contribution to Provident Fund 8.24 7.4

Defined Benefit Plan:
a. Gratuity:

The liability in respect of employees is provided in the books based on the actuarial valuation. At the time of 
actual payment of Gratuity, the gratuity payable account is credited.

b. Leave encashment:

The Company provides for estimated leave encashment liability each year on the basis of accumulated leave 
due to each employee at the year end, value based on salaries including allowances of the last month of the 
Accounting Year. 

Reconciliation of Defined Benefit Obligation and fair value of plan assets is as under:
a. Actuarial Assumptions

The financial and demographic assumptions on annual basis used for valuation as at the Valuation Date 
are shown below.  The assumptions as at the Valuation Date are used to determine the Present Value of 
Defined Benefit Obligation at that date.
Summary of Assumptions
Particulars 31/3/2022 31/3/2021

Mortality Rate Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-
08) Ultimate

Indian Assured lives mortality(2006-08) 
Ultimate

Retirement Age 65 years 65 years

Attrition Rate

For service 2 years and below 25 % p.a. For service 2 years and below 25 % p.a.

For service 3 years to 4 years  18 % p.a. For service 3 years to 4 years 18 % p.a.

For service 5 years and above  11 % p.a. For service 5 years and below 11 % p.a.

Financial Assumptions
Salary Escalation Rate 6.00 % p.a. 6.00 % p.a.

Discount Rate 6.26% 6.26% p.a. (Indicative G. Sec referenced 
on 31-03-2021)

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
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b. Gratuity Unfunded:
(₹ in Lakhs)

Particulars Year Ending 
31/03/2022

Year Ending 
31/03/2021

Current Service Cost  425,082  484,682 
Past Service Cost  -  - 
(Gain)/Loss on Settlements  -  - 
Current Service Cost  -  - 
Total Service Cost  425,082  484,682 
Interest Expense on DBO  317,589  354,317 
Interest(Income) on Plan Assets  -  - 
Interest(Income) on Reimbursement Rights  -  - 
Interest Expense on (Asset Ceiling)/Onerous Liability  -  - 
Total Net Interest Cost  317,589  354,317 
Benefits paid directly by the employer  -153,208  -501,747 
Total Benefits Paid  -153,208  -501,747 
Reimbursement of Other Long-Term Benefits  -  - 
Defined Benefit Cost included in P & L  -  - 
Re-measurements-Due to Demographic Assumptions  -1,540  523,974 

Re-measurements-Due to Financial As-
sumptions  -190,104  453,303 
Re-measurements-Due to Experience 
Adjustments  1,248,378  -45,337 
(Return)on Plan Assets(Excluding Interest Income)  -  - 
(Return)on Reimbursement Rights  -  - 
Changes in Asset Ceiling/Onerous Liability  -  - 
Total Re-measurements in OCI  1,056,734  931,940 
Total Defined Benefit Cost recognized in P&L and OCI  1,646,197  1,269,192 

Note No. 39 : Provisions, Contingent Liabilities And Contingent Assets:
i. Provisions:

The Company recognizes provisions when a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past 
event exists and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to 
settle such obligation and the amount of such obligation can be reliably estimated. If the effect of time value 
of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pretax rate that reflects, when appropriate, 
the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage 
of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
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ii. Contingent liabilities:

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that 
may, but probably will not require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or the amount of 
such obligation cannot be measured reliably. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in 
respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote, no provision 
or disclosure is made.

a. Claims not acknowledged by the Company relating to cases contested by the Company:
(₹ in Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 
2022

As at March 31, 
2021

Income Tax Matter (Pending before Appellate 
Authorities in respect of which the Company 
is in appeal)

-     For A.Y.: 2013-14 48.2 48.2
-     For A.Y.: 2014-15 171.62 171.62
-     For A.Y.: 2017-18 334.92 334.92
-     For A.Y.: 2018-19 7.36 7.36

iii. Contingent Assets:
Company doesn’t have any Contingent assets.

Note No. 40 : Earnings Per Share:

Particulars As at March 31, 
2022

As at March 31, 
2021

Profit for the year (Rs. In Lakhs)  2,356.18  804.36 
Shares outstanding during the year (Nos.)  29,171,500  29,171,500 
Earnings per Share

Baisc  8.08  2.76 
Diluted  8.08  2.76 

Note No. 41 : Foreign Currency Transactions

a. Initial Recognition:

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the 
transaction.

 

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
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b. Conversion:

At the year-end, monetary items in foreign currencies are converted into rupee equivalents at the year-end 
exchange rates.

c. Exchange Differences:

All exchange differences arising on settlement and conversions of foreign currency transactions are included 
in Other Comprehensive Income.

d. Forward Exchange Contracts:
In respect of transactions covered by forward exchange contracts, the difference between the forward rate 
and the spot rate is recognized as gain/loss. The gain by way of premium on open forward contracts as on 
the reporting date is amortized over the period of contract on pro-rata basis. The mark to market gain or 
loss on open forward contracts being the difference between forward contracts booked at spot rate and rate 
prevailing at the year- end date is recognized in Other Comprehensive Income.

Note No. 42 : Expenditure in foreign currency:
(₹ in Lakhs)

Particulars Year ending 
31/03/2022

Year ending 
31/03/2021

Foreign Bank Charges  164.36  80.16 
Foreign Traveling Expenses  13.12  0.29 
Overseas Commission  384.80  305.25 
Liaison Office at Bangladesh  14.97  29.08 

TOTAL  577.25  414.78 

Note No. 43 : Earning in Foreign Exchange:
FOB value of export: ₹ 80,308.25 Lakhs (Previous Year ₹ 42,380.76 Lakhs).

(₹ in Lakhs)

Particulars Year ending 
31/03/2022

Year ending 
31/03/2021

FOB value as per Financials 86807.05 44462.89
Less: Discount Given -55.76 -76.87
Duty Drawback -1430.11 -787.63
Export Incentive -800.4 -39.74
Ocean Freight -4212.53 -1177.89
FOB as per Notes 80308.25 42380.76

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
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Note No. 44 : Leases:
a. Lease Expense

Ind AS 116 is effective from April 2019, Ind AS 116 replaces the existing standard Ind AS 17 and specifies 
how an entity will recognize, measure, present and disclose leases.

The company has certain operating leases with subsidiary/associate company not of material value for office 
facilities. Such leases are generally with the option of renewal, with termination at short notice and there 
exist no formal agreement to categorize it as a Right of Use asset (“RoU Asset”) for long term basis and 
accordingly capitalizing the same on Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) basis is not practical. Rental expenses 
of ₹ 19.20 Lakhs (31st March, 2021: ₹ 19.60 Lakhs) in respect of obligation under operating leases have been 
recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss for the year.

b. Lease Income:

The company has certain investment properties let out under lease/right-to-use agreements. The said 
agreements are in the nature of operating leases, which generates a material value in the form of lease rents.

As per Ind-AS-116 “Leases”, in case of operating leases, the company “lessor” is required to recognise the 
income generated from the lease on a systematic basis. The company recognises the lease income as and 
when the payments are due and received on the basis of the lease agreement. As on 31st March, 2022, the 
company has following investment properties:

(₹ in lakhs)

Particulars Amortized cost Fair Value

Flat at Dhawalgiri, Mumbai  228.45 

NOTE - 1

Office at Arun Chambers, Tardeo  1.46 
Office at Coimbatore  4.04 
Office at Marathon Futurex, Worli  1,250.63 
Flat at Lodha Aria, Sewri  368.48 
Plot of Land at Ahmednagar  11.00 

TOTAL  1,864.07  - 

Note – 1: As per Ind-AS-116 “Leases”, the company is required to disclose the fair value of its Investment 
Properties as on the Balance Sheet date. However, the company is unable to provide the fair value of its 
investment properties as on 31st March, 2022.

There is no financial impact of such non – compliance on the financial statements, as it is a mere disclosure 
is in the notes to accounts which is informative in nature.

Note No. 45 : Note on Revenue Recognition of the Solar Division

The Company owns and operates a Solar Power Plant at Pali District, Rajasthan. The existing Power Purchase 
Agreement (PPA) between the Company and Jodhpur Vidyut Vitran Nigam Ltd. (Jodhpur Discom) expired 
on 31/03/2019. Thereafter the company approached Jodhpur Discom for the renewal of the PPA, however the 
application of the Company was rejected by Jodhpur Discom. Jodhpur Discom has rejected the applications of all 
other similar solar power generating units in the said district.

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
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Despite of the non-renewal of the PPA, the Company generated 37,58,466 k/wh and 37,99,999 k/wh of power 
during the financial year 2019-20 and 2020-21 respectively and continued to recognize the revenue on the basis 
of the rate mentioned in the expired PPA i.e. ₹ 3.14 per kilowatt.

The Renewable Energy Association of Rajasthan (REAR) has filed writ petition with the Rajasthan High Court, 
Jaipur Bench on behalf of all the aggrieved power generation units operating their Solar Power Plant in the Pali 
District, Rajasthan and the matter is pending disposal.
During the F.Y. 2021-22 the Solar Unit of the Company has generated 36,85,815 k/wh which has been supplied 
to the grid.
Since the PPA is not renewed and it is uncertain at what rate per kilowatt will the Company receive the 
revenue, the conditions for recognising revenue as laid down in Ind AS 119 - “Revenue Recognition” are not 
fulfilled. Moreover, there exists an uncertainty regarding the recovery of the revenue already recognized during 
FY 2019-20 and 2020-21. In light of these facts the Company has decided not to recognize any revenue from the 
said power plant for the financial year 2021- 22.

Note No. 46 : Note on Windpower No. 4

In the case of Wind power 4, during the F.Y. 2016-17 an amount of ₹ 818.25 lakhs was paid as advance for 
purchase and installation capital asset to M/s. Regen Powertech Pvt. Ltd (RPPL). The Company received the 
Windmill in a Completely Knocked Down (CKD) condition, however RPPL was unable install the Windmill at 
the site. RPPL has filed for insolvency and has moved to the NCLT in this regard, hence RPPL will not be able to 
install the Windmill at a future date.

The Company has the possession of the Windmill in a CKD condition and has not capitalized the same in its 
books of accounts.

The Company is actively searching for prospective buyers in an attempt to dispose of the Windmill (CKD). On 
the basis of the management’s internal assessment, the Company can recover an approximate amount Rs. 300 
lakhs if the same is sold in the open market.

Hence during the FY 2021-22 the Company has written off an amount of Rs.266.75 lakhs as irrecoverable.

Note No. 47 : Transactions with Struck off companies:

The company has at anytime during the year not entered into any transactions with Companies struck off under 
section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956.

Note No. 48 : Note on charges or staisfaction yet to be registered:
The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction of which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the 
statutory period.

Note No. 49 : Note on amounts advanced or loaned or invested:

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including 
foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

a. Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
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b. Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Note No. 50 : Note on amounts received :

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding 
Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

a. Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b. Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Note No. 51 : Note on Investments in Virtual Digital Assets :

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency or any other Virtual Digital 
Assets as defined u/s. 2(47A) of the Income Tax Act, 1961, during the financial year.

Note No.52 : Re-classification of previous year figures:

Previous year’s figures have been reworked, regrouped, rearranged and reclassified wherever necessary. Amount 
and other disclosures for the preceding year are included as an integral part of the current year financial statements 
and are to be read in relation to the amounts and other disclosures relating to the current year.

Note No. 53 : Proposed Dividend:

The Board of Directors In its meetings has recommended a dividend payout @ 20 % (₹ 0.40/- per equity share) 
on Equity Shares having a face value of ₹ 2/- each for the financial year 2021-22, subject to the approval of the 
shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

As per our report attached of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Signature to Notes to Account from 1 to 53

Sd/- Sd/-
N. G. Thakrar & Co. Ujwal R. Lahoti Umesh R. Lahoti
Chartered Accountants Executive Chairman Managing Director
Firm Regn.No.: 110907W DIN No: 00360785 DIN No: 00361216
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Natwar G. Thakrar Pradeep Bacchuka Akshita Jhawar
(Partner) Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No.:- 036213

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Dated: 27/05/2022 Dated: 27/05/2022
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the  Act, as 
amended. Our responsibilities under those Standards 
are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” 
section of our report. We are independent of the Group 
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together 
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 
audit of the financial statements under the provisions of 
the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe 
that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on 
the Consolidated Financial Statement.

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our 
professional judgement, were of most significance in 
our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
for the financial year ended March 31st, 2022. These 
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of 
the Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole, and 
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide 
a separate opinion on these matters. 

INDEPENDEDNT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of
Lahoti Overseas Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated 
Financial Statements of Lahoti Overseas Limited. 
(hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) 
and its subsidiary (Holding Company and its subsidiary 
together referred to as “Group”), which comprise the 
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022 and 
the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including 
other comprehensive income), the Consolidated 
Statement of changes in Equity and Consolidated 
Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended and notes to 
Consolidated Financial Statement, including summary 
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information (hereinafter referred to as the “consolidated 
financial statement”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
Consolidated  financial statements, give the information 
required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in 
the manner so required and give a true and fair view 
in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards 
prescribed under Section 133  of the Act read with the 
Companies ( Indian Accounting Standards ) Rules, 2015, 
as amended (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of 
affairs of Group as at 31st March 2022, of its consolidated 
profit (including other comprehensive income), 
consolidated changes in equity and their consolidated 
cash flows for the year ended on that date.
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Responsibility of Management for the Consolidated 
Financial Statements

The Statement has been prepared on the basis of the 
annual Consolidated Financial Statements. The Holding 
Company’s management and Board of Directors are 
responsible for the preparation and presentation of 
these consolidated financial statements in terms of 
requirements of the Act that gives a true and fair view of 
the consolidated financial state of affairs, consolidated 
profit and other comprehensive income, consolidated 
changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the 
Group in accordance with the applicable accounting 
standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act. The 
respective Board of Directors of the entities included in 
the group are responsible for maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions 
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group 
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, 

Sr. 
No. The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

1 Revenue Recognition:

Solar Plant: The existing PPA between the 
Company and Jodhpur Vidyut Vitran Nigam Ltd. 
(Jodhpur Discom) for the Solar Power Plant at 
Pali District, Rajasthan expired on 31/03/2019. 
The company approached Jodhpur Discom for the 
renewal of the PPA, however the application of the 
Company was rejected.

During the F.Y. 2021-22 the Solar Unit of the 
Company has generated 36,85,815 k/wh which 
has been supplied to the grid. Since the PPA is 
not renewed and it is uncertain at what rate per 
kilowatt will the Company receive the revenue, the 
conditions for recognising revenue as laid down 
in Ind AS 115 - “Revenue Recognition” are not 
fulfilled. Hence the Company has decided not to 
recognize any revenue from the said power plant 
for the financial year 2021- 22.

Our audit procedures included:

a.	 Assessing the appropriateness of the revenue 
recognition accounting policies, including 
those relating to discounts, rebates and 
incentives by comparing with applicable 
accounting standards.

b.	 Evaluated the design and implementation of 
the processes and internal controls relating 
to implementation of the revenue accounting 
standard;

c.	 Performing substantive testing by selecting 
samples of revenue transactions recorded 
during the year by verifying the underlying 
documents, which included sales invoices/
contracts and shipping documents.

d.	 Evaluated the detailed analysis performed 
by management on revenue streams by 
selecting samples for the existing contracts 
with customers and considered revenue 
recognition policy in the current period in 
respect of those revenue streams;

Information Other than the Financial Statements and 
Auditors’ Report Thereon”

The Holding Company's management and Board of 
Directors are responsible for the other information. The 
other information comprises the information included 
in the Holding Company's Annual Report, but does 
not include the Consolidated Financial Statements 
and our auditor report thereon. Our opinion on the 
Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the 
other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our 
audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our 
responsibility is to read the other information and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based 
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there 
is a material misstatement of this other information; 
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to 
report in this regard.
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fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control.

(b)	 Obtain an understanding of internal control 
relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, 
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion 
on whether the Company has adequate internal 
financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 

(c)	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the 
Board of Directors.

(d)	 Conclude on the appropriateness of the 
management’s use of the going concern basis 
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that 
a material uncertainty exists, we are required 
to draw attention in our auditor‘s report to the 
related disclosures in the financial results or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Group (Holding Company and subsidiary) to cease 
to continue as a going concern.

(e)	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and 
content of the consolidated financial statement, 
including the disclosures, and whether the 
consolidated financial statements represents the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner 
that achieves fair presentation.

(f)	 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence 
regarding the financial information of the entities 
within the Holding Group to express an opinion 
on the interim condensed consolidated financial 
statements. We are responsible for the direction, 
supervision and performance of the audit of the 

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively 
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or errors, which 
have been used for the purpose of preparation of the 
consolidated financial statements by the directors of the 
Holding Company as aforesaid.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statement, 
management and Board of directors are responsible for 
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless the management either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for oversee-
ing the Company’s financial reporting.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Consolidated Financial Statement

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the consolidated financial statement as a 
whole is free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic decisions of 
users taken on the basis of the Statement.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skep-
ticism throughout the audit. We also:

(a)	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement 
of the consolidated financial statement, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
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consolidated financial statements, in so far as it 
relates to the amounts and disclosures included in 
respect of these subsidiary, and our report in terms 
of sub-sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the 
Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary, 
is based solely on the reports of the other auditor.

(b) Our opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements, and our report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified 
in respect of the above matters with respect to our 
reliance on the work done and the reports of the 
other auditor.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’ Report) 
Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) 
of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a statement on 
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the 
Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report 
that: 

a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information 
and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated 
financial statement

b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as 
required by law relating to preparation of the 
aforesaid consolidated financial statement have 
been kept by the Company so far as it appears 
from our examination of those books.

c)	 The consolidated Balance Sheet, the consolidated 
Statement of Profit and Loss (including other 
comprehensive income), the consolidated 
Statement of Changes in Equity and the 
consolidated Statement of Cash Flows dealt 
with by this Report are in agreement with the 
books of account maintained for the purpose 
of preparation of the consolidated financial 
statement.

d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated 
financial statements comply with the Ind AS 
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

financial statements of such entities included in 
the interim condensed consolidated financial 
statements of which we are independent auditor

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.  

We communicate with those charged with governance 
of the Holding Company and such other entities 
included in the consolidated financial statements of 
which we are independent auditors  regarding, among 
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during 
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with 
a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged 
with governance, we determine those matters that were 
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated 
financial statements of the current period and are 
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these 
matters in our auditor’ report unless law or regulation 
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, 
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that 
a matter should not be communicated in our report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 
benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

(a) We did not audit the financial statement of the 
subsidiary G Vardan Limited, whose financial 
results include total assets of Rs. 69.72 lakhs, total 
income of Rs.15.86 lakhs, total net profit after tax 
of Rs.12.12 Lakhs, total comprehensive income of 
Rs.12.12 lakhs and net cash outflows of Rs.1.85 
lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered 
in the consolidated financial statements. These 
financial statements have been audited/ reviewed 
by other auditor whose reports have been furnished 
to us by the Management and our opinion on the 
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have represented to us that, to the best of their 
knowledge and belief, no funds (which are 
material either individually or in the aggregate) 
have been advanced or loaned or invested 
(either from borrowed funds or share premium 
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the 
Company or any of such subsidiaries to or in any 
other person or entity, including foreign entity 
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that 
the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend 
or invest in other persons or entities identified 
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Company or any of such subsidiaries (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security 
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(b) The respective Managements of the Company 
and its subsidiaries which are companies 
incorporated in India, whose financial 
statements have been audited under the Act, 
have represented to us that, to the best of their 
knowledge and belief, no funds (which are 
material either individually or in the aggregate) 
have been received by the Company or any of 
such subsidiaries from any person or entity, 
including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with 
the understanding, whether recorded in writing 
or otherwise, that the Company or any of such 
subsidiaries shall, directly or indirectly, lend or 
invest in other persons or entities identified in 
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or 
provide any guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been 
considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances performed by us on the Company 
and its subsidiaries which are companies 
incorporated in India whose financial statements 
have been audited under the Act, nothing has 
come to our notice that has caused us to believe 
that the representations under sub-clause (i) and 
(ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) 
above, contain any material misstatement.

e)	 On the basis of the written representations 
received from the directors of the Holding 
Company and its subsidiary as on 31st March, 
2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors 
of respective Companies, none of the directors is 
disqualified as on 31st March, 2022 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) 
of the Act. 

f)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial 
statements of the Holding Company and its 
subsidiary company incorporated in India and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer 
to our separate Report in “Annexure A”

2.	 With respect to the matter to be included in the 
Auditor’s Report under section 197(16) of the Act 
In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid 
by the Holding Company to its directors during the 
current year is in accordance with the provisions of 
Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to 
any director is not in excess of the limit laid down 
under Section 197 of the Act.

3.	 With respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditor’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditor) Rules, 2014, in 
our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The consolidated financial statement disclose 
the impact of pending litigations as at 31st March, 
2022 on its financial position of the Group; 

ii. The Company and its subsidiary company 
incorporate in India did not have any long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts for which 
there were any material foreseeable losses; and 

iii. There has been no delay in transferring 
amounts, required to be transferred, to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the 
Company

iv. (a) The respective Managements of the 
Company and its subsidiaries which are 
companies incorporated in India, whose financial 
statements have been audited under the Act, 
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Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under 
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated 
financial statements of the Company as of and for the 
year ended 31st March, 2022, we have audited the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting of Lahoti 
Overseas Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiary 
companies which are companies incorporated in India, 
as of that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial 
Controls 

The Board of Directors of the Company and 
its subsidiary companies, which are companies 
incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing 
and maintaining internal financial controls based on 
the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the respective Companies considering 
the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI”). These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that 
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of 
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information, as required under the Act. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting of 
the Company and its subsidiary companies, which 
are companies incorporated in India, based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and 
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. 

v. The dividend declared or paid during the year 
by the Holding Company is in compliance with 
section 123 of the Act.

4.	 With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 
3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies      (Auditor’s Report) 
Order, 2020 (the “Order”/ “CARO”) issued by the 
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) 
of the Act, to be included in the Auditor’s report, 
according to the information and explanations 
given to us, and based on the CARO reports 
issued by us for the Company and its subsidiaries 
included in the consolidated financial statements of 
the Company, to which reporting under CARO is 
applicable, we report that there are no qualifications 
or adverse remarks in these CARO reports. 	
                                     	

For N. G. THAKRAR & CO
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 110907W
	                                 

     				    Sd/-
 NATWAR G. THAKRAR

(Partner)                             
 MEMBERSHIP NO.36213

UDIN : 22036213ANBOYH1318

Place: Mumbai   
Dated: 27/05/2022
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(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention 
or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, 
use, or disposition of the company’s assets that 
could have a material effect on the financial 
statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management 
override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over 
financial reporting may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance 
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the Company 
and its subsidiary companies, which are companies 
incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an 
internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements as at 31st March, 2022, based on the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established 
by the respective companies considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. 

N. G. THAKRAR & CO.
(Firm Regn. no. 110907W)
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-
NATWAR G. THAKRAR
(Partner)
Membership No.: 036213

UDIN - 22036213ANBOYH1318

Date: 27/05/2022
Place: Mumbai

Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls over financial 
reporting was established and maintained and if such 
controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain 
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and 
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that 
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating 
the design and operating effectiveness of internal 
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting of the Company and its subsidiary 
companies, which are companies incorporated in India.  

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting 

A company’s internal financial control over financial 
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting 
and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company’s internal financial 
control over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that: 

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 
company; 

(2)  provide reasonable assurance that transactions are 
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts 
and expenditures of the company are being 
made only in accordance with authorisation of 
management and directors of the company; and 
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Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022
 (₹ in lakhs) 

Sr. 
No. Particulars  Note No. As at 

31/03/2022 
As at 

31/03/2021
ASSETS

1 Non-current assets
(a) Plant, property and equipment 2  1,309.86  1,451.18 
(b) Capital Work-In-Progress 3  11.03  -   
(c) Investment property 4  1,864.11  1,963.70 
(d) Goodwill 6  42.60  42.60 
(e) Financial assets
    (i) Investments 5(a)  2,212.85  1,393.54 
    (ii) Trade receivables 7(a)  78.95  86.20 
    (iii) Other Financial Assets 9(a)  377.77  647.92 
(f) Non-Current tax asset (net) 10(a)  181.22  143.81 
(g) Deferred tax asset (net) 16  -    20.22 

 6,078.40  5,749.17 
2 Current assets

(a) Inventories 11  907.30  1,329.69 
(b) Financial assets
     (i) Investments 5(b)  4.07  3.04 
     (ii) Trade receivables 7(b)  12,526.27  10,007.15 
     (iii) Cash and cash equivalents 12  2,137.34  432.23 
    (iv) Loans and Advances 8  3.98  3.41 
    (v) Other Financial Assets 9(b)  1,630.97  1,789.81 
(c) Other Current assets 13  611.51  300.24 
(d) Current year Tax Assets 10(b)  885.97  332.26 

 18,707.41  14,197.83 
Total Assets  24,785.81  19,947.00 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 14  584.59  584.59 
(b) Other Equity 15  15,528.09  13,135.89 

 16,112.68  13,720.48 
Liabilities

1 Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
    (i) Long-term borrowings  -    -   
    (i) Trade payables 17(a)
-Total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises  -    -   
-Total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises  44.07  24.70 
(b) Other long-term liabilities 18  180.67  177.67 
(c) Long-term provisions 19  61.19  40.14 
(d) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)  297.18  -   

 583.11  242.51 
2 Current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities
    (i) Short-term borrowings 20  6,164.88  5,008.13 
    (ii) Trade payables 17(b)  -   
-Total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises  15.86  10.12 
-Total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises  359.49  573.93 
(b) Other current liabilities 21  516.62  62.51 
(c) Short-term provisions 22  49.16  32.41 
(d) Current Tax Liabilities 23  984.02  296.91 

 8,090.03  5,984.02 
Total Equity and Liabilities  24,785.81  19,947.00 

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements 1 to 54
As per our report attached of even date	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors	
								      
				    Sd/-	                        Sd/-
N. G. Thakrar & Co.			   Ujwal R. Lahoti	 Umesh R. Lahoti
Chartered Accountants			   Executive Chairman	 Managing Director
Firm Regn.No.: 110907W			  DIN No: 00360785	 DIN No: 00361216
								      
Sd/-				    Sd/-	                        Sd/-
Natwar G. Thakrar			   Pradeep Bacchuka	 Akshita Jhawar
(Partner)			                          Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary
Membership No.:- 036213				  
				  
Place: Mumbai			   Place: Mumbai	
Dated: 27/05/2022			   Dated: 27/05/2022	

Consolidated Financial Statements



 Annual Report 2021-22    111

LAHOTI OVERSEAS LIMITED
CIN : L74999MH1995PLC087643

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022
 (₹ in lakhs) 

Particulars  Note No. As at 
31/03/2022

As at 
31/03/2021

I Revenue from operations 24  89,197.43  47,008.02 
II Other income 25  786.14  489.50 
III Unrealized Gain/(Loss) (net)  98.41  259.03 

Total revenue  90,081.98  47,756.55 
III Expenses:

Purchases of stock-in-trade 26  77,865.49  43,703.02 
Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade 27  422.39  -1,045.06 
Employee benefits expense 28  328.20  263.39 
Finance costs 29  520.81  247.62 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2 and 4  319.04  308.59 
Other expenses 30  7,003.79  3,169.71 

Total expenses  86,459.73  46,647.27 

IV Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax  3,622.25  1,109.28 

V Profit Before tax  3,622.25  1,109.28 

VI Tax expense:
Current tax expense for current year  984.02  296.91 

 984.02  296.91 
Deferred tax  269.93  -10.17 

 1,253.95  286.74 

VII Profit for the year  2,368.30  822.54 

VIII Other Comprehensive Income
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 
   (a) Measurement of defined employee benefit plan  -10.57  -9.32 
   (b) Fair value changes relating to own credit risk  199.18  66.74 

 188.61  57.42 
(ii) Income Tax on items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  -47.47  -19.17 

IX Total  Income for the period, Net of Tax (VIII+IX)  2,509.44  860.79 

X Earnings Per Shares (for Continuing Operations)
(a) Basic  8.12  2.82 
(b) Diluted  8.12  2.82 

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements 1 to 54

As per our report attached of even date	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors	
								      
				    Sd/-	                        Sd/-
N. G. Thakrar & Co.			   Ujwal R. Lahoti	 Umesh R. Lahoti
Chartered Accountants			   Executive Chairman	 Managing Director
Firm Regn.No.: 110907W			  DIN No: 00360785	 DIN No: 00361216
								      
Sd/-				    Sd/-	                        Sd/-
Natwar G. Thakrar			   Pradeep Bacchuka	 Akshita Jhawar
(Partner)			                          Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary
Membership No.:- 036213				  
				  
Place: Mumbai			   Place: Mumbai	
Dated: 27/05/2022			   Dated: 27/05/2022	
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31,2022
(₹ in lakhs)

Particulars  For the Year Ended 
31/03/2022 

 For the Year Ended 
31/03/2021 

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit before Tax and prior period items  3,622.25  1,109.28 
Adjustements for:

Interest Paid  188.63  123.29 
Depreciation  319.04  308.59 
Profit on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment  -4.36  -1.67 
Profit on sale of Investments  -0.63  -1.27 
Rent Received  -210.47  -204.91 
Other Non-operating Income  -    -4.50 
Unrealised (Gain)/Loss  -98.41  -259.03 
Interest Received  -0.44  -3.03 
Dividend Received  -6.20  -3.37 

Net Profit from Operating Activities  3,809.41  1,063.38 

Movements in Working Capital
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories  422.39  -1,045.06 
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade & Other Receivable  -2,423.20  -358.51 
(Increase)/Decrease in Other current assets  -311.93  -7.26 
(Increase)/Decrease in Short term loans and advances  158.27  -591.90 
(Increase)/Decrease in Long Term Receiveables  563.56  -229.98 
Increase/(Decrease) Trade Payable, Current Liabilities  
& Provision  94.29  -350.71 

Increase/(Decrease) Other Long Term Liabilities & 
Long term provisions  13.48  -14.68 

Cash Generated from Operations  2,326.28  -1,534.72 
Taxes paid  -886.71  -331.52 

Net Cash Flow Before Extraordinary Items  1,439.56  -1,866.24 

Exceptional Items / Adjustments (Non-Operating 
Income)  -  - 

Cash Flow From Operating Activities After Extraordinary 
Items  1,439.56  -1,866.24 

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property Plant and Equipment  -80.76  -75.15 
Additions to Capital Work in Progress  -11.03  -   
Sale of Prpoerty Plant and Equipment  6.99  2.00 
Sale of Investments  1.10  23.43 

Consolidated Financial Statements
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Purchase of Investment  -722.40  -31.50 
Interest Received  0.44  3.03 
Dividend Received  6.20  3.37 
Rent Received  210.47  204.91 

Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities  -589.00  130.08 

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend Paid  -116.69  -   
Interest paid  -188.63  -123.29 
Increase/(Decrease) In Unsecured Loans  1,159.86  1,416.52 

Net Cash From Financing Activities  854.54  1,293.23 

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)  1,705.11  -442.92 

Cash and Cash Equivalents  (OPENING BALANCE)  432.23  875.15 

Cash and Cash Equivalents  (CLOSING BALANCE)  2,137.34  432.23 

 1,705.11  -442.92 
Notes:
			 
1	 The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in the Ind AS 7 

on Cash Flow Statement.	
2	 Cash and cash equivalent at  the  end  of  year  represents  cash  and  bank  balances.	
3	 Previous year’s figures have been rearranged/regrouped, wherever necessary.	
		
This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.			 

As per our report attached of even date  	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors	
								      

				                      Sd/-                                             Sd/-
N. G. Thakrar & Co.			   Ujwal R. Lahoti                    	 Umesh R. Lahoti
Chartered Accountants			   Executive Chairman	 Managing Director
Firm Regn.No.: 110907W			   DIN No: 00360785	                   DIN No: 00361216
								      
Sd/-				                      Sd/-                                             Sd/-
Natwar G. Thakrar			                    Pradeep Bacchuka	                  Akshita Jhawar
(Partner)			                                      Chief Financial Officer            Company Secretary
Membership No.:- 036213				     
				  
Place: Mumbai		                            	 Place: Mumbai	
Dated: 27/05/2022		                           	 Dated: 27/05/2022
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1.	 Critical accounting estimates and judgments:

The preparation of these financial statements in 
conformity with the recognition and measurement 
principles of Ind AS requires management to make 
judgments, estimates and assumptions, that affect 
the reported balances of assets and liabilities, 
disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as at the 
date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of income and expenses for the years 
presented. Actual results may differ from these 
estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions 
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognized in the period 
in which the estimates are revised and in any future 
periods affected. In particular, information about 
significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and 
critical judgments in applying accounting policies 
that have the most significant effect on the amounts 
recognized in the financial statements pertain to:

a)	 Useful lives of property, plant and equipment 
and intangible assets: 

The Company has estimated useful life of each 
class of assets based on the nature of assets, 
the estimated usage of the asset, the operating 
condition of the asset, past history of replacement, 
anticipated technological changes, etc. The 
Company reviews the useful life of property, plant 
and equipment and Intangible assets as at the end 
of each reporting period. This reassessment may 
result in change in depreciation expense in future 
periods. 

b)	 Impairment testing: 

Property, plant and equipment and Intangible 
assets that are subject to amortization/
depreciation are tested for impairment when 
events occur or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the recoverable amount of the cash 
generating unit is less than its carrying value. The 
recoverable amount of cash generating units is 
higher of value-in-use and fair value less cost to 
sell. The calculation involves use of significant 
estimates and assumptions which includes 
turnover and earnings multiples, growth rates 
and net margins used to calculate projected 
future cash flows, risk-adjusted discount rate, 
future economic and market conditions.

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements

A.	 PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The Consolidated Financial Statements (CFS) 
is prepared in accordance with IND AS110 
“Consolidated Financial Statements” as specified in the 
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006. The 
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary 
companies are combined on a line-by-line basis by 
adding together the book values of like items of assets, 
liabilities, incomes and expenses, after fully eliminating 
intra-group balances and intra-group transactions 
in accordance with IND AS 110 – “Consolidated 
Financial Statements”. The CFS comprises the financial 
statements of Lahoti Overseas Limited (LOL) and its 
subsidiaries. 

The notes and significant policies to the CFS are 
intended to serve as a guide for better understanding 
of the Group’s position. In this respect, the company 
has disclosed such notes and policies which represent 
the required disclosure. 

B.	 GOODWILL ON CONSOLIDATION

The difference between the costs of investment in 
the subsidiaries, over the net assets at the time of 
acquisition of shares in the subsidiaries is recognized 
in the financial statements as Goodwill or Capital 
Reserve as the case may be.

Goodwill is deemed to have an indefinite useful life 
and is reported at acquisition value with deduction for 
accumulated impairments.

1.	 Significant Accounting Policies

I.	 Basis of Preparation

a)	 The financial statements have been prepared in 
compliance with Indian Accounting Standards 
(Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and 
other relevant provisions of the Act.

b)	 The financial statements have been prepared on 
the historical cost basis except for the following 
assets and liabilities which have been measured at 
fair value financial instruments measured at fair 
value through profit and loss.
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IV.	 Property, Plant and Equipment:

Items of property, plant and equipment are stated in 
balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation 
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

When parts of an item of property, plant and 
equipment have different useful lives, they are 
accounted for as separate items (major components) 
of property, plant and equipment. 

An item of property, plant and equipment is de-
recognised upon disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected to arise from 
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss 
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of 
property, plant and equipment is determined as 
the difference between the sales proceeds and the 
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment 
and is recognised in profit or loss.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the 
cost of assets (other than freehold land and Capital 
work-in-progress) less their residual values on 
written down value method over their useful lives 
as indicated in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 
2013. Depreciation methods, useful lives and 
residual values are reviewed at the end of each 
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in 
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Asset Category	 No. of Years

Buildings 60
Plant and machinery –
Wind Power Generation
Solar Power Generation
Computers and Computer 
Peripherals

22
22
3

Furniture and fixtures 10

Office Equipment 5

Vehicles 6

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected 
to continue with the carrying value of all of its 
property, plant and equipment (‘PPE’) recognized 
as of April 01, 2014 i.e. transition date, measured as 
per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value 
as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

c)	 Fair value measurement of derivative and other 
financial instruments: 

The fair value of financial instruments that are not 
traded in an active market is determined by using 
valuation techniques. This involves significant 
judgments in selection of a method in making 
assumptions that are mainly based on market 
conditions existing at the Balance Sheet date 
and in identifying the most appropriate estimate 
of fair value when a wide range of fair value 
measurements are possible.

d)	 Litigation: 

From time-to-time, the Company is subject to legal 
proceedings the ultimate outcome of each being 
always subject to many uncertainties inherent 
in litigation. A provision for litigation is made 
when it is considered probable that a payment 
will be made and the amount of the loss can be 
reasonably estimated. Significant judgment is 
made when evaluating, among other factors, the 
probability of unfavorable outcome and the ability 
to make a reasonable estimate of the amount of 
potential loss. Litigation provisions are reviewed 
at each accounting period and revisions made for 
the changes in facts and circumstances.

e)	 Defined benefit plans: 

The cost of the defined benefit plans and the 
present value of the defined benefit obligation are 
based on actuarial valuation using the projected 
unit credit method. An actuarial valuation 
involves making various assumptions that may 
differ from actual developments in the future. 
These include the determination of the discount 
rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. 
Due to the complexities involved in the valuation 
and its long term nature, a defined benefit 
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these 
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at 
each Balance Sheet date.

II.	 Borrowing Costs: 
Borrowing costs are recognized in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss in the year in which they are 
incurred.

III.	 Inventories:
Finished Goods: At lower of cost and net realizable 
value.

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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VI.	 Revenue recognition:

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is 
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the 
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured 
and there exists reasonable certainty of its recovery. 
Revenue is measured based on the consideration 
specified in the contract with a customers. Revenue 
from contracts with customers is recognised when 
services are provided and it is highly probable that 
a significant reversal of revenue is not expected to 
occur. If the consideration promised in a contract 
includes a variable amount, the company estimates 
the amount of consideration to which it will be 
entitled in exchange for rendering the promised 
services to a customer. The amount of consideration 
can vary because of discounts, rebates, refunds, 
credits, price concessions, incentives, performance 
bonuses, or other similar items. The promised 
consideration can also vary if an entitlement to the 
consideration is contingent on the occurrence or 
non-occurrence of a future event.

Income from operations:

The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 – Revenue 
from Contract with Customers with effect from 1st 
April, 2018.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the 
consideration received or receivable. Revenue from 
export sale of goods is recognized; on the date of 
Bill of Lading/Airway Bill and significant risks 
and rewards in respect of ownership of products 
are transferred by the Company after the Bill of 
Lading/Airway Bill is accepted by the buyer against 
the payment of consideration or bank acceptance 
for making the payment within specified period 
of credit, the entity retains neither continuing 
managerial involvement to the degree usually 
associated with ownership nor effective control 
over the goods sold and no significant uncertainty 
exist regarding the amount of consideration that 
will be derived from the sale of goods as well as 
regarding its ultimate collection. 

Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of variable 
consideration on account of various Discounts, 
Rebates, incentives offered by the Company as a 
part of the contract.

V.	 Income Taxes:

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred 
tax. It is recognized in profit and loss except to the 
extent that it relates to items recognized directly in 
equity or in OCI.

a)	 Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or 
receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year 
and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable 
in respect of previous years. It is measured using 
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the 
reporting date. Management periodically evaluates 
positions taken in tax returns with respect to 
situations in which applicable tax regulation is 
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions 
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected 
to be paid to the tax authorities. Current tax assets 
and liabilities are offset only if:

i.	 there is a legally enforceable right to set off 
current tax assets against current tax liabilities 
and when they relate to income taxes levied by 
the same taxation authority; and

ii.	 There is intention either to settle on a net basis, 
or to realize the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously.

a.	 Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent 
that it is regarded as probable that deductible 
temporary differences can be realized. The 
Company estimates deferred tax assets and 
liabilities based on current tax laws and rates 
and in certain cases, business plans, including 
management’s expectations regarding the 
manner and timing of recovery of the related 
assets. Changes in these estimates may affect the 
amount of deferred tax liabilities or the valuation 
of deferred tax assets and thereby the tax charge 
in the Statement of Profit or Loss. Provision 
for tax liabilities require judgments on the 
interpretation of tax legislation, developments in 
case law and the potential outcomes of tax audits 
and appeals which may be subject to significant 
uncertainty. Therefore the actual results may vary 
from expectations resulting in adjustments to 
provisions, the valuation of deferred tax assets, 
cash tax settlements and therefore the tax charge 
in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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basis to the extent considered receivable.

i)	 RODTEP:

Revenue on sale of RODTEP licenses are 
recognized as and when the company identifies a 
buyer of these licenses in the open market and is 
able to sell them.

VII.	 Financial instruments:

A financial instrument is any contract that gives 
rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

a.	 Financial assets:

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair 
value, in the case of financial assets not recorded 
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction 
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of 
the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial 
assets that require delivery of assets within a time 
frame established by regulation or convention 
in the market place (regular way trades) are 
recognised on the trade date.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, finan-
cial assets are classified in four categories:

•	 Debt instruments at amortized cost

•	 Debt instruments at fair value through other 
comprehensive income

•	 Debt instruments and equity instruments at fair 
value through profit or loss

•	 Equity instruments measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive income

•	 Other Investments (government bonds)

Debt instruments at amortized cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised 
cost if both the following conditions are met;

The asset is held within a business model 
whose objective is to hold assets for collecting 
contractual cash flows, and

Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified 
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 

a.	 Export Sales:

The company accounts for its Export Sales, 
consistently on the basis of date of Bill of Lading 
/ Airway Bill. This applies to all export sales made 
on Cost Insurance and Freight (CIF), Free on 
Board (FOB), Cost & Freight (C & F), and Cash 
against Delivery of Documents (CADD) basis.

b.	 Local Sales:

The company accounts for its local sales at the fair 
value of the consideration received or receivable. 

c.	 Income from Sale of Power Generation:

Income from sale of power is recognized on 
the basis of the meter reading taken as per the 
Electric Board Authorities (EBA) based on the 
Power Purchase Agreements (PPA).

d.	 Interest income:

Interest income from a financial asset is 
recognised when it is probable that the economic 
benefits will flow to the Company and the 
amount of income can be measured reliably. 
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by 
reference to the principal amount outstanding 
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which 
is the rate that discounts estimated future cash 
receipts through the expected life of the financial 
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial 
recognition.

e.	 Dividend:

Dividend income from investment is recognised 
when the right to receive payment has been 
established,

Provided that it is probable that the economic 
benefits will flow to the Company and the amount 
of income can be measured reliably.

f.	 Rental Income/Lease Income:

Rent/Lease Income is recognized as and when 
they accrue on the basis of Rent/Lease Agreement 
entered into by the company and the leasee.  

g.	 Export Incentives:

i)	 Duty Drawback:

Export benefits under duty entitlement passbook 
and duty drawback are accounted on accrual 

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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classified as at fair value through profit or loss.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate 
a debt instrument, which otherwise meets 
amortized cost or fair value through other 
comprehensive income criteria, as at fair value 
through profit or loss. However, such election 
is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates 
a measurement or recognition inconsistency 
(referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). 

Equity instruments

All equity instruments in scope of Ind AS 109 
are measured at fair value. Equity instruments 
which are held for trading are classified as at 
fair value through profit or loss. For all other 
equity instruments, the Company may make 
an irrevocable election to present subsequent 
changes in the fair value in other comprehensive 
income. The Company makes such election 
on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The 
classification is made on initial recognition and 
is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity 
instrument as at fair value through other 
comprehensive income, then all fair value 
changes on the instrument, including foreign 
exchange gain or loss and excluding dividends, 
are recognised in the other comprehensive 
income. There is no recycling of the amounts 
from OCI to profit or loss, even on sale of 
investment. However, the Company may transfer 
the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the fair value 
through profit or loss category are measured at 
fair value with all changes recognized in the profit 
or loss.

b.	 Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the 
Company are classified as either financial 
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the 
substance of the contractual arrangements and 
the definitions of a financial liability and an 
equity instrument.

Equity Instruments

principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding

After initial measurement, such financial 
assets are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest rate method. 
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into 
account any discount or premium on acquisition 
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the 
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate 
amortization is included in Other Income in the 
profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment 
are recognised in the profit or loss.

Debt instrument at fair value through other 
comprehensive income 

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured as at fair value 
through other comprehensive income if both of 
the following criteria are met:

a)	 The objective of the business model is achieved 
both by collecting contractual cash flows and 
selling the financial assets, and

b)	 The contractual terms of the instrument give 
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments included within the fair value 
through other comprehensive income category 
are measured initially as well as at each report-
ing date at fair value. Fair value movements are 
recognized in the other comprehensive income. 
However, the Company recognizes interest in-
come, impairment losses & reversals and for-
eign exchange gain or loss in the profit or loss. 
On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain 
or loss previously recognised in other compre-
hensive income is reclassified from the equity to 
profit or loss. Interest earned whilst holding fair 
value through other comprehensive income debt 
instrument is reported as interest income using 
the EIR method.

Debt instrument at fair value through profit or 
loss

Fair value through profit or loss is a residual 
category for debt instruments. Any debt 
instrument, which does not meet the criteria 
for categorization as at amortized cost or as fair 
value through other comprehensive income, is 

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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De recognition of financial instruments
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when 
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 
financial asset expire or it transfers the financial 
asset and the transfer qualifies for de recognition 
under Ind AS 109. A financial liability (or a part 
of a financial liability) is derecognized from the 
Company’s Balance Sheet when the obligation 
specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled 
or expires.

VIII.	 Cash and cash equivalents:
For the purpose of presentation in the statement 
of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes 
cash on hand and balance with Bank.

IX.	 Earnings per Share:
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing 
the net profit after tax by the weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding during the 
period. Diluted earnings per share is computed 
by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted 
average number of equity shares as above and also 
the weighted average number of equity shares 
upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity 
shares.

X.	 Cash Flow Statements: 
Cash flows are reported using the indirect 
method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted 
for the effects of transactions of a non-cash 
nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future 
operating cash receipts or payments and item 
of income or expenses associated with investing 
or financing cash flows. The cash flow from 
operating, investing and financing activities of 
Company is segregated.

XI.	 Employees benefits:  
i.	 Short term employee benefits are recognized as 

an expense at the undiscounted amount in the 
Profit and loss account of the year in which the 
related service is rendered.  These benefits include 
compensated absences such as paid annual leave 
and performance incentives. 

ii.	 Post-employment and other long term employee 
benefits are recognized as an expense in the 
Profit and Loss account for the year in which the 
employee has rendered services.  The expense is 
recognized at the present value of the amount 

An equity instrument is any contract that 
evidences a residual interest in the assets of 
an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. 
Equity instruments issued by the Company are 
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct 
issue costs.

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at 
fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings 
and payables, net of directly attributable 
transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured 
at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method or at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss 

Financial liabilities are classified as at fair value 
through profit or loss when the financial liability 
is either contingent consideration recognised 
by the Company as an acquirer in a business 
combination to which Ind AS 103 applies or is 
held for trading or is designated upon initial 
recognition as at fair value through profit or 
loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held 
for trading if they are incurred principally for 
the purpose of repurchasing in the near term or 
on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of 
identified financial instruments that the Company 
manages together and has a recent actual pattern 
of short-term profit-taking. 

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at 
amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading 
and are not designated as at fair value through 
profit or loss are measured at amortised cost at 
the end of subsequent accounting periods. The 
carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost are 
determined based on the effective interest rate 
method. Interest expense that is not capitalized as 
part of costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance 
costs' line item in profit or loss.

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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i.	 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the 
Company if a customer or counterparty to a 
financial instrument fails to meet its contractual 
obligations, and arises principally from the 
Company’s receivables from customers and 
investments in debt securities, cash and cash 
equivalents, mutual funds, bonds etc.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents 
the maximum credit exposure.

Cash and cash equivalents

Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by 
the Company’s treasury department in accordance 
with the company’s policy. Investment of surplus 
funds are made in mainly in mutual funds & fixed 
deposits with good returns and within approved 
credit ratings.

ii.	 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will 
not be able to meet its financial obligations as they 
become due. The Company manages its liquidity 
risk by ensuring, as far as possible, that it will always 
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when 
due, under both normal and stressed conditions, 
without incurring unacceptable losses or risk to the 
Company’s reputation.

iii.	 Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, 
fair values or future cash flows that may result from 
adverse changes in market rates and prices (such 
as interest rates) or in the price of market risk-
sensitive instruments as a result of such adverse 
changes in market rates and prices. Market risk is 
attributable to all market risk-sensitive financial 
instruments and all short term and long-term debt. 
The Company is exposed to market risk primarily 
related interest rate risk and the market value of its 
investments.

XIV.	Recent Accounting pronouncements:

Standards issued but not yet effective;

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new 
standard or amendments to the existing standards. 
There are no such notifications which would have 
been applicable from April 1, 2021.

payable determined using actuarial valuation 
techniques. Actuarial gains and losses are 
recognized in full in Profit and Loss account for 
the period in which they occur.
Liability towards Gratuity is being discharged 
regularly in accordance with the terms of 
employment with the employees.

iii.	 Provident Fund scheme: The Company makes 
specified monthly contributions towards 
Employee Provident Fund to Employees' 
Provident Fund Organization. Interest is credited 
to respective employees on regular basis as per the 
interest rate notified by government on time to 
time by Employee Provident Fund to Employees' 
Provident Fund Organization.

XII.	 Impairment of Assets:

An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying 
cost of the asset exceeds its recoverable value.  
An impairment loss is charged to the Statement 
of Profit and Loss in the year in which an asset 
is identified as impaired. The impairment loss 
recognized in a prior accounting period is 
reversed if there has been a change in the estimate 
of the recoverable amount.

XIII.	Financial risk management:

The Company has exposure to the following risks 
arising from financial instruments:

•	 Credit risk ;
•	 Liquidity risk ; and
•	 Market risk

Risk management framework

The Company’s board of directors has overall 
responsibility for the establishment and oversight 
of the Company’s risk management framework. 
The board of directors is responsible for developing 
and monitoring the Company’s risk management 
policies.

Risk management policies and systems are reviewed 
regularly to reflect changes in market conditions 
and Company’s activities. The Company, through 
its training and management standards and 
procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and 
constructive control environment in which all 
employees understand their roles and obligations.

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Note 5(a) : Non-current Investments
 (₹ in lakhs)

Particulars As at 31 March, 2022 As at 31 March, 2021
Face 

Value
No of 
Units Cost Fair 

Value
Face 

Value No of Units Cost Fair 
Value

A Investment in Equity Instruments

Quoted
Emami Limited  1.00  7,200.00  0.84  32.24  1  7,200  0.84  35.11 
Emami Realty Limited  2.00  733.00  0.01  0.44  2  733  0.01  0.29 
Jet Airways Limited  10.00  356.00  1.95  0.29  10  356  1.95  0.33 
TCS Limited  1.00  2,296.00  2.44  85.84  1  2,296  2.44  72.96 
Punjab National Bank  10.00  19,715.00  4.61  6.91  10  19,715  4.61  7.23 
Union Bank Limited  10.00  2,900.00  0.46  1.12  10  2,900  0.46  0.99 
L.G.Balkrishna Limited  10.00  400.00  0.02  2.15  10  400  0.02  1.22 
Bank of India  10.00  900.00  0.41  0.41  10  900  0.41  0.61 
Cadila Health Care Limited  5.00  7,500.00  1.24  26.15  5  7,500  1.24  33.06 
FCS Software Limited  1.00  14,820.00  0.37  0.58  1  14,820  0.37  0.10 
GSPL Limited  10.00  2,253.00  0.61  5.85  10  2,253  0.61  6.16 
Reliance Industries Limited  10.00  692.00  1.67  18.23  10  692  1.67  13.86 
LGB Forge Limited  1.00  1,000.00  0.02  0.11  1  1,000  0.02  0.04 
Zydus Wellness Limited  10.00  320.00  0.01  4.80  10  320  0.01  6.31 

Total  -    -    14.65  185.13  -    -    14.65  178.27 
B Investment in Mutual Funds

Aditya Birla Sun Life Medium Term 
Plan - Growth - Regular Plan  0.00  8,27,289.52  150.00  218.52  8.27  20.41  150.00  199.65 

HDFC Corporate Debt Opportunities 
Fund  0.00  53,10,015.63  815.00  1,033.79  71.63  13.56  622.27  966.84 

ICICI Prudential Credit Risk Fund - 
Growth  0.00  19,96,027.71  500.00  502.50  -    -    -    -   

HDFC Credit Risk Debt Fund - 
Growth Option  0.00  10,89,400.13  210.00  212.09  -    -    -    -   
Icici Prudential Balance Advantage 
Fund - Icw  -    96,089.29  47.51  47.61  -    2,32,791.53  35.55  38.55 

Nippon India Balanced Fund -Growth Plan  -    10,789.98  12.02  13.01  -    9,162.31  10.00  10.02 
Total  1,734.53  2,027.52  817.82  1,215.07 

C Investment in Governement Securities
National Saving Certificate  -  -  0.20  0.20  -  -  0.20  0.20 

Total  -  -  0.20  0.20  -  -  0.20  0.20 
Total (A+B)  -  -  1,737.45  2,199.83  -  -  834.72  1,392.57 

Note 5(b) : Current Investments

Particulars
As at 31 March, 2022 As at 31 March, 2021

Face Value No of Units Cost Fair Value Face Value No of Units Cost Fair Value

Investment in Mutual Funds

Nippon India Arbitrage Fund 
- Growth  -  18,814.12  4.01  4.07  -  63,626.36  11.75  3.04 

Total  -  18,814.12  4.01  4.07  -  63,626.36  11.75  3.04 

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Note 
No. Particulars  As at 

31/03/2022 
 As at 

31/03/2021 
6 Goodwill

Cost of Investment in Subsidiary
G. Varadan Limited (5000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each)  47.60  47.60 
Less: Equity Share Capital  -5.00  -5.00 

 42.60  42.60 
7 Trade receivables

(Refer Note No. 37)
(a) Non-Current

Trade Receiveables (Considered Good)
i. Secured  -    -   
ii. Unsecured

- From Related Parties  -    -   
- From Others  78.95  86.20 

iii. Trade Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk  -    -   
iv. Trade Receivables – Credit Impaired  -    -   

Sub-Total (a)  78.95  86.20 
(b) Current

i. Secured  -    -   
ii.  Unsecured

- From Related Parties  -    -   
- From Others  12,526.27  10,007.15 

iii. Trade Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk  -    -   
iv. Trade Receivables – Credit Impaired  -    -   

Sub-Total (b)  12,526.27  10,007.15 
Total  12,605.22  10,093.35 

8 Loans and Advances
(a) Current

Loans and advances to employees 
Unsecured, considered good  3.98  3.41 

Total  3.98  3.41 
9 Other Financial Assets

(a) Non - Current
i. Security deposits 

Unsecured, considered good  53.93  57.33 
ii. Advance to Suppliers  23.84  23.84 
iii. Advance for Capital Expenditures  300.00  566.75 
iv. Other Advances  -  - 

Sub-Total (a)  377.77  647.92 
(b) Current
i. Balances with government authorities 

-  Indirect Tax authorities
Goods and Service Tax (Net)  298.45  488.09 
Value Added Tax  0.47  0.47 

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Note 
No. Particulars  As at 

31/03/2022 
 As at 

31/03/2021 
ii. Advance against expenses (Unsecured, considered good)  12.85  19.24 
iii. Advance to Suppliers for goods

Unsecured, considered good - Current  1,343.20  1,305.95 
Less : Provision for Doubtful Debts  -24.00  -24.00 
Net Balances  1,319.20  1,281.95 

iv. Inter-divison Balances  0.00  0.05 
Sub-Total (b)  1,630.97  1,789.81 

Total (a+b)  2,008.75  2,437.72 

10 Tax Assets/(Liabilities) (Net)
(a) Non-Current

Balances with Direct Tax Authorities  181.22  143.81 
(Net of Provision for Tax)

Sub-Total (a)  181.22  143.81 
(b) Current

Advance Tax/TDS/TCS Receivable  885.97  332.26 
(A.Y. 2022-23)

Sub-Total (b)  885.97  332.26 

Total (a+b)  1,067.19  476.08 
11 Inventories

(a) Stock-in-Transit  745.01  1,329.69 
(a) Work-in-Progress  162.28  -   

Total  907.30  1,329.69 

12 Cash and cash equivalents
(a) Cash on hand  14.07  14.17 

Sub-Total (a)  14.07  14.17 
(b) Balances with banks

- In current accounts  2,066.53  417.42 
- In earmarked accounts  56.74  0.64 

Sub-Total (b)  2,123.27  418.06 

Total  2,137.34  432.23 

13 Other current assets
i. Export Incentive Receivable  421.08  114.21 
ii. Prepaid Expenses  10.69  4.28 
iii. Foreign Currency Receivable  -    -   
iv. Others  179.74  181.74 

Total  611.51  300.24 

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements



 Annual Report 2021-22    127

LAHOTI OVERSEAS LIMITED
CIN : L74999MH1995PLC087643

Note No. 14 : Share capital

Particulars  As at 31 March, 2022  As at 31 March, 2021 
 No. of shares (₹ in lakhs)  No. of shares (₹ in lakhs)

(a) Authorised
Equity shares of ` 2 each with voting rights  30,000,000  600.00  30,000,000  600.00 

(b) Issued
Equity shares of ` 2 each with voting rights  29,171,500  583.43  29,171,500  583.43 

(c) Subscribed and fully paid up
Equity shares of ` 2 each with voting rights  29,171,500  583.43  29,171,500  583.43 

(d) Share Forfeiture Account  211,000  1.16  211,000  1.16 

Notes:-
(i) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the 
reporting year

Particulars  As at 31 March, 2022  As at 31 March, 2021 
 No. of shares (₹ in lakhs)  No. of shares (₹ in lakhs)

Equity shares with voting rights
Opening Balance  29,171,500  584.59  29,171,500  584.59 

Closing Balance  29,171,500  585  29,171,500  585 

(ii) Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:
Class of shares / Name of shareholder  As at 31 March, 2022  As at 31 March, 2021 

No. of Shares 
held

 % holding 
in that class 

of shares  

No. of Shares 
held

 % holding in that 
class of shares  

Equity shares with voting rights

Ujwal R Lahoti  5,345,000  18.32  5,345,000  18.32 
Umesh R Lahoti  4,484,000  15.37  4,484,000  15.37 
Jayashri U Lahoti  2,375,500  8.14  2,375,500  8.14 
Manjushri Umesh Lahoti  1,934,500  6.63  1,934,500  6.63 
Kirti Stock Brokers LLP  1,610,000  5.52  1,610,000  5.52 
Billion Way Garment Limited  4,240,800  14.54  4,240,800  14.54 

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(iii) Details of Shares held by Promoters of the Company

Shares held by the promoters as at 31/03/2022
% of Change 

during the yearPromoter Name No. of Shares 
held

% of Total 
Shares

Ujwal R Lahoti  5,345,000 18.32%  - 
Umesh R Lahoti  4,484,000 15.37%  - 
Jayashree U Lahoti  2,375,500 8.14%  - 
Manjushri Umesh Lahoti  1,934,500 6.63%  - 
Kirti Stockbrokers LLP  1,610,000 5.52%  - 
Hind Commerce Limited  707,500 2.43%  - 
Aadhitiya Ujwal Lahoti  340,500 1.17%  - 
Shashwat Umesh Lahoti  208,500 0.71%  - 
Ujwal R Lahoti HUF  188,500 0.65%  - 
Saurabh Umesh Lahoti  140,425 0.48%  - 
Amrithaa Sagar Makhija  65,000 0.22%  - 
R K Lahoti HUF  47,000 0.16%  - 

Total  17,446,425 60%  - 

Shares held by the promoters as at 31/03/2022 % of Change 
during the 

yearPromoter Name No of Shares 
held

% of Total 
Shares

Ujwal R Lahoti  5,345,000 18.32%  - 
Umesh R Lahoti  4,484,000 15.37%  - 
Jayashree U Lahoti  2,375,500 8.14%  - 
Manjushri Umesh Lahoti  1,934,500 6.63%  - 
Kirti Stockbrokers LLP  1,610,000 5.52%  - 
Hind Commerce Limited  707,500 2.43%  - 
Aadhitiya Ujwal Lahoti  340,500 1.17%  - 
Shashwat Umesh Lahoti  208,500 0.71%  - 
Ujwal R Lahoti HUF  188,500 0.65%  - 
Saurabh Umesh Lahoti  140,425 0.48%  - 
Amrithaa Sagar Makhija  65,000 0.22%  - 
R K Lahoti HUF  47,000 0.16%  - 
Total  17,446,425 60%  - 

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Note 
No. Particulars  As at 

31/03/2022 
 As at 

31/03/2021 
15 Other Equity

(a) Securities premium account
Opening balance  914.53  914.53 
Closing balance                                                                       914.53  914.53 

(b) General reserve
Opening balance  905.13  905.13 
Closing balance                                                                        905.13  905.13 

(c)  Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss 
Opening balance 11,316.24  10,471.09 
Add:

Profit for the year  2,509.44  860.79 
Earlier Year Depreciation written back  -    -   
Excess Provision for Income Tax  -    -   
Excess Provision for Gratuity  -    -   
Fair value adjustment in opening balance of Investment  -    -   
Adjustment in opening balance of  Investment Property"  -    -   
Fair value adjustment in opening balance of Equity Investment  -    -   
Other Comprehensive Income Opening Balance  -    -   
Deferred Tax  -    -   

Less:
Interim Dividend paid during the year  -    -   
Dividend Paid  -116.69  -   
Tax on dividend (Including short fall of earlier years)  -    -   
Proposed Dividend  -    -   
Prior Period Adjustment  -    -   
Transferred to General reserve  -    -   
Fixed Assets written off  -    -   
Gratuity Adjustment  -    -   
MAT credit Recognized  -    -   
Mat credit utilized  -    -   
Short Provision for Income Tax  -0.56  -15.64 
Provision for FBT written off  -    -   

Closing balance                                                                        13,708.44  11,316.24 
Total  15,528.09  13,135.89 

16 Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities)
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liability
Opening Balance  20.22  29.22 
On difference between book balance and tax balance of Property, Plant 
and Equipments  -272.50  7.89 
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets/liabilities  2.57  2.28 
Tax difference on Other Comprehensive Income  -47.47  -19.17 

 Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability)  -297.18  20.22 

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Note 
No. Particulars  As at 

31/03/2022 
 As at 

31/03/2021 
17 Trade Payables

(Refer Note No. 38)
(a) Non-Current
i. Outstanding dues to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises

-For Goods  -  - 
-For Expenses and Services  -  - 

ii.
Outstanding dues to other than Micro Enterprises and Small 
Enterprises
(a) to related parties
(b) to others

- For Goods  2.38  2.38 
- For Expenses and Services  41.68  22.32 

Sub-Total (a)  44.07  24.70 

 (b) Current
i. Outstanding dues to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises

-For Goods  0.45  -   
-For Expenses and Services  15.41  10.12 

Sub-total (i)  15.86  10.12 

ii. Outstanding dues to other than Micro Enterprises and Small 
Enterprises
(a) to related parties  -  - 
(b) to others

- For Goods  27.81  -0.00 
- For Expenses and Services  331.69  573.93 

Sub-total (ii)  359.49  573.93 
Sub-Total (b) (i+ii)  375.35  584.05 

Total (a+b)  419.42  608.75 

18 Other long-term liabilities 

Others: 
(i) Payables on purchase of fixed assets
     Security deposits received  165.67  162.67 
(ii) Advance from Customers  15.00  15.00 

Total  180.67  177.67 

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Note 
No. Particulars  As at 

31/03/2022 
 As at 

31/03/2021 
19 Long-term Provisions 

Provision for employee benefits: 
(a) Provision for gratuity  61.19  40.14 

Total  61.19  40.14 

20 Short-term borrowings 

(i) From Banks - Secured [Note(i)]  5,766.91  4,603.01 
(ii) From Related Parties - Unsecured  82.97  1.23 
(ii) From Others - Unsecured  315.00  403.89 

Total  6,164.88  5,008.13 

(i) Break-up of secured short-term borrowings:
(a) P.C.F.C. :-
State Bank Of India  -    -   
DBS Bank Ltd.  -    1,087.96 
YES Bank Ltd.  -    614.48 
HDFC Bank Ltd.  227.25  326.35 

(b) Pre Shipment :-
Packing Credit From Shinhan Bank Co. Ltd.  -  555.74 

(c) Post Shipment From:-  - 
DBS Bank Ltd.  -    258.58 
HDFC Bank Ltd.  380.32  1,132.74 
Shinhan Bank Co. Ltd.  2,003.04  -   
YES Bank Ltd.  430.00  627.16 
Federal Bank Ltd.  550.57  -   
RBL Bank Ltd.  512.31  -   
Woori Bank Ltd.  1,663.42  -   

Total  5,766.91  4,603.01 

Note:

The loans from DBS Bank Ltd., HDFC Bank Ltd., YES Bank Ltd., Federal Bank Ltd. RBL Bank Ltd. Woori Bank 
Ltd. are secured against Hypothecation of Stock and Book Debts of the Company with pari pasu clause.

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Note 
No. Particulars  As at 

31/03/2022 
 As at 

31/03/2021 

21 Other current liabilities

(a) Other payables 
i. Statutory remittances  30.36  15.96 
ii. Advances from customers  593.65  29.85 
iii. Other Current Liabilities  -  - 
(b) Creditor for Capital Expenditure  -  - 
(c) Foreign Currency Payable**  (107.39)  16.70 

Total  516.62  62.51 
**Foreign Currency Payable consists of Unamortized premium on forward 
contracts.

22 Short-term provisions

(a) Provision for employee benefits
(i) Provision for Bonus  25.92  9.76 
(ii) Provision for Leave Salary  3.32  3.16 
(iii) Provision for Gratuity  19.92  19.49 

(b) Provision - Others:
(ii) Provision for proposed equity dividend  -  - 
(ii) Provision for tax on proposed dividends  -  - 
(iii) Provision for Doubtful Debts  -  - 
(iv) Provision for Income Tax Refund  -  - 
(v) Corporate dividend tax  -  - 
(vi) Short Provision for Tax  -  - 
(vii) Provision for Dividend Distribution Tax  -  - 

Total  49.16  32.41 

22 Tax Liabilities

(a) Current
(i) Provision for tax  984.02  296.91 

Total  984.02  296.91 

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Note 
No. Particulars  For the year 

ended 31/03/2022  
 For the year 

ended 31/03/2021 

24 Revenue from operations

(a) Operating Revenue [Note i]  86,965.93  46,180.65 
(b) Other operating revenues [Note ii]  2,231.51  827.37 

Total  89,197.43  47,008.02 
Note:

(i) Operating Revenue
-Generation of Power  311.62  397.45 
-Traded goods  86,654.30  45,783.19 

Total  86,965.93  46,180.65 

(ii) Other operating revenues comprise:
-Duty drawback  1,431.11  787.63 
-Export incentives (RODTEP)  800.40  -   
-Sale of MIES  -    39.74 

Total  2,231.51  827.37 

Disaggregation of Revenue
Revenue based on Geography

- Export  82,653.29  43,635.52 
- Domestic  1,858.10  2,254.22 

Total Revenue from Operations  84,511.39  45,889.74 

25 Other income

(a) Interest income  37.97  3.03 
(b) Dividend Income  6.20  3.37 
(c) Insurance Claim Received  17.39  -   
(d) Commission Received  0.20  -   
(e) Profit/(Loss) on sale of Property, Plant & Equipment  4.36  1.67 
(f) Gain on Exchange Rate Difference  507.18  302.36 
(g) Gain on Cancellation of Forward Contract  1.74  -30.89 
(h) Other Non-Operating Rental Income  210.47  204.91 
(j) Other Non Operating Income  -    3.79 
(k) Long Term Capital Gain (Net)  0.56  1.24 
(l) Short Term Capital Gain (Net)  0.07  0.03 

Total  786.14  489.50 

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Note 
No. Particulars  For the year 

ended 31/03/2022  
 For the year 

ended 31/03/2021 
Note :

(i) Interest income comprises:
Interest from Banks on Deposit  0.02  2.51 
Interest on loans and advances to Employees  0.42  0.51 
Interest on overdue trade receivables  37.49  -   

Total - Interest income  37.93  3.03 

(ii) Other non-operating income comprises:       
Other Insurance Claim received  -    3.05 
Miscellaneous income  0.04  0.74 

Total - Other Non Opoerating Income  0.04  3.79 

26 Purchase of traded goods

(a) Yarn, Cotton, fabric (net)  77,865.49  43,703.02 

Total  77,865.49  43,703.02 

27 Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade

(a) Inventories at the end of the year:
Stock-in-trade  745.01  1,329.69 
Work-in-progress  162.28  -   

(b) Inventories at the beginning of the year:
Stock-in-trade  1,329.69  284.63 

Net (increase) / decrease  422.39  -1,045.06 

28 Employee benefits expense

(a) Salaries and wages  303.70  249.91 
(b) Contributions to provident and other funds  21.49  11.65 
(c) Staff welfare expenses  3.02  1.82 

Total  328.20  263.39 

29 Finance costs
(a) Interest expense on Borrowing  188.63  123.29 
(b) Other finance costs  332.18  124.33 

Total  520.81  247.62  

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements



 Annual Report 2021-22    135

LAHOTI OVERSEAS LIMITED
CIN : L74999MH1995PLC087643

Note 
No. Particulars  For the year 

ended 31/03/2022  
 For the year 

ended 31/03/2021 
30 Other expenses

(a) Office  & Administrative expenses:
Auditor's Fees [Note(i)]  4.81  3.07 
CSR Activities Expenses [Note(ii)]  68.00  5.00 
Donation  0.41  0.15 
Electricity Expenses  2.92  3.16 
Inspection Charges  5.43  2.48 
Insurance Premium  31.15  25.38 
Legal and Professional Charges  48.44  89.75 
Motor Car Expenses  11.93  12.48 
Office & General Expenses  309.16  459.58 
Postage and Telephone Charges  19.31  14.20 
Printing and Stationary  5.64  3.97 
Rent, Rates and Taxes  50.81  64.39 
Repairs & Maintenance  87.55  73.85 
Travelling & Conveyance  48.42  21.57 

Sub-Total (a)  693.99  779.04 
(b) Selling and Distribution expenses

Local Freight & other Shipment cost  886.30  641.83 
Ocean Freight  4,607.96  1,177.89 
Commission Expenses  793.08  562.87 
Sales Promotion Expenses  22.47  8.07 

Sub-Total (b)  6,309.81  2,390.67 

Total  7,003.79  3,169.71 
Note (i)

Payments to the auditors comprises of:
As Auditors - Statutory audit  3.57  3.07 
For Tax Audit  0.79  -   
For Certification & Consultancy Services  0.45  -   

Total  4.81  3.07 
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Note No. 31 : Key Financial Ratios:

Sr. No. Particulars Numerator Denominator  As at 
31/03/2022 

 As at 
31/03/2021 Variance

1 Current Ratio Current Assets Curent Liabilities  2.31  2.37 -3%

2 Debt Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholder's Equity  0.38  0.37 5%

3 Debt Service Coverage 
Ratio (#)

Earnings available for 
debt service Debt Service  0.44  0.23 93%

4 Return on Equity Ratio 
($) Net Profit after Tax Average 

Shareholder's Equity 15.94% 6.21% 157%

5 Inventory Turnover 
Ratio (%)

Sales/Revenue from 
Operations Average Stock  85.99  58.24 48%

6 Net Capital Turnover 
Ratio (^)

Sales/Revenue from 
Operations Working Capital  8.40  5.72 47%

7 Net Profit Ratio (&) Net Profit Revenue 2.63% 1.72% 53%

8 Return on Capital Em-
ployed (*)

Net Profit Before 
Interest and tax Capital Employed 22.83% 8.83% 159%

9 Return on Investment Income from 
Investment

Time weighted 
average value of 
investments

5.32% 6.29% -15%

Notes:

(#) Profit has increased but the debt has not increased proportionately as the debtors collection cycle during 
the year has reduced.

($) Due to the favourable market conditions and the government incentives the Profit after taxes has 
increased in a much higher proportion as compared to the increase in the sales.

(%) Increase in market demand has lead to an increase in stock holding position through out the year

(^) Revenue Growth along with higher efficiency on working capital has resulted in an improvement in this 
ratio

(&) Increase in operations and favourable market conditions have lead to a favourable increase in this ratio.

(*) Sales have increased and the profits of the business are redeployed into the business. This has led to a 
favourable increase in this ratio
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Additional Notes
1 Current Ratio:

The current ratio is a liquidity ratio that measures a company’s ability to pay short-term obligations or 
those due within one year. It tells investors and analysts how a company can maximize the current assets 
on its balance sheet to satisfy its current debt and other payables.
Formula : Current Assets/Current Liabilities
Standard : 2:1
Particulars 31/03/2022 31/03/2021 
Current Assets  18,707.41  14,197.83 
Current Liabilities  8,090.03  5,984.02 
Current Ratio  2.31  2.37 -3%

2 Debt Equity Ratio:

The debt-to-equity (D/E) ratio shows the proportions of equity and debt a company is using to finance 
its assets and it signals the extent to which shareholder’s equity can fulfill obligations to creditors, in the 
event a business declines.

Formula : Debt Funds/Equity Funds
Debt Funds would Include Non-Current and Current Debt(Borrowings)
Standard : A ratio greater than 1 means that the company relies more on debt fund rather than own 
funds.
Particulars 31/03/2022 31/03/2021 
Total Debt  6,164.88  5,008.13 
Share Holders Funds  16,112.68  13,720.48 
Debt-Equity Ratio  0.38  0.37 5%

3 Debt Service Coverage Ratio:
The debt-service coverage ratio (DSCR) is a measurement of a firm’s available cash flow to pay current 
debt obligations.
Formula : Earnings available for Debt Services (#) / Total Debt Obligations (%)
# Earnings available for debt service  =  PAT + Depreciation
% Total Debt Obligations = (Interest * (1-tax%)) + Debt
Particulars 31/03/2022 31/03/2021 
PAT + Depreciation  2,687.34  1,131.13 
Total Debt Obligations  6,164.88  5,008.13 
Debt Service Coverage Ratio:  0.44  0.23 93%
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4 Return on Equity

Return on equity (ROE) is a measure of financial performance calculated by dividing net income by 
shareholders’ equity.

Formula : PAT / Shareholders Funds X 100
Particulars 31/03/2022 31/03/2021 
Profit after Tax (PAT)  2,368.30  822.54 
Average Shareholder’s Equity  14,860.40  13,255.84 
Return on Equity 15.94% 6.21% 157%

5 Inventory Turnover Ratio
Inventory turnover is the rate at which a company replaces inventory in a given period due to sales. 
Formula : Sales / Average Stock
Average Stock = Opening Stock + Closing Stock / 2
Particulars 31/03/2022 31/03/2021 
Sales / Revenue from Operations  89,197.43  47,008.02 
Opening Stock  1,329.69  284.63 
Closing Stock  745.01  1,329.69 
Average Stock  1,037.35  807.16 
Inventory Turnover Ratio  85.99  58.24 48%

6 Net Capital Turnover Ratio
Working capital turnover is a ratio that measures how efficiently a company is using its working capital 
to support sales and growth
Formula : Sales / Working Capital
Particulars 31/03/2022 31/03/2021 
Sales / Revenue from Operations  89,197.43  47,008.02 
Working Capital  10,617.39  8,213.81 
Net Capital Turnover Ratio  8.40  5.72 47%

7 Net Profit Ratio (After Tax)
It measures the relationship between net profit and the sales of the business.
Formula : Net Profit (after tax) / sales
Particulars 31/03/2022 31/03/2021 
Net Profit  2,368.30  822.54 
Total Revenue  90,081.98  47,756.55 
Net Profit Ratio (After Tax) 2.63% 1.72% 53%
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8 Return on Capital Employed (ROCE)

This ratio can help to understand how well a company is generating profits from its capital as it is put to 
use.

Formula :  ROCE = Net Profit (After Tax) + Interest / Capital Employed (#)
# Capital Employed = Total Assets less Current Liabilities
Particulars 31/03/2022 31/03/2021 
Net Profit Before Tax  3,622.25  1,109.28 
Interest Expense  188.63  123.29 
Net Profit Before interest and tax (EBIT)  3,810.89  1,232.57 
Capital Employed  16,695.78  13,962.99 
Return on Capital Employed 22.83% 8.83% 159%

9 Return on Investments (ROI)

ROI tries to directly measure the amount of return on a particular investment, relative to the investment’s 
cost.

Formula : Net Profit (After Tax) + Interest / Capital Employed (#)
Particulars 31/03/2022 31/03/2021 
Total Income on Investments  217.11  211.30 
Value of Investments  4,081.04  3,360.29 
Return on Investments (ROI) 5.32% 6.29% -15%

Note No. 32 : Note on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR):
As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to 
spend at least 2% of its average net profit for the immediately preceding three financial years on corporate 
social responsibility (CSR) activities. The areas for CSR activities are eradication of hunger and malnutrition, 
promoting education, art and culture, healthcare, destitute care and rehabilitation, environment sustainability, 
disaster relief, COVID-19 relief and rural development projects. A CSR committee has been formed by the 
company as per the Act. The funds were primarily utilized through the year on these activities which are specified 
in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013:

(₹ in lakhs)

Sr. No. Particulars Year ended 
31/03/2022

Year ended 
31/03/2021

i. Amount required to be spent by the Company  24.60  24.02 
ii. Amount of Expenditure Incurred  7.00  5.00 
iii. Shortfall at the end of the year (*)  17.60  19.02 
iv. Total of previous years short fall (8)  -  96.24 
v. Reasons for shortfall No Projects were identified
vi. nature of CSR activities  Promotion of Education 

 Swacch Bharat Kosh 
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Sr. No. Particulars Year ended 
31/03/2022

Year ended 
31/03/2021

vii.
details of related party transactions, e.g., contribution to a trust 
controlled by the company in relation to CSR expenditure as per 
relevant Accounting Standard,

 -  - 

viii.
where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by 
entering into a contractual obligation, the movements in the 
provision during the year shall be shown separately.

 -  - 

 Notes: 
 * The company has transferred the amount of shortfalls to a separate fund i.e. Unspent CSR Account 

as provided in Schedule VII of the Act, the details of which are provided hereunder:
(₹ in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended 
31/03/2022

Year ended 
31/03/2021

Shortfall for the year  17.60  19.02 
Shortfall of previous years  -  96.24 
Total Shortfalls  17.60  115.26 

Amount transferred to Swacch Bharat Kosh during F.Y. 2021-22  -  61.00 

Amount deposited in the Unspent CSR Account during F.Y. 2021-22  -  55.00 
Amount deposited in the Unspent CSR Account on 30/04/2022  18.00  - 
Shortfall / (Excess)  -0.40  -0.74 

Note No. 33 : Note on Borrowings secured against current assets:
The loans from DBS Bank Ltd., HDFC Bank Ltd., Shinhan Bank Co. Ltd., YES Bank Ltd., Federal Bank Ltd. RBL 
Bank Ltd. Woori Bank Ltd. are secured against Hypothecation of Stock and Book Debts of the Company with 
pari pasu clause. However the Company is required to file monthly stock statements with HDFC Bank Ltd. only.
The Summary of reconciliation and reasons for material discrepancies are as under

(₹ in lakhs)

Quarter Name of Bank
Particulars 
of securities 

provided

Amount 
as per 

books of 
accounts

Amount as 
reported in 

the quarterly 
return/state-

ment

Amount of 
difference

Reason for 
material 

discrapencies

June, 2021 HDFC Bank Ltd. Stock-in-Transit  1,136.54  974.05  162.49 

Note - 1September, 2021 HDFC Bank Ltd. Stock-in-Transit  1,905.97  742.65  1,163.32 
December, 2021 HDFC Bank Ltd. Stock-in-Transit  3,507.82  3,532.99  -25.17 
March, 2022 HDFC Bank Ltd. Stock-in-Transit  907.30  740.00  167.30 
June, 2021 HDFC Bank Ltd. Receivables  9,429.91  8,714.06  715.85 

Note - 2September, 2021 HDFC Bank Ltd. Receivables  13,014.44  12,408.55  605.89 
December, 2021 HDFC Bank Ltd. Receivables  16,554.99  15,881.42  673.57 
March, 2022 HDFC Bank Ltd. Receivables  12,605.22  11,944.18  661.04 
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Note - 2 : Reconciliation of Stock Statements filed with Banks and Books of Accounts                         (₹ in lakhs)

Particulars
For the quarter ended

June, 
2021

September, 
2021

December, 
2021

March, 
2022

Value of Inventories as per Books of accounts  1,136.54  1,905.97  3,507.82  907.30 
Less:
Value of Inventories not submitted to bank  211.99  1,170.13  354.74  -   
(not converted to sales/receiveables)
Revision in price after submission  -    20.61  -    -   
Inventories for Domestic Sales and  -    -    -    40.13 
Inventories lying with the Job Worker  -    -    -    162.97 
Add:
Value of Inventories converted to sales/receiveables 
before/at the end of the quarter  49.50  27.42  379.90  35.80 
Value of Inventories submitted to Banks  974.05  742.65  3,532.99  740.00 

Note - 2 : Reconciliation of Receiveables Statements filed with Banks and Books of Accounts                                                                                    
      (₹ in lakhs)

Particulars
For the quarter ended

June, 
2021

September, 
2021

December, 
2021

March, 
2022

Balance of Receiveables as per Books of accounts  9,429.91  13,014.44  16,554.99  12,605.22 
Less:

Value of domestic receiveables not submitted  962.42  482.27  696.75  463.06 

Value of receiveables pertaining to the power division  235.17  557.39  278.71  109.32 
Revaluation of Debtors  59.50  62.09  -159.84  88.66 

 1,257.08  1,101.75  815.62  661.04 
Add:
Invoices finalized after submission of statements to the banks  541.23  495.86  142.05  - 
Balance of Receiveables submitted to the Banks  8,714.06  12,408.55  15,881.42  11,944.18 

Note No. 34A : Related Party Disclosure (with whom transactions exist):
Disclosure requirements as per Ind-AS-24 “Related Party Disclosure” and terms and conditions of transactions 
are as follows:

The sales & services provided and received from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail 
in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured, interest free and will be settled 
in cash. There have been no guarantees received or provided for any related party receivables or payables.
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ii. List of related party transactions during the year:
(₹in Lakhs)

Sr. 
No. Entity Relation Transaction type Year ended 

31/03/2022
Year ended 
31/03/2021

1 PSWare Information Private 
Limited

KMP/Relatives 
of KMP having 
significant influence

Rent Paid  9.60  9.60 

2 Bauble Investment Private 
Limited

KMP/Relatives 
of KMP having 
significant influence

Rent Paid  -  0.45 

3 Mr. Umesh Lahoti Managing Director Loan Taken  458.00  9.18 

4 Mr. Ujwal Lahoti Executive Director Loan Taken  659.00  - 

5 Mr. Umesh Lahoti Managing Director Loan Repaid  434.74  15.27 

6 Mr. Ujwal Lahoti Executive Director Loan Repaid  652.63  3.26 

7 Mr. Umesh Lahoti Managing Director Interest Paid  15.44  0.33 
8 Mr. Ujwal Lahoti Executive Director Interest Paid  36.67  0.31 

9 Mr. Umesh Lahoti Managing Director Managerial 
remuneration  21.60  21.60 

10 Mr. Ujwal Lahoti Executive Director Managerial 
remuneration  25.80  24.00 

11 Mr. Aadhitya Lahoti Director Managerial   
remuneration  12.00  12.00 

12 Mr.  Pradeep Bachhuka CFO Remuneration  12.86  9.78 
13 Miss. Akshita Jhawar Company Secretary Remuneration  6.51  4.58 
14 Mr. Umesh Lahoti Managing Director Loan Payable  39.01  0.32 
15 Mr. Ujwal Lahoti Executive Director Loan Payable  43.96  0.91 

Relatives of KMP have significant influence
Name Relation
Mrs. Aanchal A. Lahoti Spouse of Director
Mr. Saurabh Lahoti Son of Director

i Entities in which KMP / relatives of KMP have significant influence :
PSWare Information Pvt. Ltd.
Bauble Investment Pvt. Ltd.
Key Management Personnel (KMP):
Name Designation DIN
Mr. Umesh R. Lahoti Managing Director 361216
Mr. Ujwal R Lahoti    Executive Director 360785
Mr. Aadhitya Lahoti Whole Time Director 1501504
Miss. Akshita Jhawar Company Secretary -
Mr. Pradeep Bachhuka Chief Financial Officer -
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(₹ in Lakhs)
Sr. 
No. Entity Relation Transaction type Year ended 

31/03/2022
Year ended 
31/03/2021

16 Mr. Prem Malik Director Director Sitting Fees  0.30  0.27 
17 Mr. Prakash Bang Director Director Sitting Fees  0.41  0.28 
18 Mrs. Meghna Panchal Director Director Sitting Fees  0.43  0.32 
19 Mrs. Aanchal A. Lahoti Relative of Director Salary to Relative  3.20  2.79 
20 Mr. Saurabh Lahoti Relative of Director Salary to Relative  12.00  10.41 

* Parties identified by the Management and relied upon by the auditors.

 Note No. 34B : Related Party Disclosure (with whom transactions exist):	

ii. Summary of transactions during the year with related parties:

(₹ in Lakhs)

Sr. 
No.

 Nature of 
Transaction 

 Entities in which 
KMP / relatives of 

KMP have significant 
influence (PSWare 

Information Pvt. Ltd. 
& Bauble Investments 

Private Limited)

 Key Management 
Personnel (KMP) 

 Directors Sitting 
Fees  Salary to Relatives 

 C.Y.  P.Y.  C.Y.  P.Y.  C.Y.  P.Y.  C.Y.  P.Y. 

1  Rent Paid  9.60  10.05  -   -   -  -   -  -  

2  Loan Taken  -  -  1,117.00  9.18  -  -   -  -  

3  Loan Repaid  -                 -     1,087.37  9.35  -  -   -  -  

4  Interest Paid  -                 -     52.11  0.64  -  -   -  -  

5
 Managerial 
Remuneration  -   -   78.77  71.96  -  -   -  -  

6
 Directors 
Sitting Fees  -  -   -  -   1.14  0.87  -  -  

7
 Salary to 
Relatives  -  -   -  -   -  -   15.20  13.20 

8
 Outstanding 
balances  -  -   -  -   -  -   -  -  

9
 Loans and 
Advances  -  -   -  -   -  -   -  -  

10
 Receivable 
(Deposit)  -  -  -   -   -  -   -  -  

11  Payable (Loan)  -   -   82.97  1.23  -  -   -  -  
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Note No. 35 : Fair Value Disclosure of Financial Instruments
Financial Instruments - Fair value and risk management
(a) Financial instruments by category
The following table presents the carrying amounts of each category of financial assets and liabilites as at 31st 
March, 2022.

 (₹ in lakhs) 

Particulars  FVTPL  Amortised 
Cost 

 Total carrying 
value 

Financial assets
(a) Investment in Equity Instrument  185.13  -    185.13 
(b) Investment in Mutual Fund  2,031.59  -    2,031.59 
(c) Investment in National Saving Certificate  0.20  -    0.20 
(d) Investment Property  -    1,864.11  1,864.11 

Total  2,216.92  1,864.11  4,081.04 
Financial liabilites
(a) Non Current 

Trade Payable  -    44.07  44.07 
(b) Current 

Trade Payable  -    375.35  375.35 
Total  -    419.42  419.42 

The following table presents the carrying amounts of each category of financial assets and liabilites as at 31st 
March, 2021.

 (₹ in lakhs) 

Particulars  FVTPL  Amortised 
Cost 

 Total carrying 
value 

Financial assets
(a) Investment in Equity Instrument  178.27  -    178.27 
(b) Investment in Mutual Fund  1,218.11  -    1,218.11 
(c) Investment in National Saving Certificate  0.20  -    0.20 
(d) Investment Property  -    1,963.70  1,963.70 

Total  1,396.59  1,963.70  3,360.29 
Financial liabilites
(a) Non Current 

Trade Payable  -    24.70  24.70 
(b) Current 

Trade Payable  -    584.05  584.05 
 Total  -    608.75  608.75 
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(b) Fair Value Hierarchy  (₹ in lakhs) 

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2022
Fair Value measurement using Profit & Loss

Total          (Level 1)                              (Level 2)             (Level 3)  

 Quoted prices in 
active market  

 Significant 
observable 

inputs  

 Significant unob-
servable inputs  

Assets measured at fair 
value:
Equity Investment  185.13  185.13  -    -   
Investment in Mutual Fund  2,031.59  2,031.59  -    -   
Investment in National 
Saving Certificate  0.20  -    -    0.20 

Total  2,216.92  2,216.72  -    0.20 

 (₹ in lakhs) 
Particulars As at 31st March, 2021

Fair Value measurement using Profit & Loss
Total          (Level 1)                              (Level 2)             (Level 3)  

 Quoted prices in 
active market  

 Significant 
observable 

inputs  

 Significant unob-
servable inputs  

Assets measured at fair 
value:
Equity Investment  178.27  178.27  -    -   
Investment in Mutual Fund  1,218.11  1,218.11  -    -   
Investment in National 
Saving Certificate  0.20  -    -    0.20 

Total  1,396.59  1,396.39  -    0.20 
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Note No. 36A : Segment Reporting
Segment wise disclosure information as per Ind-AS-108 on “Operating Segment” is as below:
A. General Information

1. Segments have been identified in line with the Ind-AS-108.

2. Business segment have been identified on the basis of nature of the products/services, the risk-return 
profile on individual basis.

3.
Company has disclosed Business Segment as the primary segment. The risk-return profile of the company’s 
business is determined predominantly by the nature of its products and services. Accordingly, business 
segments constitute the primary segment for disclosure of segment information.

4. Composition of Business Segment:

Name of segment Comprises of Revenue from operations (%)

Trading Division Export Sales 99.65
Power Division Power Generation 0.35

5. The Segment Revenue, Results, Assets and liabilities include the respective amounts identifiable and 
amounts allocated on reasonable basis.

6.
The Managing Director of the Company, Mr. Umesh Lahoti, acts as the Chief Operating Decision Maker 
(“CODM”) The CODM evaluates the Company’s performance and allocates resources based on an analysis 
of various performance indicators by operating segments.

B. Information about Major Customers

1.Revenues of approximately ₹ 44,306.12 lakhs (Previous year 31st March, 2021 – ₹ 4,384.45 lakhs) are 
derived from the following external customer:

Details of major area of operation:                                                                                                        (₹ in lakhs)

Sr. no. Country/Area/Region For the year ended 
31/03/2022

For the year ended 
31/03/2021

1 Bangladesh 28,264.44 4,384.45
2 Turkey 16,041.68  - 

TOTAL  44,306.12  4,384.45 

C. Segment Assets:                                                                                                                                            (₹ in lakhs)
Sr. No. Division As at 31/03/2022 As at 31/03/2021

1 Trading Division  19,755.83  15,955.36 
2 Power Division  -162.84  88.60 
3 Un-allocable  5,128.10  3,849.45 

TOTAL  24,721.09  19,893.41 
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Note No.36B : Segment Report

Primary Segments - Business Segments:
 (₹ in lakhs) 

Particulars

Trading Division Power Un-allocable Total

For the 
year ended 
31/03/2022

For the 
year ended 
31/03/2021

For the 
year ended 
31/03/2022

For the 
year ended 
31/03/2021

For the 
year ended 
31/03/2022

For the 
year ended 
31/03/2021

For the 
year ended 
31/03/2022

For the 
year ended 
31/03/2021

Gross Segment Revenue  88,885.81  46,610.56  311.62  397.45  -    -    89,197.43  47,008.02 
Less:- Intersegment Rev-
enue  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Net Segment Revenue  88,885.81  46,610.56  311.62  397.45  -    -    89,197.43  47,008.02 

Segment Results :  3,461.35  634.33  (202.45)  (25.80)  (0.38)  (0.17)  3,258.51  608.36 
(Profit / Loss Before Tax , 
Interest and  
Investment Income from 
each segment)
Add: Interest Income  -    -    -    -    37.97  3.03  37.97  3.03 
Add: Rental Income  -    -    -    -    210.47  204.91  210.47  204.91 
Add: Dividend Received  -    -    -    -    6.20  3.37  6.20  3.37 
Add: Other Income  624.92  534.32  624.92  534.32 
Add: Profit/(Loss) on sale 
of investments  -    -    -    -    0.63  1.24  0.63  1.24 

Add: Profit/(Loss) on 
sale of Plant, property & 
Equipement

 -    -    -    -    4.36  1.67  4.36  1.67 

Profit before Interest and 
Tax  -    -    -    -    4,143.07  1,356.90 

Less:- Interest  -    -    -    -    (520.81)  (247.62)  (520.81)  (247.62)
Profit  Before Tax   -    -    -    -    3,622.25  1,109.28 
Provision for Tax
Current Tax net off MAT 
credit  -    -    -    -    984.02  296.91 

Deferred  -    -    -    -    269.93  (10.17)
Profit After Tax   -    -    -    -    2,368.30  822.54 
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 (₹ in lakhs)

Particulars
Trading Power Un-allocable Total

As At 
31/03/2022

As At 
31/03/2021

As At 
31/03/2022

As At 
31/03/2021

As At 
31/03/2022

As At 
31/03/2021

As At 
31/03/2022

As At 
31/03/2021

a) Segment Assets
Property, Plant and 
Equipment  208.29  193.99  1,101.57  1,257.18  -    -    1,309.86  1,451.18 

Capital Work In Progress  11.03  -    -    -    -    -    11.03  -   
Investment Properties  -    -    -    -    1,864.11  1,963.70  1,864.11  1,963.70 
Goodwill  -    -    -    -    42.60  42.60  42.60  42.60 
Investments  -    -    0.20  0.20  2,216.72  1,396.39  2,216.92  1,396.59 
Other Assets,Loans and 
Advances (Excluding Tax 
Assets)

 19,536.50  15,761.03  (1,264.61)  (1,168.43)  2.19  24.26  18,274.09  14,616.87 

Unallocable Assets (Tax 
Assets)  -    -    -    -    1,067.19  476.08  1,067.19  476.08 

Total Assets  19,755.83  15,955.02  (162.84)  88.96  5,192.82  3,903.02  24,785.81  19,947.00 
b) Segment Liabilities
Loan Funds  6,164.88  5,008.13  -    -    -    -    6,164.88  5,008.13 
Liabilities & Provisions 
(Excluding Tax Liabilities)  1,489.80  806.87  34.01  114.40  0.13  0.23  1,523.95  921.50 

Unallocable (Tax Liabil-
ities)  -    -    -    -    984.31  296.91  984.31  296.91 

Total Liabilities  7,654.68  5,815.00  34.01  114.40  984.44  -    8,673.13  6,226.54 
Net Segment Assets  12,101.15  10,140.02  (196.85)  (25.45)  4,208.38  3,903.02  16,112.68  13,720.48 

Particulars
Trading Wind Power Un-allocable Total 

As At 
31/03/2022

As At 
31/03/2021

As At 
31/03/2022

As At 
31/03/2021

As At 
31/03/2022

As At 
31/03/2021

As At 
31/03/2022

As At 
31/03/2021

Capital Expenditure  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Segment Depreciation  63.84  34.21  155.61  169.29  99.59  105.08  319.04  308.59 
Non - Cash Expenses other 
than Depreciation  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Segment Reporting : Segment identification, reportable segments
i) Primary/secondary segment reporting format:
The risk-return profile of the company’s business is determined predominantly by the nature of it’s products and 
services. Accordingly, business segments constitute the primary segment for disclosure of segment information .
ii) Segment Identification:
2. Business segment have been identified on the basis of nature of the products/services, the risk-return profile on 
individual basis.
iii) Reportable Segment:
Reportable segment has been indetified as per the criteria specified in Ind AS 108 “Operating Segment” issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
The previous year’s figures have been  reworked,  regrouped,  rearranged  and  reclassified  wherever  necessary. Amount 
and other disclosures for the preceding year are included as an integral part of the current year financial statements and 
are to be read in relation to the amounts and other disclosures relating to the current year.

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements



 Annual Report 2021-22    149

LAHOTI OVERSEAS LIMITED
CIN : L74999MH1995PLC087643

Note No. 37 : Trade Receiveables Ageing Schedule

With reference to the outstanding amount of trade receiveables as on the balance sheet date, the ageing 
schedule is as follows:

1. For the year ended 31st March, 2022.
(₹ in lakhs)

Outstanding for the following periods from the due date of 
payment

Sr. 
No. Particulars Less than 6 

months
6 months 
to 1 year

1 to 2 
years

2 to 3 
years

More than 
3 years Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receiveables-
(a) Considered Good  12,526.27  -  -  78.95  12,605.22 

(b) Which have significant increase in 
risk credit  -  -  -  -  - 

(c) Credit Impaired  -  -  -  -  - 
(ii) Disputed Trade receiveables-
(a) Considered Good  -  -  -  -  -  - 

(b) Which have significant increase in 
risk credit  -  -  -  -  -  - 

(c) Credit Impaired  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Total  12,526.27  -  -  -  78.95  12,605.22 

2. For the year ended 31st March, 2021.
(₹ in lakhs)

Outstanding for the following periods from the due date of 
payment

Sr. 
No. Particulars Less than 6 

months
6 months 
to 1 year

1 to 2 
years

2 to 3 
years

More than 
3 years Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receiveables-
(a) Considered Good  10,007.15  -  -  86.20  -  10,093.35 

(b) Which have significant increase in 
risk credit  -  -  -  -  -  - 

(c) Credit Impaired  -  -  -  -  -  - 
(ii) Disputed Trade receiveables-
(a) Considered Good  -  -  -  -  -  - 

(b) Which have significant increase in 
risk credit  -  -  -  -  -  - 

(c) Credit Impaired  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Total  10,007.15  -  -  86.20  -  10,093.35 
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Note No. 38 : Trade Payables Ageing Schedule

With reference to the outstanding amount of trade payables as on the balance sheet date, the ageing schedule is 
as follows:
1. For the year ended 31st March, 2022.

(₹ in lakhs)

Sr. 
No. Particulars

Outstanding for the following periods from the due date of 
payment

Less than 6 
months

6 months 
to 1 year

1 to 2 
years

2 to 3 
years

More than 
3 years Total

(i) Undisputed Trade Payables-
(a) MSME  15.73  -    -    -    -    15.73 
(b) Others  358.56  1.00  19.37  -    -    378.93 

(ii) Disputed Trade Payables-
(a) MSME  -    -    -    -    -    -   
(b) Others  -    0.06  5.87  -    18.83  24.76 

Total  374.29  1.06  25.24  -    18.83  419.42 

2. For the year ended 31st March, 2021.
(₹ in lakhs)

Sr. 
No. Particulars

Outstanding for the following periods from the due 
date of payment

Less than 6 
months

6 months 
to 1 year

1 to 2 
years

2 to 3 
years

More than 
3 years Total

(i) Undisputed Trade Payables-
(a) MSME  9.94  -    -    -    -    9.94 
(b) Others  574.11  -    -    -    -    574.11 

(ii) Disputed Trade Payables-
(a) MSME  -    -    -    -    -    -   
(b) Others  -    -    5.87  18.83  -    24.70 

Total  584.05  -    5.87  18.83  -    608.75 
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Note No. 39 : Employee Benifits
The disclosures required under Ind AS-19 “Employee Benefits” are given below:
Defined Contribution Plan
Contributions to Defined Contribution Plan recognized and charged off for the year are as under:

(₹ in Lakhs)
Particulars 31/03/2022 31/03/2021 
Employer’s Contribution to Provident Fund 8.24 7.4

Defined Benefit Plan:
a. Gratuity:

The liability in respect of employees is provided in the books based on the actuarial valuation. At the time of 
actual payment of Gratuity, the gratuity payable account is credited.

b. Leave encashment:

The Company provides for estimated leave encashment liability each year on the basis of accumulated leave 
due to each employee at the year end, value based on salaries including allowances of the last month of the 
Accounting Year. 

Reconciliation of Defined Benefit Obligation and fair value of plan assets is as under:
a. Actuarial Assumptions

The financial and demographic assumptions on annual basis used for valuation as at the Valuation Date 
are shown below.  The assumptions as at the Valuation Date are used to determine the Present Value of 
Defined Benefit Obligation at that date.
Summary of Assumptions
Particulars 31/03/2022 31/03/2021

Mortality Rate Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-
08) Ultimate

Indian Assured lives mortality(2006-08) 
Ultimate

Retirement Age 65 years 65 years

Attrition Rate

For service 2 years and below 25 % p.a. For service 2 years and below 25 % p.a.

For service 3 years to 4 years  18 % p.a. For service 3 years to 4 years 18 % p.a.

For service 5 years and above  11 % p.a. For service 5 years and below 11 % p.a.

Financial Assumptions
Salary Escalation Rate 6.00 % p.a. 6.00 % p.a.

Discount Rate 6.26% 6.26% p.a. (Indicative G. Sec referenced 
on 31-03-2021)
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b. Gratuity Unfunded:
(₹ in Lakhs)

Particulars Year Ending 
31/03/2022

Year Ending 
31/03/2021

Current Service Cost  425,082  484,682 
Past Service Cost  -  - 
(Gain)/Loss on Settlements  -  - 
Current Service Cost  -  - 
Total Service Cost  425,082  484,682 
Interest Expense on DBO  317,589  354,317 
Interest(Income) on Plan Assets  -  - 
Interest(Income) on Reimbursement Rights  -  - 
Interest Expense on (Asset Ceiling)/Onerous Liability  -  - 
Total Net Interest Cost  317,589  354,317 
Benefits paid directly by the employer  -153,208  -501,747 
Total Benefits Paid  -153,208  -501,747 
Reimbursement of Other Long-Term Benefits  -  - 
Defined Benefit Cost included in P & L  -  - 
Re-measurements-Due to Demographic Assumptions  -1,540  523,974 

Re-measurements-Due to Financial As-
sumptions  -190,104  453,303 
Re-measurements-Due to Experience 
Adjustments  1,248,378  -45,337 
(Return)on Plan Assets(Excluding Interest Income)  -  - 
(Return)on Reimbursement Rights  -  - 
Changes in Asset Ceiling/Onerous Liability  -  - 
Total Re-measurements in OCI  1,056,734  931,940 
Total Defined Benefit Cost recognized in P&L and OCI  1,646,197  1,269,192 

Note No. 40 : Provisions, Contingent Liabilities And Contingent Assets:
i. Provisions:

The Company recognizes provisions when a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past 
event exists and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to 
settle such obligation and the amount of such obligation can be reliably estimated. If the effect of time value 
of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pretax rate that reflects, when appropriate, 
the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage 
of time is recognized as a finance cost.
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ii. Contingent liabilities:

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that 
may, but probably will not require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or the amount of 
such obligation cannot be measured reliably. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in 
respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote, no provision 
or disclosure is made.

a. Claims not acknowledged by the Company relating to cases contested by the Company:
(₹ in Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 
2022

As at March 31, 
2021

Income Tax Matter (Pending before Appellate 
Authorities in respect of which the Company 
is in appeal)

-     For A.Y.: 2013-14 48.2 48.2
-     For A.Y.: 2014-15 171.62 171.62
-     For A.Y.: 2017-18 334.92 334.92
-     For A.Y.: 2018-19 7.36 7.36

iii. Contingent Assets:
Company doesn’t have any Contingent assets.

Note No. 41 : Earnings Per Share:

Particulars As at March 31, 
2022

As at March 31, 
2021

Profit for the year (Rs. In Lakhs)  2,368.30  822.54 
Shares outstanding during the year (Nos.)  2,91,71,500  2,91,71,500 
Earnings per Share

Baisc  8.12  2.82 
Diluted  8.12  2.82 

Note No. 42 : Foreign Currency Transactions

a. Initial Recognition:

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the 
transaction.
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b. Conversion:

At the year-end, monetary items in foreign currencies are converted into rupee equivalents at the year-
end exchange rates.

c. Exchange Differences:

All exchange differences arising on settlement and conversions of foreign currency transactions are 
included in Other Comprehensive Income.

d. Forward Exchange Contracts:
In respect of transactions covered by forward exchange contracts, the difference between the forward rate 
and the spot rate is recognized as gain/loss. The gain by way of premium on open forward contracts as on 
the reporting date is amortized over the period of contract on pro-rata basis. The mark to market gain or 
loss on open forward contracts being the difference between forward contracts booked at spot rate and 
rate prevailing at the year- end date is recognized in Other Comprehensive Income.

Note No. 43 : Expenditure in foreign currency:
(₹in Lakhs)

Particulars Year ending 
31/03/2022

Year ending 
31/03/2021

Foreign Bank Charges  164.36  80.16 
Foreign Traveling Expenses  13.12  0.29 
Overseas Commission  384.80  305.25 
Liaison Office at Bangladesh  14.97  29.08 

TOTAL  577.25  414.78 

Note No. 44 : Earning in Foreign Exchange:
FOB value of export: ₹ 80,308.25 Lakhs (Previous Year ₹ 42,380.76 Lakhs).

(₹in Lakhs)

Particulars Year ending 
31/03/2022

Year ending 
31/03/2021

FOB value as per Financials 86807.05 44462.89
Less: Discount Given -55.76 -76.87
Duty Drawback -1430.11 -787.63
Export Incentive -800.4 -39.74
Ocean Freight -4212.53 -1177.89
FOB as per Notes 80308.25 42380.76
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Note No. 45 : Leases:
a. Lease Expense

Ind AS 116 is effective from April 2019, Ind AS 116 replaces the existing standard Ind AS 17 and specifies 
how an entity will recognize, measure, present and disclose leases.

The company has certain operating leases with subsidiary/associate company not of material value for office 
facilities. Such leases are generally with the option of renewal, with termination at short notice and there 
exist no formal agreement to categorize it as a Right of Use asset (“RoU Asset”) for long term basis and 
accordingly capitalizing the same on Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) basis is not practical. Rental expenses 
of ₹ 19.20 Lakhs (31st March, 2021: ₹ 19.60 Lakhs) in respect of obligation under operating leases have been 
recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss for the year.

b. Lease Income:

The company has certain investment properties let out under lease/right-to-use agreements. The said 
agreements are in the nature of operating leases, which generates a material value in the form of lease rents.

As per Ind-AS-116 “Leases”, in case of operating leases, the company “lessor” is required to recognise the 
income generated from the lease on a systematic basis. The company recognises the lease income as and 
when the payments are due and received on the basis of the lease agreement. As on 31st March, 2022, the 
company has following investment properties:

(₹ in lakhs)

Particulars Amortized cost Fair Value

Flat at Dhawalgiri, Mumbai  228.45 

NOTE - 1

Office at Arun Chambers, Tardeo  1.46 
Office at Arun Chambers, Tardeo  0.04 
Office at Coimbatore  4.04 
Office at Marathon Futurex, Worli  1,250.63 
Flat at Lodha Aria, Sewri  368.48 
Plot of Land at Ahmednagar  11.00 

TOTAL  1,864.11   - 

Note – 1: As per Ind-AS-116 “Leases”, the company is required to disclose the fair value of its Investment 
Properties as on the Balance Sheet date. However, the company is unable to provide the fair value of its 
investment properties as on 31st March, 2022.

There is no financial impact of such non – compliance on the financial statements, as it is a mere disclosure 
is in the notes to accounts which is informative in nature.

Note No. 46 : Note on Revenue Recognition of the Solar Division

The Company owns and operates a Solar Power Plant at Pali District, Rajasthan. The existing Power Purchase 
Agreement (PPA) between the Company and Jodhpur Vidyut Vitran Nigam Ltd. (Jodhpur Discom) expired 
on 31/03/2019. Thereafter the company approached Jodhpur Discom for the renewal of the PPA, however the 
application of the Company was rejected by Jodhpur Discom. Jodhpur Discom has rejected the applications of all 
other similar solar power generating units in the said district.
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Despite of the non-renewal of the PPA, the Company generated 37,58,466 k/wh and 37,99,999 k/wh of power 
during the financial year 2019-20 and 2020-21 respectively and continued to recognize the revenue on the basis 
of the rate mentioned in the expired PPA i.e. ₹ 3.14 per kilowatt.

The Renewable Energy Association of Rajasthan (REAR) has filed writ petition with the Rajasthan High Court, 
Jaipur Bench on behalf of all the aggrieved power generation units operating their Solar Power Plant in the Pali 
District, Rajasthan and the matter is pending disposal.
During the F.Y. 2021-22 the Solar Unit of the Company has generated 36,85,815 k/wh which has been supplied 
to the grid.
Since the PPA is not renewed and it is uncertain at what rate per kilowatt will the Company receive the 
revenue, the conditions for recognising revenue as laid down in Ind AS 119 - “Revenue Recognition” are not 
fulfilled. Moreover, there exists an uncertainty regarding the recovery of the revenue already recognized during 
FY 2019-20 and 2020-21. In light of these facts the Company has decided not to recognize any revenue from the 
said power plant for the financial year 2021- 22.

Note No. 47 : Note on Windpower No. 4

In the case of Wind power 4, during the F.Y. 2016-17 an amount of ₹ 818.25 lakhs was paid as advance for 
purchase and installation capital asset to M/s. Regen Powertech Pvt. Ltd (RPPL). The Company received the 
Windmill in a Completely Knocked Down (CKD) condition, however RPPL was unable install the Windmill at 
the site. RPPL has filed for insolvency and has moved to the NCLT in this regard, hence RPPL will not be able to 
install the Windmill at a future date.

The Company has the possession of the Windmill in a CKD condition and has not capitalized the same in its 
books of accounts.

The Company is actively searching for prospective buyers in an attempt to dispose of the Windmill (CKD). On 
the basis of the management’s internal assessment, the Company can recover an approximate amount Rs. 300 
lakhs if the same is sold in the open market.

Hence during the FY 2021-22 the Company has written off an amount of Rs.266.75 lakhs as irrecoverable.

Note No. 48 : Transactions with Struck off companies:

The company has at anytime during the year not entered into any transactions with Companies struck off under 
section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956.

Note No. 49 : Note on charges or staisfaction yet to be registered:
The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction of which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the 
statutory period.

Note No. 50 : Note on amounts advanced or loaned or invested:

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including 
foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

a. Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
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b. Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Note No. 51 : Note on amounts received :

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding 
Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

a. Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b. Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Note No. 52 : Note on Investments in Virtual Digital Assets :

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency or any other Virtual Digital 
Assets as defined u/s. 2(47A) of the Income Tax Act, 1961, during the financial year.

Note No.53 : Re-classification of previous year figures:

Previous year’s figures have been reworked, regrouped, rearranged and reclassified wherever necessary. Amount 
and other disclosures for the preceding year are included as an integral part of the current year financial 
statements and are to be read in relation to the amounts and other disclosures relating to the current year.

Note No. 54 : Proposed Dividend:

The Board of Directors In its meetings has recommended a dividend payout @ 20 % (₹ 0.40/- per equity share) 
on Equity Shares having a face value of ₹ 2/- each for the financial year 2021-22, subject to the approval of the 
shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

As per our report attached of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Signature to Notes to Account from 1 to 54

Sd/- Sd/-
N. G. Thakrar & Co. Ujwal R. Lahoti Umesh R. Lahoti
Chartered Accountants Executive Chairman Managing Director
Firm Regn.No.: 110907W DIN No: 00360785 DIN No: 00361216
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Natwar G. Thakrar Pradeep Bacchuka Akshita Jhawar
(Partner) Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No.:- 036213

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Dated: 27/05/2022 Dated: 27/05/2022
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